
 

 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 
To: Members of the Cabinet Date: 

 
6 May 2013 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824712589 

 e-mail: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the CABINET to be held at 10.00 am on 
TUESDAY, 14 MAY 2013 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN. 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G Williams 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 

 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

4 MINUTES  (Pages 5 - 16) 

Public Document Pack



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

 To receive the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 16 April 2013 (copy 
enclosed). 
 

5 FAITH BASED PROVISION  (Pages 17 - 268) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
(copy enclosed) informing Cabinet of the findings of the initial informal 
consultation on the future of faith based provision and seeking approval to 
commence the next formal stage of public consultation on proposals to close 
Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St. Brigid’s School and to 
open a new school. 
 

6 FINANCE REPORT  (Pages 269 - 278) 

 To consider a report by Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for 
Finance and Assets (copy enclosed) detailing the latest financial position and 
progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

7 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 279 - 284) 

 To receive the enclosed Cabinet Forward Work Programme and note its 
contents. 
 

PART 2 - CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
It is recommended in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, that the Press and Public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following item of business because it is 
likely that exempt information as defined in paragraphs 14 and 15 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed. 
 

8 TRANSFORMING TRANSPORT - REGIONAL PASSENGER TRANSPORT 

COLLABORATION PROJECT  (Pages 285 - 346) 

 To consider a confidential report by Councillor David Smith, Lead Member for 
Public Realm (copy enclosed) seeking Cabinet’s agreement to the 
development of a Full Business Case for the phased implementation of a 
single integrated unit for the delivery of passenger transport services in North 
Wales.  
 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP 

 

Councillors 

 
Hugh Evans 
Julian Thompson-Hill 
Eryl Williams 
Bobby Feeley 

Hugh Irving 
Huw Jones 
Barbara Smith 
David Smith 



 
Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive  Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc 

Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.   
Ffôn/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446 

  
 
COPIES TO: 

 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 

 
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held in Conference Room 1a, County Hall, Ruthin on 
Tuesday, 16 April 2013 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 

 

Councillors Hugh Evans (Chair), Julian Thompson-Hill, Eryl Williams, Bobby Feeley, 
Hugh Irving, Huw Jones, Barbara Smith and David Smith. 
Councillor Raymond Bartley, Councillor Meirick Lloyd Davies, Councillor Paul Penlington, 
Councillor Merfyn Parry, Councillor David Simmons, Councillor Huw Williams and 
Councillor Win Mullen-James attended as observers. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 

 
Chief Executive (MM), Corporate Directors: Economic and Community Ambition (RM), 
Customers (HW), Modernisation and Wellbeing (SE), Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services (GW), Head of Business Planning and Performance (AS), Chief Accountant 
(RW), Corporate Improvement Team Manager (TW) and Administrative Officer (CIW). 
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
None received. 
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 
No Members declared any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at the meeting. 
 

3 URGENT MATTERS  

 
No items were raised which in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act, 1972. 
 

4 MINUTES  

 
The Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on Tuesday, 19th March, 2013 were 
submitted.    
 
RESOLVED:- that the Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 19th March, 2013 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Leader. 
 

5 FINANCE UPDATE REPORT  

 
Councillor J. Thompson Hill presented the report, circulated previously, which 
detailed the Council’s revenue budget and savings as agreed for 2012/13 as at the 
end of March 2013, and provided a summary update of the Capital Plan, Housing 
Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



 
He explained that the latest revenue budget forecast had been presented as 
Appendix 1 and indicated an under spend across service and corporate budgets of 
£994k, £1.1m last month, which represented a variance of 0.86% across the total 
net budget. Approximately £849k had been committed to fund expenditure early in 
2013/14 or had been proposed for use by services next year, with the available 
under spend being potentially only £111k.  The position for schools forecasts 
positive net movement on balances of £294k, £306k last month, on delegated 
budgets and £176k on non-delegated school budgets, £161k last month.  The 
movement on non-delegated budgets related to the number of CRB checks 
required during the year being fewer than planned.  The Housing Revenue Account 
summary had also been included in Appendix 1 for information, but this was not 
part of the Council’s main revenue budget.  
 
The Council included a net saving target for the year of £3.443m in the 2012/13 
budget and 99.3% of the savings had either been achieved or replaced amounting 
to £3.418m. The remaining £25k related to the printer rationalisation project which 
had been deferred to next year.    
  
The narrative supporting services forecasts in the last three finance reports had 
referred to several proposals to make contributions to reserves or to carry funding 
forward to 2013/14.  In many cases the timing of expenditure had been the issue.  
The final outturn report to Council in June would formally approve transfers to or 
from reserves or balances, including carry-forwards.  Appendix 2 provided a 
summary of the items discussed in previous cabinet reports for information.   
 
Details of notable service variances had been included in the report and were 
summarised for Members, the key areas and issues included:- 
 
Adult & Business Services - Outturn was currently break-even with any in year 
over-spend being funded from the Supporting People reserve. 
 
Highways & Environment Services – Under spend had increased by £12k to £205k 
due a number of small increases in projected income levels.  The Highways and 
Infrastructure under spend had decreased by £116k to £58k with change details 
being included in the report. 
 
The following responses were provided in reply to questions from the Leader:- 
 
- The increase in income levels had not resulted from an increase in charges 
but had been based on forecasts of income received. 
- As a result of the severe weather conditions experienced the Winter 
Maintenance budget would be utilised and this would be offset by the general 
maintenance budget.  Confirmation was provided that, in conjunction with 
neighbouring Authorities, a bid would be submitted for emergency funding.  
Councillor D.I. Smith explained that all North Wales Authorities would be seeking 
financial support from Welsh Government to repair the damage caused to the road 
network by the severe weather conditions.  Councillor Smith agreed to convey the 
concerns expressed by Councillor Feeley regarding the standard of work 

Page 6



undertaken by the jetpatcher.  The Chief Executive highlighted the importance of 
increasing the budget available for highway maintenance works.   
 
Councillor E.W. Williams referred to areas of the County, particularly rural areas, 
where the condition of the roads had deteriorated drastically as a result of the 
severe weather conditions.  He requested that the areas in question be noted and 
included in the highways forward work programme, and a copy of the programme 
be circulated to all Members.  Councillor D.I. Smith explained that the Section 
Manager: Network Management would be attending Member Area Group meetings 
and this would provide Members with the opportunity to convey their concerns and 
preferences with regard to  future projects. 
 
Children & Family Services – The service forecast to under spend by £138k, £35k 
under last month, due to a £83k saving on the adoption fees budget.  The fostering 
recruitment campaign had been delayed and the £20k earmarked would be carried 
forward to 2013/14. 
 
Housing & Community Development - Pressure reported related to funding of 
redundancy costs within Regeneration.  
 
Communications, Marketing & Leisure – There had been an under spend of £27k, 
£1K last month, however £25k related to a rolled forward under spend from 2011/12 
on the Communications & Marketing budget.  It was proposed that the £25k be 
earmarked to fund the review next year.   
 
ICT/Business Transformation – Last month’s under spend of £27k had included 
provision for possible costs associated with a software licence audit by IBM which 
initially indicated a potential increase to the Council’s licensing costs.  Costs would 
not increase as a result of the audit.  
  
Customers & Education Support – There had been a decrease in under spend by 
£26k from last month to £232k due to the planned transfer of the £35k under spend 
on School Reorganisations to the Modernising Education Reserve to help fund 
future school reorganisation costs as highlighted in last month’s report. 
 

School Improvement & Inclusion – Minor changes to the projected outturns for 
Special Education, Behaviour Support and recoupment had resulted in a decrease 
in the projected under spend from £142k to £126k.  The service proposal being for 
it to be used to contribute to the funding of the protection for schools affected by the 
recent changes to the funding formula. 
 
Schools – The projection for school balances had been £2.114m, £2.125m last 
month which was a positive movement of £294k on the balances brought forward 
from 2011/12.  The Council continued to work with two schools in financial difficulty 
and both schools had been actively working to the targets set out in the plans.  
Non-delegated school budgets had been forecast to be £176k under spent.  The 
total cost of the protection had been estimated to be £775k in 2013/14.   
 
 Corporate Budgets – These had been set assuming £1.7m was transferred to 
reserves as part of the funding strategy for the Corporate Plan.  It had been 

Page 7



anticipated that budgets earmarked to generate cash in 2012/13 would generate 
more than the £1.7m target and £75k had been forecast.  
   
 Expenditure to the end of March was £28.1m against an agreed Capital Plan of 
£31.1m.  Accruals for committed expenditure of £3m would mean the forecast 
expenditure would be achieved.  Appendix 3 detailed how the Capital Plan would 
be financed, and an update of the major projects within the Plan had been detailed 
in Appendix 4.  The capital financing budget forecast outturn had been amended 
from last month to assume a balanced budget.  The movement of £150k had 
created an opportunity to repay debt which had reduced the Council’s capital 
financing requirement. 
 
 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) forecast had been an in-year surplus of 
£72k, a £12k deficit reported last month, which compared to a budgeted surplus of 
£71k.  The movement had resulted from expenditure on management and 
maintenance being less than forecast and rent yields improving and the balance 
carried forward had been forecast at £943k. The Housing Capital Plan forecast had 
reduced slightly as planned expenditure would roll forward into 2013/14.  The 
Welsh Housing Quality Standard would be achieved by the end of 2013/14 and a 
recent review of the Housing Stock Business Plan confirmed it remained financially 
viable.  A summary of the Housing Revenue Account and Capital Plan had been 
included in the report.  
 
The savings agreed for 2012/13 had been achieved or replaced, with one item 
deferred to next year.  The financial markets remain uncertain and continued to limit 
the number of institutions with which the Council could invest and the strategy of 
making short term investments would be likely to continue for the medium term.   At 
the end of March, total borrowing had been £133.27m at an average rate of 5.77% 
and total investments had been £11m at an average rate of 0.77%. 
 
 During the ensuing discussion, it was:- 
 

RESOLVED:- that Cabinet notes the progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

6 WELSH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON 2014 / 2020 ESF AND ERDF 

STRUCTURAL FUNDS PROGRAMMES  

 
Councillor Hugh Evans presented the report, circulated previously, which detailed 
the Denbighshire County Council responses to the Welsh Government 
Consultations on the new European Funding Programmes for 2014-2020. 
 
It was explained that following a Workshop held on the 20th March, 2013, consisting 
of key Denbighshire Officers and Members including members of the North Wales 
Economic Ambition Board, Rural Development Plan Partnership and Local Action 
Group, a draft response had been formulated to the Welsh Government 
Consultations on the new European Funding Programmes for 2014-2020.  
Consideration had been afforded to the Corporate Priorities and other Welsh 
Government Regional Policies, and Cabinet had been requested to confirm support 
for these responses on behalf of the County Council. 
 

Page 8



In January, 2013 Welsh Government had launched parallel public consultations on 
both the Structural Funds and Rural Development Programmes for 2014-2020.  The 
consultation documents had contained a proposed programme strategy, investment 
priorities, cross-cutting themes, explored some of the key implementation and 
delivery issues and included the evidence base. The proposals for the new 
Structural Fund programmes had been developed with a focus on growth and jobs, 
which had been in line with Welsh Government policy, and the Europe 2020 goals 
of smart, sustainable and inclusive growth. 
 
For the programming period 2014-2020 it was expected that West Wales and the 
Valleys would qualify as a “less developed region”: the highest level of support 
available under the next round of Structural Funds programmes.  The actual 
amount of EU funding that would become available during the next programming 
period was subject to the outcome of negotiations on the EU budget by the 
European Council and the European Parliament.  Responses to the consultation 
questions would play an important part in the preparation of the final text of the 
Operational Programmes, which WG would submit to the European Commission 
later in 2013.  
 
Denbighshire had responded to the consultations in order to ensure that in addition 
to aligning with WG and EU policy the final Operational Programme documents 
enable them to deliver actions within Denbighshire’s Corporate Priorities.  
Denbighshire’s responses would be included in a Regional response drafted on 
behalf of the North Wales Economic Ambition Board, and would also be submitted 
to the WLGA to form part of their all Wales response.  The Denbighshire 
Consultation responses had been attached to the report as annexes. 
 
The report included details of how the decision would contribute to the Corporate 
Priorities, costs and their effect on other services, a completed Equality Impact 
Assessment and an outline of any risks and the actions implemented to reduce 
them.  It was explained that a Key Member and Officer Group had discussed the 
consultation responses outlined in the report and further consultation exercises 
would be undertaken as funding opportunities developed. 
 
The Leader stressed the importance of the need to raise the profile of European 
Structure funds within the corporate context in order to support and progress the 
Council’s Corporate Plan.  The competition within the regions to secure funding was 
highlighted and he summarised the proposed themes identified by Welsh 
Government and the key issues incorporated in the response. 
 
Councillor H.Ll. Jones referred to the problems experienced with regard to the 
classification of rural and urban areas and explained that Dyserth had now been 
classified as a rural area.    
 
In reply to a question from Councillor H.C. Irving regarding the provision of support 
for small businesses, particularly issues pertaining to match funding, the Corporate 
Director: Economic and Community Ambition (CD:ECA) referred to the work 
undertaken by the Task and Finish Group with regard to the development of the 
Community Ambitions Strategy, which highlighted the need for the provision of 
improved, more focused and easy to navigate support for businesses.   The 

Page 9



importance of ensuring that businesses were aware of the support available 
through the development of a business advice and support partnership throughout 
Denbighshire was highlighted. 
 
In response to concerns raised by Councillor M.Ll. Davies regarding the need to 
make representations to the Welsh Government for the provision of improved road 
and rail links between North and South Wales, the Leader referred to the work 
undertaken by the Ambitions Board and Members agreed that the matter be 
referred to the Senior European and External Funding Officer to progress. 
 

RESOLVED:- that Cabinet confirms it support for Denbighshire’s responses to the 
Welsh Government Consultations on European Structural Funds 2014–2020: West 
Wales & the Valleys; and the Common Agricultural Policy Reform Rural 
Development Plan 2014-2020: Next Steps. 
 

7 MOVING FROM TOWN TO AREA PLANS  

 
Councillor H.H. Evans presented the report, circulated previously, which sought 
approval for the process for expanding Town Plans into broader Area Plans 
incorporating smaller and more rural communities across Denbighshire. 
  
He explained that during 2011/12, Denbighshire had developed and agreed Town 
Plans for the County’s seven principal towns, excluding Rhyl.  An exercise had 
been undertaken in Rhyl to develop the Rhyl Going Forward Delivery Plan.  The 
Town Plans had allowed community needs and priorities to be identified for each 
major settlement. However, they had not yet addressed the needs and priorities of 
smaller and more rural communities.  In January, 2013 Cabinet had agreed to 
expand Town Plans into broader Area Plans and the report detailed how this would 
be implemented.  The Town Plans for Corwen, Denbigh, Llangollen, Prestatyn, 
Rhuddlan, Ruthin and St Asaph had been approved by Cabinet between 
December, 2011 and March, 2012. 
 
In January, 2013 Cabinet approved an initial allocation of funding for projects 
identified as Year 1 priorities in the Town Plans and agreed to expand the Town 
Plans into broader Area Plans.  The Town Plans Co-ordination Group had 
considered the appropriate process for expanding the existing Town Plans into 
broader Area Plans and had addressed three main questions:- 

i) What was the appropriate ‘area’ for an Area Plan. 

ii) How should the Area Plans be developed. 

iii) What would the Area Plans look like 

The Group had considered two options which included Plans covering Member 
Area Group (MAGs) areas, or areas incorporating the Towns and the communities 
which had a traditional or natural affinity to them.  As Area Plans were intended to 
enact the Council’s commitment to community based planning and its ambition to 
be Closer to the Community, Group Members concluded that the second option – 
Towns and their Associated Communities – was preferred.  The Group had 
considered that such Plans were more easily understood by residents and this 

Page 10



approach would be in line with best practice in community led planning and 
economic development of market towns.  

Appendix 1 set out the communities to be covered by each Plan and these had 
been discussed and agreed by the MAGs and were believed to represent the ‘best 
fit’ natural links between communities and towns.  The Town Plan Co-ordination 
Group decided that in total there should be 9 Plans, the existing 7 Town Plans, the 
Rhyl Going Forward Programme for Rhyl and a new Plan for Bodelwyddan, to be 
developed if the proposed Local Development Plan was approved.  

The Town Plan Co-ordination Group had recognised that good local consultation 
must be at the foundation of the new Area Plans if they were to be truly community 
based and reflective of local needs and priorities.  To ensure consistency of 
approach, the Co-ordination Group had agreed a broad framework for consultation 
and this had been incorporated in Appendix 2.  In keeping with the Town & 
Community Councils Charter, proposals had been designed to ensure that 
Community Councils lead consultation and engagement at local level. 

The Leader highlighted the importance of the role of the Champions and the Group 
had recommended that Town Plan Champions, supported by their Support Officers, 
draw up detailed consultation plans for the smaller and more rural communities to 
be incorporated into their Area Plan in line with the framework and the MAGs would 
be required to agree the local consultation arrangements.  A small number of 
Councillors would have communities within their wards incorporated in an Area 
Plan outside their MAGs and since MAGs would have an important role in the 
development of the new Area Plans, the Town Plan Co-ordination Group had 
considered how best to address this and had recommended:- 

• Local Members be consulted by the Town Plan Champion on how best to 
consult with their individual communities  

• To inform the local consultation, local Members be invited at the start of the 
process to identify any key issues or priorities they were aware of within their 
communities 

• Local Members be invited to attend relevant MAG meetings when the Area 
Plan was being considered for approval.  If unable to attend the Lead Member for 
Tourism, Leisure and Youth, acting in his role as Rural Champion, would ensure the 
interests of all rural communities, including those not normally covered by a MAG 
area, were adequately incorporated into the emerging Area Plans.  

Area Plans would be developed by the Plan Champions based on the local 
consultations carried out and would be reviewed by MAGs.  Once agreed by the 
MAG, the Area Plan would be referred to Cabinet for approval and funding for early 
priorities could be allocated at that stage.  Area Plans were likely to come forward 
at different paces depending on the complexity of local consultation and a target 
date of September, 2013 for all Area Plans to be agreed had been recommended. 

The new Area Plans would have three broad sections.  One identifying the vision 
and priorities for each Town, a second identifying how smaller and more rural 
communities relate to the Town, and a third setting out any specific needs or 
priorities for the smaller and more rural communities.  The consultation proposals 
outlined in the report and set out in Appendix 2 would focus on the second and third 
sections of the Plans.  

Page 11



It was not the intention to revisit the Town Plan section or priorities at this stage, 
although future phases of consolidation and strengthening of the Plans would allow 
issues and priorities to be reviewed as circumstances changed.  A route map for 
future stages of development had been suggested in Appendix 3.  

An outline of the costs and how they would affect other services and the 
consultation arrangements for developing the Area Plans had been set out in the 
report.  The risks associated with implementation of the wider Area Plans had been 
detailed and would be addressed through the process outlined in the report, and 
specifically the consultation proposals set out in Appendix 2.  
 
Councillor H.Ll. Jones emphasised the need to ensure that the rural areas received 
a fair share of the available funding.  He explained that many Town and Community 
Council’s would be appointing new Chairs in May, 2013 and it would be important to 
ensure that the lines of communication were clear and that consultation responses 
were received from the appropriate quarters.  Councillor E.W. Williams endorsed 
the concerns expressed that rural communities could lose out with Town Councils 
assuming control of the Plans.  He explained that communities were self-sufficient 
to an extent but faced difficulties in obtaining funding for projects in their respective 
areas.  The Leader emphasised the importance of ensuring that rural communities 
received the support in obtaining their entitlements in line with the urban areas of 
the County.  The CD:ECA referred to page 49 of Appendix 3 which highlighted 
phases 1 and 2 of the work to be undertaken which would assist in addressed the 
concerns raised by Councillor Williams.  An outline of the anticipated timescales for 
the implementation process for the Plans was provided for Members, and a route 
map for future stages of the development had been included in Appendix 3. 
 
Details of the consultation process were summarised by the CD:ECA who outlined 
the Communication Teams suggested suite of approaches which could be adopted 
to expand on the more traditional methods of consultation.  Members agreed that a 
hard copy of the consultation process be made available to members of the public if 
requested.  In response to a question from Councillor P. Penlington, the CD:ECA 
referred to sections 4.11 and 4.12 of the report which detailed the structure and 
outlined the three broad sections of the new Area Plans. 
 
During the ensuing discussion, Councillor H.Ll. Jones confirmed that he would be 
prepared to attend and address all Member Area Group meetings.  
 

RESOLVED:- that Cabinet approves the process for expanding Town Plans into 
broader Town based Area Plans as set out in this report, including specifically the:- 
 

• communities covered by each Plan, set out in Appendix 1 

• consultation arrangements, set out in Appendix 2 

• expectation that Area Plans are completed by September 2013 
 

8 CORPORATE PLAN 2012/17 - QUARTER 3  

 
Councillor B.A. Smith presented the report, circulated previously, which provided a 
third quarter update, as at the end of December, 2012, on the delivery of the 
Corporate Plan 2012-17. 

Page 12



 
Regular reporting would be an essential monitoring requirement of the Corporate 
Plan to ensure that the Council exercises its duty to improve.  Councillor B.A. Smith 
introduced the report and provided a summary of the Appendix which detailed each 
outcome in the Corporate Plan which included:- 
 

• Developing the local economy 

• Improving performance in education and the quality of our school buildings  

• Improving our roads 

• Vulnerable people are protected and are able to live as independently as 
possible  

• Clean and tidy streets 

• Ensuring access to good quality housing 

• Modernising the council to deliver efficiencies and improve services for our 
customers 
 
The Corporate Improvement Team Manager (CITM) responded to questions from 
Members and referred to the colour coding status definition included on page 57.  
Each indicator and performance measure had been given a status describing the 
current position and the colour provided a description of the status.   
 
It was explained that this was a five year Corporate Plan and that the status of 
individual indicators and performance measures were supported by data and based 
on evidence.  The following areas where further work might be required had been 
highlighted in the report:- 
 
- Work to formalise plans for dropped kerbs had not progresses and had been 
included in the Council’s Strategic Equality Plan and the Corporate Plan.  Councillor 
D.I. Smith agreed to pursue concerns raised by Councillor J.R. Bartley in respect of 
un-adopted roads and planning issues relating to the provision of dropped kerbs in 
the vicinity of developments for disabled persons.  

- The percentage of pupils leaving school without an approved qualification 
was a "priority for improvement" and required continued efforts to improve to an 
"acceptable" status.  The CITM confirmed that that there would be pupils leaving 
school without an approved qualification for reasons beyond the control of the 
Authority and he invited Members’ attention to paragraph 4.1.7 of the report.  He 
emphasised that it would be important to provide an assurance that every 
perceivable action had been taken to address this issue.  The CD:C explained that 
identification of the problems at an early stage would be essential and Councillor 
E.W. Williams felt the improvements achieved at Rhyl High School would have a 
positive impact on the figures produced.  Councillor Williams responded to 
concerns raised by Councillor P. Penlington explaining that issues regarding 
qualification levels would be considered at a Workshop to be held on the 21st May, 
2013. 

- Issuing of fixed penalty notices had exceeded expectation, but the issuing of 
notices for dog fouling had been highlighted as a “priority for improvement” with 
data indicating that only 2% of all fixed penalty noticed issued related to dog 
fouling.  In response to concerns raised by Councillor D. Simmons that the Rhyl 

Page 13



area had been targeted, the CE explained that resources had focused on areas 
where anti-social problems had been identified.  He confirmed that he had no 
concerns regarding fixed penalty notices and that the performance framework had 
been good.  The North Wales Police had stated that they were pleased with the 
work undertaken and had expressed their support for the initiative introduced.  
There had been a significant reduction in anti-social behaviour and a general 
improvement in the environment, which emphasised the significance and 
importance of the project. 

- The percentage of initial core group meetings held within 10 days of the 
initial child protection conference, which was important as it highlighted the 
safeguarding of children through timeliness of core group meetings, had been 
identified as a priority for improvement.  Performance had improved throughout the 
year but needed to continue to improve by around 10% to ensure "acceptable" 
status. 

- The timely determination of householder planning applications had worsened 
demonstrating the need to continue to focus on the determination of planning 
applications in a timely manner. 

The coordination efforts to draw together the information necessary to prepare such 
a report highlighted some data gaps, and more importantly gaps in the structure of 
the economic, modernisation and housing priorities.  Work would be required to 
project data forward and clearly express the Council's ambition for the Corporate 
Plan.  The current position for the majority of indicators and performance measures 
in the Corporate Plan had been understood.  However, a better understanding of 
the Council’s ambition for the future would be required.  This would assist the 
Council in understanding and tracking progress towards its ambition and help 
reporting, as a number of outcomes did not expect immediate improvements.  
Continually reporting something as a "priority for improvement" without 
understanding if they were on track to achieve the long-term ambition for 
improvement could appear unnecessarily critical.  

The Leader felt that the Corporate Plan had played a significant role in the Council’s 
success and achievements and emphasised the importance of ensuring that all 
parties understood their specific roles within the process.  He referred to concerns 
raised at the recent Performance Scrutiny Committee regarding the validity of 
information within the report and explained that the respective Lead Members and 
Heads of Service had agreed the Key Objectives and were aware of the 
Performance Indicators as presented.  He highlighted the significant role of Scrutiny 
in the process and confirmed that any areas of concern should be challenged and 
monitored through the appropriate channels.        
 
Councillor B.A. Smith made reference to concerns raised at the Performance 
Scrutiny Committee and provided a detailed summary of the background to the 
Plan which had been developed by Members and officers.  She referred to the 
indicator within the Plan which demonstrated the success and the measures which 
assessed activities, both of these elements had been based on data and not 
subjective opinions. Councillor Smith confirmed that the Corporate Plan would be 
reviewed annually by the Wales Audit Office (WAO) who had originally agreed the 
Plan.  The HBPP confirmed the Plan had been validated by the WAO and he 

Page 14



agreed to hold further discussions with the Chair of Scrutiny to clarify the concerns 
and issues raised.  He explained that the opportunity for further challenge and 
discussion would be presented through the Annual Improvement Report, which 
would be submitted to the Corporate Governance Committee in May, and the 
Service Challenge process.  Councillor D.I. Smith explained that the Corporate Plan 
would be utilised to assist in identifying and addressing issues which may require 
attention. 
 
The CE informed Cabinet that the report had transmitted clear messages.  He 
made reference to the need for clarification regarding the lack of progress in 
respect of dropped kerbs and the necessity to set targets for improvement, and to 
consideration being afforded to the possible introduction of strategies to address 
the unacceptable issue of pupils leaving school without an approved qualification. 
 
Following further discussion it was:- 
 

RESOLVED - that Cabinet receive the report and note Members comments 
regarding the performance related issues highlighted. 
 

9 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  

 
Councillor H.H. Evans presented the Cabinet Forward Work Programme, circulated 
with the papers for the meeting. 
 
Members agreed that the following amendments to the Forward Work Programme 
with regard to future scheduled business items:- 
 
- Adoption of the LDP Steering Group to be rescheduled from May, 2013 to 
July, 2013. 
 
- The report on Outsourcing ICT Services to Schools be presented to Cabinet 
in June, 2013 and not in July, 2013. 
 
- A report on Regional Passenger Transport be included in the Forward Work 
Programme for May, 2013. 
 
-  A report on the Response to the Consultation on Town and Area Plans be 
included in the Forward Work Programme for September, 2013. 
 
RESOLVED – that, subject to the above, Cabinet receive the Forward Work 
Programme. 
 
The meeting concluded at 11.50 a.m. 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Report To:    Cabinet  
 
Date of Meeting:   14th May 2013 
 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Eryl Williams, Lead Member for Education 
  
Report Author:  Head of Customers and Education Support 
 
Title:     Faith Based Provision 
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report seeks to inform Cabinet Members of the findings of the initial 
informal consultation and to seek approval to commence the next formal stage 
of public consultation. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

A decision will be required by Cabinet to approve proceeding to formal 
consultation and to issue the consultation document for the proposals for the 
closure of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School 
and to open a new school.  

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

The recommendation is for Cabinet:- 
(i) to note the findings of the consultation  
(ii)to approve formal consultation for proposals for the closure of Blessed 
Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School as of 31st August 
2014 
(iii) to approve formal consultation for the opening of a new school as of the 1st 
September in partnership with the Catholic Diocesan and Church in Wales 
Diocesan Authorities and St Brigid’s Trust* to open a new school as of the 1st 
September 2014 
* Inclusion dependent upon response from the Trust 
 

4. Report details. 
 
4.1 The Council, in partnership with the Roman Catholic and Church in Wales 

Diocesan bodies and the Trustees of St Brigid’s School has undertaken 
informal consultation on the future of faith based secondary provision.  The 
Council was clear at the commencement of the consultation that they held 
concerns over the sustainability of the existing status quo for faith education in 
North Denbighshire and that change was essential to ensure that faith 
provision was maintained within the area. 

 
 Informal Consultation Findings 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



  

4.2 The informal consultation occurred between the 5th December 2012 and the 
29th January and included a range of meetings for stakeholders, a 
questionnaire to gain the views of parents and the receipt of numerous e-mails 
and letters from interested parties.  The findings of the consultation (see 
Appendix 1 and 2**) raised a number of concerns of what change may be. 
**Appendix 2 is available on the Denbighshire website and hard copies have 
been made available for viewing at main council offices. 

 
4.3 The questionnaire issued to all parents of pupils attending Blessed Edward 

Jones and St Brigid’s drew 178 responses.  The analysis revealed for both 
sets of parents the main influence on their choice of secondary education 
would be the quality of education.  Differences of note included the distance 
from home and quality of buildings. These ranked a higher importance for 
parents of Blessed Edward Jones (3rd and 4th) as opposed to St Brigid’s (5th 
and 7th).  For St Brigid’s the size of school was seen as more important.  This 
ranked 2nd for them as opposed to being ranked 6th for Blessed Edward Jones 
parents.  In respect of whether a joint Anglican / Catholic faith based education 
would impact on the choice of school, 37.6% of respondents from St Brigid’s 
said they would be less likely to attend whilst 45.4% of respondents from 
Blessed Edward Jones stated that this would have no impact and only 10.4% 
being less likely to attend. 

 
4.4 In terms of the comments received from St Brigid’s parents the main views on 

the case for change (as opposed to observations on the consultation process 
itself) were in respect of maintaining the existing Ethos of St Brigid’s, the view 
that St Brigid’s was a high achieving school and the all through provision (3-
18) at the school.  Outside of the views received from the questionnaire no 
letters or e-mails were received from parents of Blessed Edward Jones.  

 
4.5 In considering the findings of the consultation, whilst there has been a strong 

element of opposition from parents of St Brigid’s against moving towards 
closer working with Blessed Edward Jones, the authority and its diocesan 
partners remain of the view that maintaining the status quo is unsustainable 
long term and that the option of a new school at a new location remains the 
preferred long term option. 

 
 The Way Forward 
 
4.6 To move forward the Council in partnership with the Diocesan partners and 

the St Brigid’s Trust would seek to move towards proposals on a two phased 
approach (see Appendix 3 for the formal proposal document). The initial phase 
would see the existing Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St 
Brigid’s School close on the 31st August 2014.  The new joint faith school 
would open on the 1st September and would initially use the existing buildings 
in Denbigh and Rhyl.  During this time period the Rhyl site (the former Blessed 
Edward Jones Catholic High School) would operate as an 11-16 school whilst 
the Denbigh site (the former St Brigid’s School) would operate initially as a 3-
18 school. 

 

Page 18



  

4.7 The second phase of the proposals would see the existing provision 
consolidated on a new site in the Rhuddlan / Bodelwyddan area.  As the 
change would involve the location of the school moving by over a mile and a 
change in the age range served by the school a further statutory notice would 
be required at a later date.  The timescale for the publication of any further 
notice is dependent on the progression of this proposal but the required 
consultation is expected to have commenced by no later than the Summer of 
2015. (This date will be dependent upon the implementation date for the first 
phase of the proposals). It is anticipated that the project to commence building 
a new school would commence during the 2016/17 financial year.   

 
4.8 The age range of the Single-Site Faith School would be confirmed during the 

Second Phase of the proposal.  Within this the main options would be whether 
the school should serve a 3-16 age range or an 11-16 age range.  The size 
would also be determined during this Second Phase Consultation and it is 
envisaged that this would be in the region of 600 – 750 pupils on the new site. 
It is anticipated that the post 16 provision will be provided predominantly by 
the existing Rhyl and Prestatyn VI partnership.  The further consultation would 
confirm how such provision would be delivered. It is envisaged that the 
majority of courses would be provided via the existing Partnership which 
delivers provision at the  Coleg Llandrillo, Rhyl and Prestatyn High School 
facilities.  The new school would host a small range of courses as part of the 
partnership to ensure that elements of post 16 can be delivered by the faith 
providers.   

 
4.9 Should approval be granted then this formal stage of consultation would take 

place during June and July of 2013. The findings of the consultation period 
would then be reported to elected members and the diocesan authorities in the 
autumn of 2013. At this stage should all partners wish to proceed with the 
proposal Cabinet will be required to approve the publication of statutory 
proposals to close the two schools and open the new school and interested 
parties may make formal objections.   Should the notice be published after the 
1st October the proposal will be considered under the new School Standards 
and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013.  Within this Act, should objections be 
received the final decision will reside with either the local authority or the 
Minister for Education dependent upon the nature of objections received.  

 
4.10 The Council’s 21st Century Schools Programme, to be delivered in partnership 

with the Welsh Government, includes potential funding for faith secondary 
provision.  Any funding award would be dependent on progressing school 
organisation proposals.  It is also noted that the Council is in discussions with 
the Welsh Government for confirmation regarding the level of contribution that 
will be required for any capital project that may arise. 

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

The proposal supports the priority of “Improving performance in education and 
the quality of our school buildings” and has been highlighted as a workstream 
as follows: 

 

Page 19



  

“We will continue to review school provision across the County to ensure that 
we provide the right number of school places, of the right type, in the right 
location.” 

 
5. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 

Should the proposals proceed and become implemented it is anticipated that 
there will be a need for support from HR and Legal to confirm the procedures 
to dissolve the existing governance structures for both schools and establish 
new joint arrangements between all promoters.   

 
6. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 

 
The EqIA undertaken on the proposal suggested that there would be minimal 
impact in respect of the first phase of the proposal.  The development of a joint 
faith provision could be seen to promote greater inclusion and provide an 
improved educational offer (Anglican Secondary education) which has not 
previously been available within Denbighshire. 

7. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

Full consultation has been undertaken with all stakeholders and the findings 
from the Informal Consultation period are attached as Appendix 1. The 
Diocesan Authorities and the Trustees of St Brigid’s as potential co-promoters 
were all invited by the 10th May 2013 to make comment on the draft 
Consultation document and to indicate whether they supported the proposal in 
advance of any decision to proceed by Cabinet.  The views of these respective 
bodies will be tabled at the Cabinet meeting on the 14th May 2013. 

 
 
8. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

The cost of the formal consultation is not thought to be significant and should 
be contained within existing resources. The outcome may ultimately lead to 
significant capital investment by the council as part of the 21st Century 
Schools Programme which is included in the Corporate Plan. The consultation 
will inform the detailed business case which will be subject to the council's 
approval process for all capital expenditure.   
 

9. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

There is a strong possibility that the proposal could result in adverse publicity 
for the Council and in adverse public comments.   

 
To minimise this risk the Council will seek to ensure clear communication with 
all stakeholders. 

 
10. Power to make the Decision 
 

Page 20



  

s29 School Standard and Framework Act 1998.  
School Standards and Organisations (Wales) Act 2013 
Modernising Education Policy Framework (approved by Cabinet January 
2009) 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Modernising Education

Joint Faith Provision Review

Informal Consultation Report
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Modernising Education 
 

Joint Faith Provision Review
 

Informal Consultation Report
  

APPENDIX 1 

Joint Faith Provision Review 

Informal Consultation Report 

Page 23



APPENDIX 1 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. Denbighshire County Council carried out an informal consultation (the Informal 
Consultation) between 6 December 2012 and 29 January 2013 into joint faith based 
secondary provision in north Denbighshire. 
 

1.2. A consultation paper entitled “Case for Change” (Consultation Paper) was produced 
setting out, amongst other things, the current position, options for, and the impact of, 
change and confirmed the next steps.  The Consultation Paper was sent out to the 
head teachers at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School (BEJ) & St Brigid’s 
School (SB), the Bishops and key office holders in the Roman Catholic Diocese of 
Wrexham and the Anglican Diocese of St Asaph (Diocese) and the trustees of the St 
Brigid’s Trust (SB Trust). 
 

1.3. A summary of the Consultation Paper (the Summary Consultation Paper) containing 
a questionnaire (the Questionnaire) was sent to the teachers, staff members and 
parents of pupils at BEJ and SB.   The Summary Consultation Paper constituted an 
abridged version of the Consultation Paper stated that a proposal to consider what 
faith based secondary education provision in north Denbighshire might look like in the 
future, the possibility of joint working between BEJ and SB should be considered and 
the reasons why this should take place. 
 

1.4. The Summary Consultation Paper made it clear that: 
 

1.4.1. No proposals for change were being considered and no changes will take place 
at that stage;  

1.4.2. Any options for change arising through and/or following the Informal 
Consultation would then have to be considered and discussed by the Diocese, 
School Trust and DCC;  

1.4.3. DCC’s cabinet of elected members (Cabinet) would then have to make a 
decision as to whether any proposals should be given formal consideration; 

1.4.4. If Cabinet approved proposals for formal consideration, the process of 
consultation would again be carried out in accordance with statutory provisions; 

1.4.5. Parents could make their views known by attending meetings in January and by 
completing the Questionnaire. 

 

2. Meetings 
 

2.1. DCC arranged an held consultation meetings with the following stakeholders at both 
schools: 

 
2.1.1. Governors; 
2.1.2. Teachers; 
2.1.3. Parents; and 
2.1.4. Pupils. 
 

2.2. The meetings all took place in January 2013 and each provided the stakeholders 
present the opportunity to ask questions and express their views and opinions.   
 

2.3. Elin Davies, Learner Voice Champion who works in DCC’s 14 -19 Network conducted 
the pupil meetings.  The tone and content of those meetings was tailored specifically to 
ensure the pupils were able to understand and engage as fully as possible.  For 
example, ‘ice-breaking’ exercises and interactive activities were used to make the 

Page 24



APPENDIX 1 

pupils feel able to participate: as opposed simply to delivering a lecture and asking for 
any questions.  The findings of the Pupil meetings are set out in Appendix E. 
 

3. Questionnaire and correspondence 
 

3.1. The Questionnaire was designed to elicit information relating to the need for a faith 
school, attitudes towards travel to school and the factors which influence people in 
their choice of school.  It also provided stakeholders with the opportunity to detail any 
other issues they wished to raise.  The results of the responses to the Questionnaire 
are set out in Appendix D. 

 
3.2. DCC also received letters and emails from interested parties relating to the Informal 

Consultation.  The findings have been analysed and are set out in Appendix A.  
Copies of redacted letters from stakeholders who gave consent to their comments 
being used are set out in Appendix B together with an index of the PDF files showing 
which have been redacted in whole (and will therefore contain no readable information 
and should be ignored) and in part (and may therefore be read) which is set out in 
Appendix C. 
 

Page 25



 

 

4 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

Issues raised by letter and email during the informal consultation process 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 During the course of the Informal Consultation DCC has received from parents, teachers and other interested parties (Interested Parties) letters, 

emails and additional comments in respect of questions 6 and 8 of the questionnaires and made by petitioners to an online petition set up by the St 
Brigid’s Action Group (as to which see section 4 below).  This document analyses the nature of the comments received and sets out the percentage 
of Interested Parties making those comments.   

1.2 This document splits the responses and analysis into the following sections: 

• Section 2 – Letters and emails;  

• Section 3 – Additional comments in the questionnaire; and  

• Section 4 – Comments made in the online petition. 

2. Summary of the points raised in letters and emails  
 
2.1 DCC received 116 letters and emails in response to the initial consultation.  It should be noted that all of those letters and emails were from Interested 

Parties who wrote exclusively in respect of St Brigid’s (SB).  No letters or emails were received from Interested Parties from Blessed Edward Jones 
(BEJ).   

2.2 A total of 75 separate issues were noted.  The 10 most frequently raised issues have been summarised and noted below. 
 

No Description of issue raised %age of Interested  

Parties raising this issue 

1. Consultation Process itself (30) 

Doubt cast over validity of the consultation process: the decision has already been made/the questionnaire is 
designed to produce a skewed view/inconsistent information/lip service paid to views 

53.45 

2 Extend the consultation period (16) 

The consultation period should be extended 

45.69 

3 Ethos (5) 41.38 

P
age 26



 

 

5 

 

SB has a small, caring, warm, loving family/community atmosphere where everyone knows one another/ teachers 
know the children by name: ETHOS 

4 Academic achievement (7) 

SB is Denbighshire's most successful/high performing school with the best exam results/out-performs some private 
schools 

37.07 

5. All through provision (23) 

The 3 - 19 provision is beneficial as it smooths the stressful transition process/encourages interaction between 
different age groups/allows children to stay on for 6th form/should be extended by increasing the size of SB 

32.76 

6. Calibre of person produced (4) 

SB produces well mannered, happy, well-disciplined, confident etc. people with good morals who contribute to our 
community as opposed to being a burden 

31.03 

7. Against merger/closure (10) 

Object to/against SB closing/amalgamating with BEJ/forming a new school 

27.59 

8. Quality (1) 

High quality Education at SB 

20.69 

9. Invest in SB (28) 

SB should have money invested in it to improve buildings (extend, remodel, upgrade) and facilities 

20.69 

10. Prepared to travel to the right school (2) 

Prepared to travel a long distance to go to SB: pay the associated fuel, public transport, uniform and other ancillary 
costs because it is an excellent school 

16.38 

 

P
age 27



 

 

6 

 

3. Issues raised by virtue of the additional comments section in the responses to the DCC questionnaire 
 
3.1 A total of 178 completed questionnaires have been received; of that figure, 101 were from SB Interested Parties and the balance of 77 was from BEJ 

Interested Parties.   
3.2 The 10 most frequently raised issues contained in the completed questionnaires in respect of each set of Interested Parties have been summarised 

and noted below. 
 SB respondents 
 

No Description of issue raised &age of Interested  

Parties raising this issue 

1. 
Ethos (5) 

SB has a small, caring, warm, loving family/community atmosphere where everyone knows one 
another/ teachers know the children by name: ETHOS 

 

50.5 

2 Academic achievement (7) 

SB is Denbighshire's most successful/high performing school with the best exam results/out-
performs some private schools 

 

27.72 

3 Quality (1) 

High quality Education at SB 

 

24.75 

4 All through provision (23) 

The 3-19 provision is beneficial as it smooths the stressful transition process/encourages 
interaction between different age groups/allows children to stay on for 6th form/should be 
extended by increasing the size of SB 

 

22.77 

5. Prepared to travel to the right school (2) 

Prepared to travel a long distance to go to SB: pay the associated fuel, public transport, 
uniform and other ancillary costs because it is an excellent school 

 

20.79 

6. Against merger/closure (10) 

Object to/against SB closing/amalgamating with BEJ/forming a new school 

 

19.8 

7. Consultation Process itself (30) 

Doubt cast over validity of the consultation process: the decision has already been made/the 

 

P
age 28



 

 

7 

 

questionnaire is designed to produce a skewed view/inconsistent information/lip service paid to 
views 

18.81 

8. Invest in SB (28) 

SB should have money invested in it to improve buildings (extend, remodel, upgrade) and 
facilities 

 

15.84 

9. High quality teaching and support (53) 

Teaching standards and levels of additional support are excellent at SB 

 

14.85 

10. Children enjoy SB (37) 

Children enjoy being educated at SB and thrive there. 

 

13.86 

 
BEJ Respondents 

 

No Description of issue raised &age of Interested  

Parties raising this issue 

1. Proximity to school (56) 

Being able to walk to school/living close to school is an important consideration 

 

40.26 

2 Consultation Process itself (30) 

Doubt cast over validity of the consultation process: the decision has already been made/the 
questionnaire is designed to produce a skewed view/inconsistent information/lip service paid to 
views 

 

6.49 

3 New School in Rhyl (86) 

Any new school must be in Rhyl: because there are more potential pupils in and around the 
Rhyl area/more children from disadvantaged backgrounds 

 

6.49 

4 Small size (87) 

The small size and family environment is why we chose BEJ 

 

5.19 

5. High quality teaching (89) 

The teachers are excellent at BEJ 

 

3.9 

P
age 29



 

 

8 

 

6. Won’t send children to a new school (25) 

We will not send our child/ren to any new school[/outside of Denbigh] 

 

2.6 

7. Status quo (31) 

[SB/]BEJ should be left as it is. 

 

2.6 

8. Plans for change are unsettling for children (40) 

Discussions re closure and merger/actually moving schools is very unsettling for children (and 
parents) especially those who are already under pressure of performing and achieving the best 
possible results. 

 

2.6 

9. Free transport (69) 

If a new school is built, existing pupils should be entitled to free transport 

 

2.6 

10. Quality (88) 

BEJ has a good standard of education 

 

2.6 

 
4. Issues raised in the St Brigid’s Action Group petition 
 
4.1 Interested Parties from SB formed the St Brigid’s Action Group (SBAG) to consider the Informal Consultation and present a united front in respect of 

what it perceived to be DCC’s intention to close SB and merge it with BEJ.  SBAG has created an online petition, which as at 26 February 2013 had 
411 electronic signatures.   

4.2 Many of the petitioners had also left additional comments; the 10 most frequently raised issues contained in the petition have been summarised and 
noted below.  

No Description of issue raised &age of Petitioners raising this issue 

1. Against merger/closure (10) 

Object to/against SB closing/amalgamating with BEJ/forming a new school 

100 

(by virtue of signing the petition) 

2 Save our school (91) 

Keep SB open/save SB/we'll not let this happen 

14.11 

3 Ethos (5) 

SB has a small, caring, warm, loving family/community atmosphere where everyone knows one 
another/ teachers know the children by name: ETHOS 

9.25 

P
age 30



 

 

9 

 

4 Academic achievement (7) 

SB is Denbighshire's most successful/high performing school with the best exam results/out-
performs some private schools 

4.62 

5. Calibre of person produced (4) 

SB produces well mannered, happy , well-disciplined, confident etc. people with good morals 
who contribute to our community as opposed to being a burden 

4.14 

6. Small Size (19) 

The small size of SB and/or BEJ is the reason for high volume of pupils/success 

2.43 

7. High quality teaching and support (53) 

Teaching standards and levels of additional support are excellent at SB 

2.19 

8. Quality (1) 

High quality Education at SB 

1.95 

9. Invest in SB (28) 

SB should have money invested in it to improve buildings (extend, remodel, upgrade) and 
facilities 

1.7 

10. Status quo (31) 

SB/BEJ should be left as it is. 

1.7 

 
5. Analysis of and response to key themes 
 
5.1 Each response was considered and each point made noted to form a list of the types of points.  This list is set out below and shows the generic 

descriptions for each type of comment made, together with a brief response to the comment type.   
 

No Comment type Responses from Promoters 

1.  High quality Education at SB The new school would seek to maintain or enhance existing 
standards of education for pupils 

2.  Prepared to travel a long distance to go to SB: pay the associated fuel, 
public transport, uniform and other ancillary costs because it is an 
excellent school 

It is anticipated that the new school would also be excellent and the 
promoters have high aspiration for new schools 

P
age 31



 

 

10 

 

3.  Rhyl schools deliver poorer standards of education than SB/would not 
want our child/ren educated in Rhyl 

Dispute – see Denbighshire County Council (DCC) details 

4.  SB produces well mannered, happy , well-disciplined, confident etc. 
people with good morals who contribute to our community as opposed to 
being a burden. 

It is anticipated that the new school would seek to ensure that this 
patterns of behaviour is repeated at any successor school.  

5.  SB has a small, caring, warm, calm, loving family/community 
atmosphere where everyone knows one another/ teachers know the 
children by name. 

Whilst the new school may be slightly larger it would provide 
appropriate pastoral support, small caring communities can be 
created 

6.  Shocked that DCC wants to close/ considering closure/amalgamation of 
SB 

Requirement for DCC 

7.  SB is Denbighshire's most successful/high performing school with the 
best exam results/out-performs some private schools 

Analysis of data would challenge this assumption.  Other schools in 
Denbighshire perform at a higher or similar level.  

 

8.  DCC wishes to build a 'super school' with 900 places in Rhyl and this will 
not meet the needs of pupils 

It is unlikely that the school would be based in Rhyl and serve that 
number of pupils.. 

9.  Rhyl has enough investment/Denbigh needs investment The decision as to where a new faith school will be located has yet to 
be undertaken and any such decision will include the community 
impact around location.  

10.  Object to/against SB closing/amalgamating with BEJ/forming a new 
school 

Position noted 

11.  SB needs updating and improving Agree with this statement.  However there are reservations that 
simply investing in the status quo would represent the best use of 
resources.  

12.  Pride: DCC should be proud of SB/ the parents, teachers and 
community are proud of SB 

This is noted and we would welcome that level of involvement in new 
school. 

13.  The SB Ethos could not be replicated in a larger/new school No evidence to support this. 

14.  SB/ BEJ receives the least/very little funding from DCC and/or the 
Diocese 

The revenue funding is allocated to schools based on a clear formula.  
A large element is dependent upon pupil numbers which will impact 
on the level of funding provided.  

P
age 32



 

 

11 

 

15.  The available funds should be split between BEJ and SB/ the schools 
should not be merged but left as they are (Why can't this happen?) 

There are reservations that simply investing in the status quo would 
represent the best use of resources and would meet the criteria from 
the Welsh Government for 21

st
 Century Schools and would not be 

supported by Denbighshire and the diocesan authorities 

16.  The consultation period should be extended The Council was of the view that no valid reasons were provided for 
such an extension 

17.  SB's approach towards pupils with Special Educational Needs/Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder/Learning difficulty/Learning disability/Health 
problems is excellent; we chose SB especially and SB benefits our child. 

Would be replicated and enhanced in new school. 

18.  Child/ren experienced bullying at a previous school but not at SB and 
has progressed really well since moving there 

The new school would aspire to produce a community where bullying 
is not tolerated. 

19.  The small size of SB and/or BEJ is the reason for high volume of 
pupils/success 

 

No evidence to support this assertion.   

20.  A larger school would produce poorer results/ is not acceptable/would 
call for more hierarchy and standards would slip/would not suit my child 

No evidence to support this assertion. 

21.  If a new school is built, it should not be in Rhyl but instead on or near the 
current SB site 

 

Various sites are being considered and no decision has been made 
at this stage. 

22.  SB's location is beautiful/tranquil and that has a positive effect on its 
pupils 

True but new build school required to be excellent from an 
environmental aspect: BREEAM. 

23.  The 3 - 19 provision is beneficial as at smooths the stressful transition 
process/encourages interaction between different age groups/allows 
children to stay on for 6th form/should be extended by increasing the 
size of SB 

Views noted around benefits of 3-19 provision.  Overall the 
disadvantages at this stage outweigh the advantages and it is 
suggested that the new school should be 11 -16 

24.  SB's value added score is better than the county average Girls only? 

25.  We will not send our child/ren to any new school/outside of Denbigh Position noted 

P
age 33



 

 

12 

 

26.  SB's lack of facilities/poor buildings are not what make the school. They 
are not important/ are secondary to the ethos and standards. 

Evidence to support.  Environment is important.  New school will 
deliver on environment and ethos of the school. 

27.  What will happen to the primary school, sixth form and boarders at SB 
(All of which are valued)? 

The informal consultation stage was about gaining views on this 
elements and a definitive proposal will emerge. 

28.  SB should have money invested in it to improve buildings (extend, 
remodel, upgrade) and facilities 

 

There are reservations that simply investing in the status quo would 
represent the best use of resources and would meet the criteria from 
the Welsh Government for 21

st
 Century Schools and would not be 

supported by Denbighshire and the diocesan authorities 

29.  If merger does take place, St Asaph business park would be an ideal 
location: half way between Rhyl and Denbigh, with good transport links 
and lots of space; or somewhere else equidistant from the 2 existing 
sites. 

Views noted. 

30.  Doubt cast over validity of the consultation process: the decision has 
already been made/the questionnaire is designed to produce a skewed 
view/inconsistent or too little information/lip service paid to views 

This stage is non statutory. Guidelines for process which have been 
followed and there will be further opportunities in the next 
consultation. 

31.  SB/BEJ should be left as it is. 

 

This is not considered as a sustainable long term option. 

32.  Adverse environmental impact if SB moved to Rhyl/BEJ moved out of 
Rhyl and/or increased expense/inconvenience to parents 

No evidence to support this. 

33.  The wishes, views etc. of the governors, teachers, parents and children 
should be paramount.  

Are extremely important: hence consultation;  but DCC and Diocese 
have statutory role as promoters. 

34.  SB has an excellent tradition/history etc. 

 

Yes, and it is anticipated that some of the traditions could be 
incorporated into a new school. 

35.  Faith based provision is important. 

 

Yes agree with view. The proposal is about ensuring a strong faith 
based provision for 21

st
 Century. 

36.  SB uniform is distinctive/smart and shows people that you go to SB and 
all that that means. 

Is actually very expensive; lots of consultation needed on new 
uniform. 

37.  Children enjoy being educated at SB and thrive there. Good – this is as aspiration for the new school. 

38.  SB offers wonderful extra-curricular activities/broad range of curricular 
options. 

Good – staff at the new school will be very capable of ensuring good 
extra-curricular activities.   

P
age 34



 

 

13 

 

39.  DCC should merge BEJ with Rhyl High.  Younger pupils could be on the 
BEJ site with GCSE and A Level pupils on the RH site.  This would allow 
smaller numbers on each site and the teachers could instil discipline and 
manners; it would also prevent the younger pupils from being exposed to 
the behaviour of older ones. 

This would dilute the faith provision. 

40.  Discussions re closure and merger/actually moving schools is very 
unsettling for children (and parents) especially those who are already 
under pressure of performing and achieving the best possible results. 

Accept this and at all stages the local authority has been keen to 
stress that there at this stage there are no actual proposals. However 
it is necessary in planning for best educational achievement.  

41.  Happy with the idea of joint catholic and Anglican provision. Excellent! 

42.  If a new school is built, it should not be in St Asaph (already has Glan 
Clwyd and traffic congestion); better that it should be in or close to 
Denbigh 

A variety of planning options are being considered. 

43.  Any new school should have a sixth form This position is supported by the Church in Wales and Catholic 
Diocesan authorities who would work to ensure some element of post 
16 provision is provided.  

44.  What evidence is there to support the statement, "It is not feasible for a 
secondary school with fewer than 600 pupils….to provide the facilities 
described in this vision"? 

Economies of scale within curriculum requirements. 

45.  DCC should publish features of 21st Century Education in respect of 
both schools to show how they could meet the criteria 

This information will be progressed as part of the formal stage of the 
consultation on proposals for change to illustrate the need for 
investment 

46.  DCC should publish financial information regarding the current and 
future costs of both schools (should no change occur), the cost of the 
existing proposals and other options such as investing in both schools 
but keeping them separate/other education projects in Denbighshire. 

This information was not provided at this stage as there were no 
proposals for change consulted upon.  More detailed information will 
emerge at a later stage when there are clear proposals for change. 

47.  The banding comparison is not a true one: the actual grades achieved 
by the two schools show a different picture. 

Banding is a Welsh Government tool designed to reflect overall 
performance based on a range of indicators rather than pure 
academic grades. 

48.  DCC should publish details of the intended use of the current sites and 
the proposed sites for any new school. 

This will emerge in the Formal Consultation for a new school site. 

P
age 35



 

 

14 

 

49.  Concern that the proposal to merge the schools/build a new school is 
politically/financially motivated rather than in the interests of education 

Absolutely not: both diocese and DCC have met over the past 4 
years to plan strategically faith based education in the 21

st
 Century. 

50.  Closing SB/BEJ and opening a new school in a different area would 
adversely affect the economy/community of Denbigh and/or Rhyl 

Community impact assessment will be undertaken when decisions 
are taken regarding changes in sites.   

51.  SB is not a selective school; the entrance exam taken by some pupils is 
simply to establish current educational standard/those already in primary 
school don't take the exam/SB does not cream the top pupils from other 
catchment areas 

There is an entrance exam for new pupils joining at age 11.  
Admission is based on attaining level 4.   

52.  DCC should consider merging BEJ with Ysgol Mair. Does not address the issue of secondary faith based education for 
the 21

st
 century. 

53.  Teaching standards and levels of additional support are excellent at SB Statement noted 

54.  SB currently accepts children from other faiths 

 

Good – Would be replicated in enhanced admission policy – could 
continue this. 

55.  Previous proposals for change could be resurrected and revised in line 
with 21st Century Schools 

Has to be a new proposal – addresses current Welsh Government 
requirements. 

56.  Being able to walk to school/living close to school is an important 
consideration 

Statement noted. 

57.  SB could be used as DCC's template for schools Irrelevant. 

58.  SB's school association (Parent Teacher Association equivalent) is very 
strong and supportive of the school 

Welcomed and we hope the new school has a strong PTA. 

59.  Management of SC (and BEJ) is good enough or if it is not, any issues 
can be resolved without closure 

Not a management issue; it’s about providing facilities for 21
st
 

Century schools. 

60.  SB should stay where it is in Denbigh on the same site and offering the 
same range of education (primary secondary and sixth form) 

Status quo is not an option. 

61.  DCC should explore the possibility of including Islamic and other faiths 
into both schools 

Admissions policy could allocate places to children of other faiths. 

P
age 36



 

 

15 

 

62.  SB and BEJ can work collaboratively without the need to close either 
school 

Collaborative working is very positive; although the status quo is not 
a long term option. 

63.  The new school should be a larger SB retaining the SB branding and 
ethos 

This is not considered as a viable alternative moving forward. 

64.  Merging a good school (SB) with a poor school (BEJ).the 2 schools will 
have an adverse effect on the pupils 

This is not the case. Both schools are in the same Banding according 
to Welsh Government statistics  

65.  The 2 schools cater successfully for very different target markets Every child is equal in the eyes of God. 

66.  Big is beautiful/ One size fits all is not always the best approach Plans devised to make best provision for the area and places 
required. 

67.  Any new arrangements should not jeopardise educational attainment Agree – this is a high aspiration for the new school. 

68.  We want Catholic only education  The Bishops want a shared school. 

69.  If a new school is built, existing pupils should be entitled to free transport Transitional arrangements will look at this. 

70.  Joint faith Secondary school of up to 600 pupils works  Neither school reaches this figure at present. 

71.  SB's selective policy distorts enrolment of some of the more able pupils 
from Prestatyn 

This may be the case.  A new school would aim to be inclusive. 

72.  Amalgamating 2 small schools will be fairer financially on other 
secondary schools 

Yes. 

73.  If a new faith school is built close to Rhyl/Prestatyn, any sixth form 
provision could be accommodated within the Prestatyn and Rhyl 6th 
partnership 

Church in Wales hopes for 16-19 provision.  Obviously co-option with 
existing other providers would be progressed. 

74.  If the schools are amalgamated and an initial split site approach is 
adopted care should be taken to ensure that the standard of education 
does not suffer 

Agree absolutely.  Pastoral care would be provided and any 
transitional arrangements would be carefully considered 

75.  DCC should consider merging SB with Denbigh High DH is not a faith school and would dilute faith provision 

76.  SB's entrance exam maintains standards and any new school should 
maintain this approach 

A selective school is not an option. 

P
age 37



 

 

16 

 

77.  SB has had issues with bullying in the past and teachers were not able 
to control it; its selective policy makes it fairly easy to get good results 

The proposals will seek to provide a new school with strong teaching 
and policies which protect and support children in their learning. 

78.  Welcome the idea of a merger Welcome comment 

79.  SB lacks opportunities for boys (sports facilities/broad range of friends) Yes a new school would provide opportunities for all. 

80.  Our child(ren) travel(s) far enough already This is an issue for parental choice. 

81.  Don't want a new school as don't want child(ren) to travel on the bus and 
can't afford petrol costs/don't want to pay increased costs 

Parental choice. 

82.  There is a considerable disadvantage to Conwy families who wish their 
children to receive high standard faith based secondary education 

The new school will be more accessible. 

83.  If the school moves my child would not be able to attend as we rely on 
public transport at the moment 

Transitional arrangements will be in place to support such instances. 

84.  
  

BEJ has many issues, including old building, bullying and smoking A new school will aspire to have excellent teaching, learning and 
physical environment. 

85.  Things are improving at BEJ Welcome comment – this is an aspiration of any new school. 

86.  Any new school must be in Rhyl: because there are more potential 
pupils in and around the Rhyl area/more children from disadvantaged 
backgrounds 

Not necessary.  This will be a factor in considering location amongst 
other issues 

87.  The small size and family environment is why we chose BEJ In a larger school, smaller caring communities can be created. 

88.  BEJ has a good standard of education  It would be an aspiration of any new school to have excellent 
teaching & learning. 

89.  The teachers are excellent at BEJ Welcome comment – hope many/most come to new school. 

90.  Rhyl's economy has suffered a lot in recent times; if BEJ is closed Rhyl's 
education provision would suffer 

Community impact assessment.  This will be an investment in the 
young people in Rhyl. 

91.  Keep SB open/save SB/we'll not let this happen Recognise the passionate support. 

92.  Encouraging others to sign the petition No comment. 

 
 

P
age 38



 

17 
 
 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

REDACTED CORRESPONDENCE 
(see attached PDF printouts)

Page 39



 

18 
 
 

 

APPENDIX C 
 

INDEX TO THE REDACTED CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 
No Redacted whole/part? PDF Document 

 
Letters and emails 
 

1. Part numbers 1 to 10 

2. Part numbers 1 to 10 

3. Part numbers 1 to 10 

4. Part numbers 1 to 10 

5. Whole numbers 1 to 10 

6. Part numbers 1 to 10 

7. Whole  numbers 1 to 10 

8. Part numbers 1 to 10 

9. Part numbers 1 to 10 

10. Part numbers 1 to 10 

11. Part numbers 11 to 20 

12. Whole numbers 11 to 20 

13. Part numbers 11 to 20 

14. Whole numbers 11 to 20 

15. Whole numbers 11 to 20 

16. Part numbers 11 to 20 

17. Part numbers 11 to 20 

18. Part numbers 11 to 20 

19. Part numbers 11 to 20 

20. Part numbers 11 to 20 

21. Part numbers 21 to 30 

22. Part numbers 21 to 30 

23. Part numbers 21 to 30 

24. Whole numbers 21 to 30 

25. Whole numbers 21 to 30 

25a. Whole numbers 21 to 30 

26. Whole numbers 21 to 30 

27. Whole  numbers 21 to 30 

28. Whole numbers 21 to 30 

29. Part numbers 21 to 30 

30. Whole numbers 21 to 30 

31. Whole Not included 

32. Whole Not included 

33. Whole  Not included 

34. Part number 34 

35. Part numbers 35 and 38 

36. Whole Not included 

37. Whole Not included 

38. Part  numbers 35 and 38 

39. Whole Not included 

40. Part numbers 40 to 43 

41. Part numbers 40 to 43 

42. Part numbers 40 to 43 

43. Part numbers 40 to 43 

44. Part numbers 44 to 48 

45. Whole numbers 44 to 48 

46. Whole numbers 44 to 48 

Page 40



 

19 
 
 

 

47. Part numbers 44 to 48 

48. Part numbers 44 to 48 

49. Whole Not included 

50. Whole Not included 

51. Part numbers 51 and 52 

52. Part numbers 51 and 52 

53. Part numbers 53 to 55 

54. Whole numbers 53 to 55 

55. Whole numbers 53 to 55 

56 - 
114 

Various Email responses 

115. Whole Not included 

No Redacted whole/part? Document 

 
Additional comments (relating to the questionnaires) 
 

1. Part A002 

2. Part A003 

3. Part  A005 

4. Part A006 

5. Part A007 

6. Part A008 

7. Part A009 

 

Page 41



 

20 
 
 

 

APPENDIX D 
 

Summary of questionnaire results  
 

Having your say on the future of faith based education 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This document presents the results from the Questionnaire circulated to staff and 

parents of St Brigid’s and Blessed Edward Jones as part of the Informal Consultation. 
 
1.2 The content of the questionnaire is set out below and the results are shown in section 

2. 
 

Q1 Which school are your children currently attending? 
 

Blessed Edward Catholic High School St Brigid’s 

  

Q2 For each of these children please write their current year group in the boxes 
below 

Primary 
(St 
Brigid’s) 

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 
12 / 13 

       

 
Q3 Using the numbers 1 to 7 please rank the following from most important to 

least important in terms of their influence on your choice of secondary 
education 
Please rank them 1 to 7 where 1 is the most important and 7 is the least important.  
Make sure you use every number from 1 to 7 once and do not use any number 
more than once 

Faith 
provision 

 Quality of school 
buildings 

 

Another 
child already 
at the school 

 Quality of education  

Distance 
from your 
home 

 Size of school  

Ease of 
access / 
transport to 
school 

   

 
Q4 Would a school offering a joint Anglican / Catholic faith based education alter your 

choice of school? 
 

 
 The following questions will assist in the consideration of any future location 

Please confirm your home postcode   

  
Q5 How would the distance of any school from your home impact on your choice 

of school? (Please cross one box only on each distance option)? 

More 
likely 
to 
attend 

Would have 
no impact 

Be less likely 
to attend 

Not sure / 
don’t know 

    

Page 42



 

21 
 
 

 

 No Change  Change Not sure / don’t 
know 

Less than 
3 miles 

   

3 miles to 
5 miles 

   

More than 
5 miles 

   

 
Q6 If you answered ‘Change’ in Q5 please explain why 

 
 

 

 
Q7 The Authority provides free transport for pupils of statutory age attending 

Secondary schools if the child resides over three miles from the nearest 
suitable school. 
What is the longest journey time that you consider acceptable each way (please 
cross one box only) 

0-9 minutes 10-19 minutes 20 – 29 minutes 30 – 44 minutes 

    

 
Q8 Please detail any other issues you may wish to raise 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Please note below whether you agree for your response to be published. With your 
permission, responses will be reproduced – with personal data such as names and addresses 
removed – in reports to the Council on the statutory consultation period. 
Under the terms of the Data Protection Act 1998 we must inform you of the following. 
Denbighshire County Council is seeking your views to help inform the decision on this 
proposal. Your personal information will be used only for this purpose, and may be shared 
with other agencies who are involved in the consultation, however only to address any issues 
you raise. If you do not wish to provide personal details your views will still be considered, but 
we will not be able to acknowledge your response personally. 

Yes, the Council may publish my response after removing personal information 

No, the Council may not publish my response 

Please return to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County 
Council 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

22 
 
 

 

2. Analysis of responses 
 
Q1 Which school are your children currently attending? 
 
The table below shows the total number of completed questionnaires received and the school to 
which those responses relate. 
 

SB BEJ Total 

101 77 178 

 
Q2. For each of these children please write their current year group in the boxes below 
 

Year Group 

SB BEJ Total 

Actual % Actual  % Actual  % 

Primary 57 40 N/A N/A 57 26 

Year 7 20 14 21 26 41 18 

Year 8  15 11 21 26 36 16 

Year 9 17 12 14 17 31 14 

Year 10 10 7 18 22 28 13 

Year 11 7 5 2 2 9 4 

Year 12/13 11 8 0 0 11 5 

Past Pupil 3 2 0 0 3 1 

Did not 
answer/spoilt 

2 1 5 6 7 3 

Total 142 100 81 100 223 100 

 
Q3. Using the numbers 1 to 7 please rank the following from most important to least 

important in terms of their influence on your choice of secondary education 
 

Rank 

SB BEJ 

Option Average 
Score 

%* Option Average 
Score 

%* 

1 Quality of 
education 

1.35 75 Quality of education 1.51 69 

2 Size of school 2.68 8.75 Faith provision 3.64 14.5 

3 Faith provision 3.13 12.5 Distance form home 3.71 9 

4 Another child at 
the school  

4.96 1.25 Quality of buildings 4.24 3.6 

5 Distance from 
home 

5 1.25 Ease of 
access/transport 

4.38 0 

6 Ease of 
access/transport 

5.01 0 Size of school 4.71 0 

7 Quality of 
buildings 

5.73 0 Another child at the 
school 

5.82 3.6 

*This shows the percentage of total respondents to this question who scored the particular option with 
a ‘1’. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

23 
 
 

 

Q4. Would a school offering a joint Anglican / Catholic faith based education alter your 
choice of school? 

 

Rank 

SB BEJ 

Option No of 
responses 

% Option No of 
responses 

% 

1 Be less likely to 
attend 

38 37.6 Would have no impact 35 45.4 

2 Would have no 
impact 

34 33.7 More likely to attend 16 20.8 

3 Not sure/don’t 
know 

14 13.9 Not sure/don’t know 14 18.2 

4 Did not 
answer/spoilt 

8 7.9 Be less likely to attend 8 10.4 

5 More likely to 
attend 

7 6.9 Did not answer/spoilt 4 5.2 

 Total 101 100 Total 77 100 

    
  

Postcode analysis: distance travelled to school 
 

Distance 

SB BEJ 

No of responses % No of responses % 

Less than a mile 2 2.3 34 47.89 

1-2 miles 1 1.15 12 16.9 

2-3 miles 7 8.05 12 16.9 

3-4 miles 10 11.49 4 5.63 

4-5 miles 3 3.45 4 5.63 

5-6 miles 7 8.05 3 4.23 

6-7 miles 4 4.60 2 2.82 

7-8 miles 2 2.30 

8-9 miles 5 5.75 

9-10 miles 5 5.75 

10-11 miles 7 8.05 

11-12 miles 8 9.20 

12-13 miles 4 4.60 

13-14 miles 7 8.05 

14-15 miles 3 3.45 

15-16 miles 2 2.30 

16-17 miles 1 1.15 

17-18 miles 1 1.15 

18-19 miles 2 2.30 

19-20 miles 2 2.30 

20-21 miles 2 2.30 

21-24 miles 1 1.15 

24-26 miles 1 1.15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

24 
 
 

 

Q5. How would the distance of any school from your home impact on your choice of 
school? (Please cross one box only on each distance option)? 

 

Distance 

No change Change Not sure/don’t know 

SB BEJ SB BEJ SB BEJ 

Less than 3 
miles 

68 58 8 7 4 3 

3 to 5 miles 
 

57 23 16 25 7 11 

More than 5 
miles 

47 9 33 32 4 17 

 
Q6. If you answered ‘Change’ in Q5 please explain why 

SB responses 
 

1. My children travel far enough already 

2. Our daughter already travels much more than 5 miles to school 

3. Costs of fuel to take my children to school, ease for myself to get to work 

4. Because St.Brigids is an excellent school why take it away from Denbigh- there will be 
nothing left soon. 

5. Our daughter has a diagnosis of Autism and ADHD. She likes a small environment close to 
home. We would not consider educating her outside the immediate area. 

6. If the school did have to move site then St.Asaph would be the furthest we would want to 
travel to taking into account time, fuel costs and actual location. 

7. I want my child to live near the school site in case of emergencies or sickness, where I or a 
family member could pick her up quickly. I would like to be near for after school clubs, social 
events and parental meetings. 

8. I would not welcome any change to the secondary provision of St.Brigids, it would totally 
undermine the primary and sixth form Denbighshire schools consortium. Secondary is the 
heart of St.Brigids and needs saving. 

9. I fought long and hard for my children to go to a Catholic school in our catchment area. I am 
very happy with their current provision, education, health and safety and their feeling like 
they belong to a lovely family community.  

10. I am a Catholic, as I prefer them (children) to have religious values, I also want them to have 
best quality education. I personally feel that joining Blessed Teds and St.Brigids will drag the 
educational standard which is maintained at St.Brigids. 

11. I would have to consider all other variables which might influence my decision as there would 
be a wider choice of schools to look at. 

12. Could not afford the petrol, didn’t want my child to be going on school bus to get to school. 

13. With travelling costs getting more expensive all the time, it will be a key factor in where my 
daughter will go to school.  

14. I would not consider sending my children to school in the Rhyl area and will withdraw them 
from Catholic schooling in this event (which would be a shame) 

15. Although we have a car, we frequently need to walk to school, so need to be within walking 
distance. 

Page 46



 

25 
 
 

 

16. It would depend on how far it was and if there was free transport available. 

17. We live in Denbigh and I expect that my children should be able to go to a good school in 
Denbigh.  Taking the children to school and picking them up fits in with my work schedule 
and travel.  My children will not  go to a merged school outside Denbigh. 

18. It all depends on the school.  I feel this is a leading question.  Our top priority is not distance 
but QUALITY OF EDUCATION!!! If you merge with another school - we will NOT attend. 

19. Issues of parent getting to work within allotted timescale.  Increase in personal cost, travel 
arrangements must be put in place and minimal costs to those parents affected the most.  
Bus/Taxi service.  Many of the pupils will not be at the nearest suitable school! So will cost 
still be met? 

20. My child has health problems & I need to be able to get to his school quickly on occasions.  I 
will definitely not send him to the new school if it is outside Denbigh. 

21. I WILL NOT  BE SENDING MY CHILD TO THE NEW SCHOOL IF IT IS OUTSIDE 
DENBIGH. 

22. I chose this school as I want my boys to attend a Roman Catholic School, its 1/2 way to my 
place of work employment.  I cannot afford to travel any further, and I would like them to stay 
where they are already. 

23. I send my child to St Brigid's and my three younger god children go there because of its 
Catholic Ethos its provision from 4 - 18 and the quality of the education as well as the 
protective family environment  

24. As we are very happy with St Brigids we are prepared to travel a long way to attend. 

25. The environmental impact of driving more than 5 miles, plus the return journey, twice a day 
would be far more detrimental than our current journey. 

26. I would not send my children to a school at Rhyl, Boddlewyddan, Rhuddlan.  I will send my 
children to St Brigid's or I will if the merger goes ahead move them somewhere else I will not 
send them to the NEW SCHOOL. 

27. I would not like to have my daughter travelling more than five miles as this adds hours on to 
the school day and a large centrally based school does not mean quality education. 

28. I would be willing to make sacrifices financially and give up my time to transport my children 
to the best appropriate school that would meet their needs. 

29. A school in Rhyl would change my mind on the decision as the where to send my child. 

30. Both our daughters have travelled to St Brigid’s.  Distance is not the factor, it is the quality of 
their education and the values they are taught that are not evident in larger state schools.  
However, we will not send them to a school in or near Rhyl. 

31. I would not want my children spending any longer travelling than they do now.  We live 8 
miles from school – if it moved nearer to Rhyl it would greatly increase their travel time.  Also 
extra travel time for me as a parent when they have to stay for after school activities or 
parents evening etc. 

32. Happy to send children to a school over 5 miles away. 

33. Providing a school has a good record of academic achievement and our child is happy in a 
nurturing environment the distance to travel to school would not alter our choice of school. 

34. If I went to St Brigid’s then the distance wouldn’t matter.  You travel for a school like St 
Brigid’s. 

35. Distance is not as important as location.  Denbigh offers reasonable access and vicinity to 
work.  It’s also a pleasing location away from towns and cities with high levels of violent 
crimes, drugs and unsocial behaviour. 

Page 47



 

26 
 
 

 

36. If the school was the same as St Brigid’s, distance would not matter but if it’s another large 
school I might as well use a local large school. 

 
BEJ Responses 
 

1. Why should I change from my home location to suit others when my son is doing well 

2. My son is special need so must be close to home.  My son has a medical condition which 
often means I need to attend school during the day. I am disabled and do not drive, I cannot 
afford taxi fares. I will not send my son any distance as leaving early and being back later will 
make his fatigue worse risking his health. 

3. As a proud Rhyl resident and family from Rhyl within last 120 years I believe we have a right 
to expect good education on our doorstep 1-2 miles to educate up and coming families for 
the next 100 years on as Rhyl is populated enough to expect this.  

4. Do not want my children to use school transport to get to school.  They should be close 
enough to walk ideally as it’s much healthy for them. 

5. I don't have transport, so need the school to be in walking distance. 

6. My child would have no way of getting to school as I don't drive.  Also, in an emergency I 
wouldn't be able to get to school myself. 

7. Less travel is less risk of child being involved in accidents. 

8. As my son is a Type 1 Diabetic I think it is very important to keep the school in Rhyl area.  As 
I'm not a driver. 

9. Preferred school free transport. Currently spending £120 per month for taxi. 

10. If the school was too far to travel, early mornings and home late (winter terms) 

11. The provision of LOCAL secondary education should be just that "LOCAL" and not subject to 
lengthy travel times to and from school. 

12. Both my son and I have mobility issues.  If he needed me in school hours it would make a 
huge difference as I could not get there quickly.  I could not afford taxi fares.  He also gets 
fatigued now so extra time travelling would make it worse. 

13. Too far to walk.  Sometimes both parents go to work before 8:00am 

14. A school should be within a reasonable distance, and ideally in the nearest main town. 

15. I do not wish my children not to be within walking distance to school. 

16. I don't wish for my child to have to travel on her own.  If it's too far I won't be able to get her 
there. 

17. I would prefer my daughter to go to a school closer to home. 

18. I would be worried on dark nights if journey took a long time and lateness at school.  Be 
punctual. 

19. I'm happy with the school the way it is running now. 

20. We have lived more than 5 miles from school before and we had to travel by bus and had to 
leave home early in the morning and didn't get home at night 'til after 6 sometimes 7. 

21. I do not wish my children not to be beyond walking distance from school. 

22. We don't want our child to have a long journey to & from school every day.  Also, she goes to 
homework club in the library most days, so I would have to pick her up then, so free transport 
would not be available, and I have 2 other children to pick up from school at Primary level. 

Page 48



 

27 
 
 

 

23. Our granddaughter walks to school on fine weather days and I take her in the car when the 
weather is bad. 

24. My son walks to school as we have no other means of getting him there. 

25. Rhyl is number 1 on the Welsh Index of multiple deprivation ranking.  It doesn't make sense 
to move a school further away from those already living in poverty.  Many parents don't drive; 
how do they collect their children if they are poorly or involved in accident? 

26. I feel that my child should be able to walk to school if necessary.  Free school buses are no 
use if your child attends any after school activities. 

27. If no transport is available this would make it difficult and I would have to consider if this 
option is viable. 

 
Q7. What is the longest journey time that you consider acceptable each way? 
 

SB BEJ 

Time  No of  
responses 

% Time No of 
responses 

% 

0-9 minutes 27 26.73 0-9 minutes 12 15.58 

10-19 minutes 30 29.70 10-19 minutes 35 45.45 

20-29 minutes 25 24.75 20-29 minutes 22 28.57 

30-44 minutes 15 14.85 30-44 minutes 3 3.90 

Didn’t answer 4 3.96 Didn’t answer 5 6.49 

 
Q8. Please detail any other issues you may wish to raise 

SB Responses 
 

1.  St. Brigid’s is a wonderful school and has done so many wonderful things for my girls and my 
family at large. It would be a disaster to see it close... But be warned we will not go quietly - 
fighting you all the way with the support of AMs/ MPs etc. 

2.  We made the decision to send our daughter to St.Brigids because of the excellent quality of 
education and good discipline which the school currently offers. Our daughter is really happy 
at the school and enjoys the warm family feel the school strives to give. If the school did 
merge we would have to consider removing our daughter and putting her into a private school 
as we feel there is not a school in the area that can offer the same quality of education in a 
small warm and friendly atmosphere that St.Brigids gives.  

3.  St.Brigid’s is an excellent school with good grades and a caring atmosphere. Why change it? I 
will not be sending my child to any future school. 

4.  I sent my daughter to St.Brigid’s because of its friendly well education attitude.  I think it would 
be a shame to move the school when so many girls and boys are at an important stage of 
education. St.Brigid’s is a wonderful family feel school and I think there grades speak for 
themselves. 

Page 49



 

28 
 
 

 

5.  St.Brigid’s was chosen by us for its wonderful reputation and the personal experience I have 
of knowing many ex St.Brigid’s pupils. St.Brigid’s produces well mannered, well rounded, 
intelligent individuals. We wanted this for our daughter and in future her sister. We would stop 
our daughter attending St.Brigid’s and enrol her at Rydal if the proposed new school were to 
be accepted. The discipline, values and moral standpoints adopted by St.Brigid’s are 
exemplary. Our daughter was bullied whilst she attended Bodnant, her life was miserable and 
so was ours. St.Brigid’s has turned everything around. Molly loves going to school and is a 
different child. We are totally opposed to any change to St.Brigid’s.   

6.  Due to our daughter’s diagnosis, she has a Statement of Special Educational needs and 
St.Brigid’s is named on this statement. It was agreed with the LEA that this was the most 
suitable school for her and it has proved to be the case. We are delighted with how she has 
settled there and how the school addresses her needs. If the school was closed and relocated 
out of the area we would have no option but to home educate her. This was our intention had 
she not attended St.Brigid’s. 

7.  I wholeheartedly welcome the idea of a new school building- but at the current site of 
St.Brigid's school- which more children of Anglican/ Catholic faith can attend. This would 
capitalise on the existing high quality ethos and reputation of St.Brigid’s as well as the 
psychology of the beautiful location. School tradition and history should not be 
underestimated. A new school at a different location would simply be yet another 'new' school. 
It seems rash and thoughtless to completely obliterate a 'flagship' and very happy school for 
yet another new style school. Let others share our positive and happy experience of 
education. The provision of a 3-18 school- with faith provision- has to be a significant factor. 
This enables children to develop through faith- hand-in-hand with education. 

8.  A faith based school should be based in the centre of the County. We live in the south of 
Denbighshire and my daughter has a very long journey. This makes her journey even longer. 
Placing a faith based school further north reduces its availability to the population of the whole 
county. 

9.  My daughter was offered a place at St.Brigids after passing an entrance exam. I believe this 
maintains the integrity and standards of the school. Would a new school be 'inclusive' to all or 
would there be minimum standards set? Although I live in Flintshire I chose St.Brigids due to 
the size and family environment of the school.  

10.  I have great concern over the effect on the standard of education if the two schools were to 
merge. I would never considered sending my children to Blessed Edward school and am 
worried how their education may suffer from this proposal.  

11.  St.Brigids should undoubtedly be preserved in its current size and location. St.Brigid's school 
has been producing excellent results year after year, which I wholeheartedly believe is due to 
the small size and location of St.Brigids school. 

12.  St.Brigids successful reputation is being achieved by having reduced numbers thus ensuring 
no child goes un-noticed. Mixing infants, juniors and seniors encourages a caring environment 
where older children see it their duty to behave in a manner that is suitable for all ages. The 
discipline and ethos of the school is liked by the children and parents as it gives boundaries 
which ensure each child can learn in a way where the teacher is respected and listened to. 
The unusual but smart uniform gives the children a sense of pride and self-worth. We live in 
Denbigh and would not want our children to attend a school in Rhyl.  

Page 50



 

29 
 
 

 

13.  In St.Brigids my mother taught for 16 years and I was a pupil for 8 years and I know the value 
of the education provided by St.Brigids. It is not about the buildings, it is about the ethos and 
dedication of the staff and parents. I have decided that if the school is to be re-sited in the 
Rhyl area my child will not be attending.  

14.  St.Brigids is a fantastic school with exceptional values. The family feel to it is wonderful.  I 
don’t think a new school would have the same appeal. I fought for a place for my daughter 
because I felt she would go down the wrong path in another local high school. In St.Brigids 
she still maintains her manners, her friendships, her respect for elders, she is not following a 
path that some of her friends already are! 

15.  Do not agree with any proposed merger. St.Brigids 'works'. If it’s not broken, don’t fix it! When 
more and more schools and education authorities are changing to 3 to 19, how ironic is it that 
you want to take a step backward with faith education in Denbighshire. Think again. 

16.  In the long run might well be in favour of a joint secondary school. However not in Rhyl. 
Blessed Edward Jones catchment area is for Catholic parishes from Prestatyn to Llandudno 
and down to Denbigh but it only seems to serve mainly the community of Rhyl. Do not feel 
short term amalgamation of St.Brigids and BEJ is a good idea, would strongly oppose this 
idea. 

17.  St. Brigids is an excellent school with excellent exam results, I choose St.Brigids for my 
daughter from the age of 8 upwards due to small school numbers, strict classroom 
management and the emphasis on academic achievement. I also chose it due to lack of 
bullying and the location of the school, school grounds etc. Money should be invested into this 
school rather than build another comprehensive where teachers have no idea who pupils are 
and the less able pupils attend. I went to Rhyl High school and was subjected to 7 years of 
hell! St.Brigids needs to stay where it is with the excellent education provision and excellent 
teaching. All pupils of this school show respect and politeness unlike other schools such as 
Rhyl High School, Blessed Edward Jones and Emyrs ap Iwan. 

18.  No amount of new build etc. would compensate for the current provision of education at 
St.Brigids. Review the Estyn reports and parental feedback. Teachers’ commitment is second 
to none. The target setting and future proofing of this school is outstanding. Just watching the 
secondary nativity tonight proves how much love, warmth and heart is within that school 
community. St.Brigids is worth 100% more than any other school in the county. 

19.  If two schools were to join I would seriously consider another maybe private school in the 
catchment area. St.Brigids offers the whole school environment and educational package that 
I have wanted for my children. Their happiness means everything to myself and their family 
including their friends and teachers alike.  

20.  I would be very open to the merging of both schools in a new building in a central 
Denbighshire site. St.Brigids is an excellent school with a great ethos, however there are less 
opportunities for boys such as wider sporting facilities and a greater range of male friends. 
The learning environment and quality of education far outweigh location of the school. 

21.  I consider St.Brigids to be the most suitable school for my daughters yet we have to pay £24 a 
week each to get them there. St.Brigids is an excellent school with extremely high standards. 
Surely a school like this should not be allowed to close or merge. We as a family are against 
the merge and my daughters would not attend the school.  

22.  St.Brigids is a small school and the teacher/pupil relationship is friendly and excellent. Staff 
know all pupils and their home circumstances, which is important.  

Page 51



 

30 
 
 

 

23.  Surely we should support a school which achieves such high standards in education. We 
chose to educate our children at St.Brigids for this reason, we would not choose a larger 
school or one which would involve a longer journey. 

24.  St.Brigids school offers high quality education and has a family atmosphere along with 
religious ethos. While England has the provision of Grammar schools, Wales has none. 
Personally I cannot afford to send my children to a private school. St.Brigids offers children not 
only good quality education but also forms them to be responsible members of the community. 
Children are well disciplined with good manners. You should be able to keep the school as it is 
now and the provision of schooling available from ages 3-19. This is a plea, council should be 
investing in schools with high educational standards. 

25.  My daughter is currently in year 9, I specifically sent her to this school because of the good 
standard of teaching/results and the ethos of the school which I believe no other in the area 
has. I also sent her to this school because it was smaller and promoted family and nurturing 
values which is clearly evident- I believe this is created because it is a 3-19 school. If any new 
school is provided it should include a sixth form to allow those children already in the school 
and new ones to come to complete their education in one establishment with their friends.   

26.  Why is this questionnaire so focused on the distance/journey time to school? Perhaps the 
educational standards and pastoral care provided by the schools should be given greater 
consideration than the mechanism for ferrying the children around. Where do Denbighshire 
Council's priorities really  lie? Is this proposal honestly going to even maintain, never mind 
improve, the educational standards of St. Brigid's?  

27.  The whole point of my child coming to St.Brigids school is because it is a small school, if you 
mix it with Blessed Edward Jones school it will become just like a high school, keep it small, 
my child couldn't cope with that size, so we'd be back to a very unhappy child and parents! 

28.  The size of the new school will be an issue as far as we are concerned. St.Brigids 'works' 
being small, friendly, productive. New state of the art facilities are not important!  

29.  Although our house is a few miles away to St.Brigids school, we decided to send our daughter 
to pursue her secondary education in this school because of the high standard of teaching 
education like other parents are aiming for. Merging the 2 schools would not be a problem as 
long as the above standard will be maintained. Location of a new school building should be in 
between Denbigh and Rhyl- maybe somewhere in St.Asaph or Bodelwyddan. 

30.  I went to St.Brigids (Year 7 to sixth form) As stated I travelled 30 mins to get to/from school 
and I would do this again in a heartbeat. The state of the building meant nothing to me when I 
was a child at this school- cold classrooms/ mobiles/ flaking wallpaper- it meant nothing- What 
does mean everything is the amazing teachers, caring attitudes, amazing ethos, small class 
sizes which means everyone knowing one another- supportive environment - you do not get 
this in bigger schools. St.Brigids is a family- and this family won’t go down- we will fight to 
keep our school. 

Page 52



 

31 
 
 

 

31.  I would like to raise my concerns over the 'transparency' of this proposal. I work within 
education and in North Wales and am aware of contradictions in information given publicly to 
interested parties and information I have 'heard' unofficially from reliable sources. I chose 
St.Brigids for my daughters based on the quality of education it provides and its results, along 
with the continuity of 3-19. I value highly the 'family' atmosphere that a small school like 
St.Brigids provides and as a practicing Catholic family we would not be happy for the school to 
become jointly Anglican. We commute a considerable distance to provide these benefits to our 
children and should the school lose its speciality I may as well send them to school closer to 
home. My hope would be for provision to remain unchanged. If not then to retain primary 
onsite at St.Brigids with secondary provision as a grammar school. 

32.  We chose St.Brigids, among other reasons for its exceptional education. Besides the private 
schools, it surpasses every other school and we live in Denbigh for this reason. If the school 
merges with a less successful school it cannot possibly maintain this. We therefore will not 
attend. Most of the parents we speak to are of the same frame of mind. We don't talk about 
the new school, we all discuss where we're going instead. Not only will Denbighshire lose its 
best school, but it will end up with a brand new empty building. St. Brigids teaches beautiful 
messages- edifying, inspirational moulding youngsters in the way they should go. This is truly 
special. I've not heard of any other faith school doing this with such care or impact. It would be 
a terrible risk to take to merge with a different faith- it would be impossible not to alter how that 
is done.  

33.  As St.Brigids school is a small school and receives limited funding from the LEA- how do they 
justify the economic benefit of building a new school? If as stated a 'multifaith' school is 
planned, aren't the LEA just building another comprehensive school. This will not carry the 
same values and beliefs at St.Brigids. 

34.  I have one daughter in St.Brigids at the moment who has been there since nursery and is now 
in year 8. She is extremely happy there, her education is fantastic and she is excelling in many 
subjects, the school is her 2nd family. I have an 18 month old child and I’m very worried as to 
where this child will go to school and I do not want her to miss out on the fantastic experience 
of going to St.Brigids school, it would be a crying shame to shut this school, it’s amazing, the 
whole place is just truly wonderful, teachers, pupils, everything even the atmosphere. 

35.  I strongly disagree that St Brigid's School should be closed and new school built.  St Brigid's 
School is a unique school with many outstanding features.  It has a very special ethos, with 
total commitment to pupils to embrace school life that cannot be replicated elsewhere.  The 
quality of teaching is very good with excellent results obtained by students throughout their 
education form foundation phase right through to sixth form.  The quality of the buildings 
needs attention, but this could be improved quite easily, with additional classrooms/facilities 
with investment. 

36.  I totally oppose the proposal to merge St Brigid's with Blessed Edward Jones.  St Brigid's is 
the highest achieving school in Denbighshire and has no behaviour/discipline problems.  It is 
also the school which receives the least funding.  Your plans to close it are wrong.  You are 
not saying what your plans are for the infant and junior school at St Brigid's - where will they 
go?  Parents have not been given sufficient time information or reasonable time.  The 
consultation meeting has been held too close to the consultation deadline.  The consultation 
period needs to be extended due to lack of timely information, running over xmas & school 
closed. 

Page 53



 

32 
 
 

 

37.  We like the size of St Brigid's and the family atmosphere it promotes.  The wellbeing of the 
pupils is utmost in the care and education provided.  This would not be the case in a much 
bigger school where your child would just be a number and not personally known by name by 
every teacher and staff member. 

38.  Again, another leading question.  We would not travel any distance (even a few yards) to a 
poor school.  St Brigid's is a wonderful school with excellent standards.  Please don't ruin it.  
We value the 3 -19 aspect and you make no reference to this overleaf as an option.  Think 
about what you are doing! 

39.  1.  New site to be located close to St Brigid's.  Denbigh needs investment. 2.  St Brigid's "has 
the family feel”, children feel safe and secure.  3.  St Brigid's has excellent discipline, good 
manners and children into well-rounded members of the community.  4.  St Brigid's is the 
highest achieving school in Denbighshire!  Outperforming many others so should be valued 
and invested in .  5.  Faith ethos is highly valued.  6.  Distance travel increase will effect 
carbon immersions, the environment and costs in regard to fuel and expense.  7.  Extra points: 
cost of extra fuel, personal work issues, uniform change costs, communication, hope to have 
input in design of new school, if or when it goes ahead.  I will look to education our children 
elsewhere if necessary. 

40.  See Appendix document AS002 

41.  See Appendix document AS003 

42.  The quality of information education and the family atmosphere would be lost if my boys lost 
their place in St Brigid's.  I always wanted them to feel safe and progress and St Brigid's gives 
that.  Fantastic manners and the high standards the school provides.  Also the Ethos of the 
school.  I will not send my boys to any new school.  I want them to continue in the beautiful 
settings.  They are very settled and are doing extremely well a move would be so drastic.  St 
Brigid's is family orientated and you would not get the service elsewhere.  St Brigid's receives 
outstanding results.  Why change this.  I would be happy for St Brigid's to remain on the 
Denbigh Site.  Denbigh is losing far too much. 

43.  See Appendix document AS005 

44.  St Brigid's is a very successful school which takes pupils of all abilities and gets the very best 
out of them  so that they leave the school as well educated rounded individuals.  It is not 
necessary to have lots of equipment and flashy buildings to achieve this, just an environment 
and staff who genuinely care about "their" school and because of their attitude they encourage 
their pupils to work hard and achieve the best they can.  I doubt whether the consultation will 
achieve anything as it seems in the end the proposals will go through, eventually fail and when 
it is too late the movers and the shakers move on and other people are left to pick up the 
pieces.   

45.  This questionnaire does not account for the fact that parents who are willing to travel more 
than 5 miles to take their children to St Brigid's only do so because it is such a wonderful, 
successful school.  I would not allow my children to attend a new faith school unless it was 
based on the model of St Brigid's, and it was a 3-19 yr school.  The Formula St Brigid's has 
works and produces wonderful, rounded people who can only enhance our society, never 
mind its academic results. 

Page 54



 

33 
 
 

 

46.  See Appendix document  AS006 

47.  See Appendix document AS007 

48.  See Appendix document AS008 

49.  We live in Rhyl but choose to pay for our children to travel to St Brigids.  We really would like 
our children to continue with their education at St Brigids as they both used to attend schools 
in Rhyl and are much much happier now they have moved.  If a super school is built we will 
move our children to another school.  Our view is to keep the schools as they are. 

50.  I have two children in primary St Brigid's.  I would not want all three children in the same 
school/vicinity to continuity and security for them. 

51.  St Brigid's is the highest achieving school in Denbighshire.  Schools which achieve such high 
standards should be invested in not broken up to make one large failing school! The council 
should take this opportunity to build on the St Brigid's Ethos and expand the secondary school 
there not close it and destroy the good work all the teachers/governors/pupils have put in  for 
many years.  I support the retention of existing arrangements and the development of the St 
Brigid's site! 

52.  Why does the council automatically feel that is (sic) the God given right to, yet again, interfere 
and rip the heart out of an outstanding  school.  St Brigid's offers a level of care, education, 
and commitment that is second to none.  Please allow it to continue doing an incredible job, 
where children can find exceptional happiness, and the confidence to be independent,   
intelligent individuals.  I have a child at each of the schools in question, but chose St Brigids 
for our youngest on account of its "exceptional" education, and its outstanding credibility. 

53.  For DCC to even contemplate closing St Brigid's beggars belief.  There is something very 
spiritual about St Brigid's that is not relocatable so I for one would not send my child to any 
proposed new school.  Why do you want to get rid of all the good things we have?  Is there 
jealousy regarding the success of the school?  You should be supporting the school in its 
current form and location.  Please listen to what the people (parents pupils) want, not what 
you want.   

54.  Quality of education in a Catholic school are my main considerations.  St Brigid's offers a 
family environment with high standards of behaviour and excellence of education.  Both of my 
children have attended the school since the age of 3 and have benefitted enormously form 
close contact with older and younger pupils that a 3 to 19 Catholic faith school offers.  
Although we would welcome investment in new buildings not at the cost of losing the valuable 
education and family environment.  As working parents the option for children to Board when 
working away is invaluable and also at times when we have had urgent caring responsibilities 
for elderly parents. 

55.  St Brigid's is a lovely small school with a family atmosphere, where children can stay in their 
secure environment form nursery to 6th form if they wish.  It would be a shame to lose this 
environment.  To move the school would create longer journeys for many children and parents 
even though transport is provided.  It appears that the school site move is favouring Rhyl 
pupils as it is a larger school. 

56.  I attended the meeting at St Brigid's on Thursday 10th January.  It was quite clear form the 
views that were put forward by the speakers that they were in favour of a new school being 
built.  They said that no decision had been made but quite clearly from documentation I have 
seen since this was not the case.  It was said that 600 pupils was the minimum number 
needed for a secondary school.  All the documentation I have seen from DCC gives no 
evidence to support this claim so where does this come from? 

Page 55



 

34 
 
 

 

57.  Why would DCC want to close the highest achieving school.  St Brigids should be valued & 
invested in.  DCC need to listen to parents and pupils. 

58.  Very concerned that we may lose the continuity attendant on the current 3 - 19 school.  The 
current education on offer at St Brigids is modern enough and as parents we are very happy 
with the status quo.  Surely 3 - 19 education system is one to emulate and is an example of 
good practice.  The advantages of the small school size allows a personal more tailored 
education - which fits the individual and is much more important than active whiteboards and 
modern buildings. 

59.  I am not going to send my daughter to the new school as it would not have the same family 
atmosphere that St Brigid's has.  I have send reasons separately. 

60.  St Brigid's school has a distinctive and unique ethos/feel, whilst this is not quantifiable it is 
tangible.  It is also the reason we chose to send our son there.  As you state, 'the educational 
standards at St Brigid's are high', so it is important to ensure that this is maintained.  The best 
way to ensure that St Brigid's continues its high quality education, in our opinion, is to 'remodel 
and reconstruct' the existing school.  To be fair, the state of the building is not important to us.  
The quality of teaching and 'family' feel of the school is why our son loves going there. 

61.  St Brigid's would be able to hold 600+ pupils that you keep mentioning/quoting.  Expand St 
Brigid's alone.  We will not send our children to your new school.  Use the £28.8 million 
pounds by giving St Brigid's some of it to expand/regenerate - like Glan Clwyd and Rhyl High.  
These schools have been allowed to put in mobile classrooms ! So don't say these mobiles 
don't fit in with 21st Century Schools! We will not let you close our school! 

62.  We are of Anglican faith and welcome the opportunity to send children to Joint Faith School.  
St Brigid's school buildings not fit for purpose and in need of investment.  If the two schools 
are amalgamated please can we have a new joint faith school on a new site but not in Rhyl. 

63.  I am opposed to the merger I will not send my children there or any future children to the new 
merged school. 

64.  St Brigid's is a beacon of success in Denbighshire.  It consistently returns high levels of 
success in GCSE and A Level results.  In the GCSE 2010 performance tables, Wales Families 
of Schools, St Brigid's achieved highly with 93% of entrants achieving 5 A* to C.  St Brigid's is 
the only school in the area offering continuity of education in age groups 3 - 19.  This is a 
template of education used by Ceredigion CC to explore the future of education in that county.  
See  Appendix document AS009 

65.  St Brigid's is unique in that it offers education for 3 - 19 year olds.  It is a comfort to think that 
my daughter would be able to stay at a school in which:  she is very happy, has excellent 
discipline, a caring ethos, is one of the highest achieving school in Denbighshire - out 
performing some private schools, all the way to sixth form.  Therefore my preference would be 
for the retention of the existing arrangements for the school.  Failing this I would prefer the 
development of St Brigid's on its existing site.  It should be taken into consideration that if St 
Brigid's were to close, this would have a detrimental effect on Denbigh town.  Most children 
travel from other areas,  St Brigid's parents visit local supermarkets, shops, cafes, restaurants 
and leisure centres on a daily basis.  These customers would vanish.  Denbigh needs 
investment too. 

Page 56



 

35 
 
 

 

66.  When our daughter was ready to start school we had 3 choices, we chose St Brigid's as it had 
the best ethos, exam results and environment for our child.  We chose St Brigid's although it 
meant a daily commute of up to 40 miles, which is a small sacrifice for the quality of education 
she now receives.  The easier option would have been to send her to a more local school like 
Ysgol Mair and then onto Blessed Edward Jones but this was never an option for our 
daughter, in fact these schools would have been last on our list, therefore we have absolutely 
no intention of sending our daughter to a new school which has been built to save failing 
numbers and failing exam results in Rhyl.  Our wish is for our daughter to continue her 
education at St Brigid's until she is 18 years old.  

67.  I feel that the closure of the school is a bad idea St Brigid's is an amazing school and for 
myself as a former pupil I wanted my children to go there and learn and be educated to the 
best possible and so far all I see are excellent results; to close would be a bad idea. 

68.  A smaller school like St Brigid's offers a more personal friendly and caring atmosphere. 

69.  The ethos of such a successful school as Brigid's should be regarded as best practice and 
replicated on the same model; not diluted and lost.  I am also concerned about six form 
provisions under the new proposal.  

70.  It is recommended that a light be shone upon high quality education yet Denbighshire seem 
determined to snuff it out in the unseemly chasing of Welsh Assembly funding. 

71.  St Brigid's School offers children of all backgrounds an environment to excel and achieve 
more than they could imagine.  50%of the pupils at the school are there through virtue of 
baptismal certificates.  The 3-19 model seems to actually conclusively work.  The school is 
oversubscribed every year because of its pass rates and good reputation - my only regret to 
date is  that more children cannot attend the school.  The current Denbigh location with many 
classrooms overlooking the Clwydian Range is truly inspiring and the available land for 
expansion at the site makes it attractive.  Moving a faith school further North will exclude faith 
family children from the South of the Denbighshire. 

 
  

Page 57



 

36 
 
 

 

BEJ Responses 

1. We have many issues that need sorting - on old building, bullying, smoking BUT things are 
getting better.  We have just gained a good report from the Inspectors.  Why force us into a 
merger with a different type of school now?  Seems ridiculous.  I have younger children that I 
would Now be sending to Rhyl High (neither of yours).  

2. I prefer a small school with a family environment. I do not agree with 'superschools'.  My son 
wanted Blessed Edward Jones and worked hard to be well enough to go.  The standard of 
education is good, our new head excellent.  With some structural improvement the school 
could continue as is.  If it is a numbers game why not put Ysgol Mair and Blessed Edwards 
together.  A new head at Mair would improve it and numbers would rise.  If you merge 
schools Mair could be at risk as it feeds BEJ.  You do not seem to be looking at how it affect 
S.E.N. pupils who feel safe as is.  I am disappointed parents and pupils were not consulted 
in the early stages.  Will we be listened to? 

3. There is the largest population of available potential pupils residing in Rhyl.  There are 
children from disadvantaged backgrounds whose parents would not entertain them travelling 
even if transport was paid for.  Environmentally it does not make sense to move larger 
numbers of children away from Rhyl.  I embrace the idea of Catholic/Anglican partnership. 

4. Change can be a good thing, but Rhyl has lost its identity lately over the last few years - let's 
not lose its education.  That it needs to rebuild it back to what it once was.  Thank you. 

5. As long as transport is provided free and my youngest son would get a place at the same 
school in 2015.  Quality of education is my primary concern. 

6. I support the proposal of a new catholic only faith based school to be built in Rhyl.  The 
catchment areas for both Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigid’s confirms the requirements 
for it to be built in Rhyl, otherwise the cost to LA for school transport will be immense. 

7. It would be a shame to lose both schools as put together the school will be too large. 

8. Moving a school pupil in a less accessible area of school considering weather & traffic 
conditions is a big thing to consider, congested area makes more risk for students and pupils 
to be involved in accidents. 

9. I feel my daughter is doing well in Blessed Edward Jones and change to new school would 
be upsetting. 

10. It appears that there is no thought put to how children with special educational needs will 
cope with larger schools and extra journey times.  Transport only runs for journeys to and 
from school and not to get a child home during school hours.  It would also make it more 
difficult to attend appointments with doctors etc. around school hours if the school is further 
away.  When do you listen to the pupils?  You took the sixth form away, now you want to 
merge schools. 

11. You're wasting money.  Blessed Edward is a great school.  Why change it?  The more 
schools the better: not less.  If he has to change school I won't be sending him I will pull him 
out of school full stop.  He's got exams soon.  It will wreck his education. 

Page 58



 

37 
 
 

 

12. At the meeting at Blessed Edward Jones recently, the panel had figures which they 
estimated about pupil numbers in the future for our High School, which were about 100 
pupils lower.  As I have 2 younger children I wish to attend this school, I don't think I am the 
only parent with younger children who have not been taken into account with the council's 
'estimated' pupil numbers.  Also, we would like to know which sites have been thought of, as 
most of the parents would be quite interested in the areas. 

13. The teachers and education is very high standard and our granddaughter is happy with the 
facilities and the environment in Blessed Edward Jones CH School.  The school is near 
enough for us to call in and speak to teachers. 

14. See Q6.  I work with families that are most vulnerable in Rhyl.   The town is already in 
decline, please don't move their school.  It is the hub of the community.  Please listen to the 
community not just heads of departments or statistics. 

15. I feel that a decision has already been made by the authorities and any objections by 
parents of both schools will be ignored.  We chose Blessed Edward Jones because it is a 
small local school with a friendly atmosphere and we fell that this will be lost in a bigger High 
School.  (We would have sent our child to Rhyl High School for this). 

16. If a faith school based school is provided more than half an hour away from a child's home I 
believe it would not be good for the child's wellbeing and therefore restricting the family's 
choice.  As part of the catholic community in Rhyl I believe the LEA should continue to give 
families a real choice of faith based education otherwise it is discriminating against belief 
and not giving a choice that every family deserves.  If the faith based school is too far from a 
child's home the choice is restricted (as outlined in Q5).  I thought the LEA had the remit to 
give parents choice not to take them away. 

 

Page 59



 

38 
 
 

 

APPENDIX E 
 

FINDINGS OF THE PUPIL MEETINGS 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Elin Davies, Learner Voice Champion who works in DCC’s 14-19 Network held two meetings 

with the school council at both schools.  The school councils were made up from pupils from 
years 7 to 11 (and in the case of SB only, 1 pupil from year 12). 
 

1.2 The decision to have Elin conduct these meetings was driven by a desire properly to consult 
with the pupils to obtain their views.  Elin works with pupils, not only of this age group but also 
at the two schools.  It was felt, therefore, that her experience would remove at least some of 
the barriers which might otherwise prevent the pupils from engaging in the process. 

 
2. The first meeting 
 
2.1 At the first meeting held at SB, 15 pupils (with representatives from years 7 – 11 (and, in the 

case of SB only, years 12 &13), 1 teacher and 3 representatives from DCC were present. 
 
2.2 The first meeting followed the following format: 
  

Introductions and ice breaker 
 

The pupils participated in an ice-breaking exercise designed to encourage them to sit with 
someone they wouldn’t normally speak with. 

 
Presentation 

 
 The Pupils were shown a Power point presentation containing the following information: 

• At the moment in Denbighshire, there are talks on what Faith education in 
Denbighshire may look like in the future 

• The reason for this is part of the 21st Century Schools Programme 

• There won’t be any decisions made until a full consultation has been held, at which 

point all opinions will be taken into account 

• We want to know what you think about your school, and what a perfect school would 

look like 

• Denbighshire has 2 secondary faith schools 

• Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School – 2012 had 480 pupils 

• St Brigid’s School – 2012 had 374 pupils 

• In December 2012, both in Band 2 

 
  

What we want to know 

• What do you think is important when you decided what school you are going to? 

• How far would you be prepared to travel to go to school? 

o > 3 miles 

o 3 > 5 miles 

o 5 > miles 

Page 60



 

39 
 
 

 

• How would you like to travel to school 

o Walk 

o Car 

o Bus 

• How long would you travel to get to school  

o >10 minutes 

o 10 > 20 minutes 

o 20 > 30 minutes 

o 30 > minutes 

Activity: The Perfect School:  

• Split into groups  

• On the paper draw / write what you would like your perfect school to look like 

Things to think about: 

• The building 

• Where it is 

• Type of education 

• Type of courses available  

• How to get there 

• How many pupils 

• Facilities 

• Discussion  

The pupils were then asked the following questions: 
 

No Question 

1.  What do you think is important when you decided what school you are going to? 

2.  How far would you be prepared to travel to go to school? 

3.  How do you travel to school? 

4.  How long would you be prepared to travel to school? 

• Less than 10 mins  

• Less than 20 mins 

• Less than 30 mins 

• Over 30 mins 

5.  Would you like to travel less?   

 
Activity: the perfect school 
 
The pupils then undertook an activity which invited them to draw and describe the perfect 
school.   
 
Questions from the pupils 
 

 The pupils were invited to ask any questions they had. 
 
 Final exercise: post cards 
 
 The pupils were given post cards inviting them to choose two responses describing the things 

they consider to be most important when deciding which school to attend. 
 

Close 
 
It was explained that there would be a follow up meeting next week at which the pupils will be 
invited to discuss the ideas they have put forward in more detail. 

Page 61



 

40 
 
 

 

  
3. Post cards 
 
3.1 The post cards contained the following invitation: 
  

“We want to know what are the most important things for you when you decide what school to 
go to.  Please can you tick the two most important factors in the table opposite” 

 
3.2 The options and the responses were as follows: 
   

St Brigid’s 

Option Number of responses 

Faith Provision 4 

Someone you know is at the school 2 

How far it is from your home 0 

How easy it is to get there 1 

How good the buildings are 1 

How good the education is 12 

How many pupils are in the school 4 

Ethos 4 

Friendship 1 

Happiness 1 

*Additional categories added by some SB pupils 
 
 

 
 
 

Blessed Edward Jones 

Option Number of responses 

Faith Provision 1 

Someone you know is at the school 4 

Important Factors

Faith provision

Someone you know

How Far

How easy to get to

Good buildings

Good education

How many pupils

Ethos

Friendship

Happiness

Page 62



 

41 
 
 

 

How far it is from your home 2 

How easy it is to get there 0 

How good the buildings are 3 

How good the education is 13 

How many pupils are in the school 5 

 

 
 
4. The second meeting 
 
4.1 At the second meeting held at SB, 23 pupils (with representatives from years 7 – 11 (and, in 

the case of SB only, years 12 &13), 1 teacher and 3 representatives from DCC were present. 
 
4.2 The second meeting followed the following format: 
  

Introductions and ice breaker 
 
The pupils were told the reasons for the meeting taking place and the stage the process had 
reached.   
 
Presentation 
 
The pupils were shown a Power point presentation containing the following: 
 

• Following last week’s session, want to talk about the things you said to us 
 

• This is part of a very long process, and if the Council decides to hold a full 
consultation on what Faith Education may look like in future, we’ll be back with 
proposals and we’ll want to know what you think about them. 

 
What we want to know: 
 

• What do you think is important when you decided what school you are going to? 
 
SB: 

Happiness, Ethos, Reputation, Atmosphere / Environment 
Distance from home 
Size of school  
A*-C Grades 

 

Important Factors

Faith provision

Someone you know

How Far

How easy to get to

Good buildings

Good education

How many pupils

Page 63



 

42 
 
 

 

BEJ: [To follow] 
 
 

• How far would you be prepared to travel to go to school? 
o 3 miles 
o 3 > 5 miles 
o 5 > miles 

 
SB: This wasn’t an important factor for you when you decide what school to go to, the quality 

is more important than distance 
 
BEJ: [To follow] 
 
 

• How would you like to travel to school? 
o Walk 
o Car 
o Bus 

 
SB:  The majority of you travel by car or bus to school. Those of you that travel by bus have 

said that you like seeing your friends before school starts. 
 

• How long would you travel to get to school? 
o > 10 minutes 
o 10 > 20 minutes 
o 20 > 30 minutes 
o 30 > minutes 

SB:  The majority travel more than 30 minutes but again this is less important than the quality 
of the school 

 
BEJ: [To follow] 
 
Activity:  The Perfect School  
Have a look at the combined schools that you all described as perfect (in the first meeting). 
 
Important factors post card responses/perfect school 
 
The responses written on the post card at the end of the first meeting were discussed with the 
pupils.  This was followed by a discussion of the ideas for the perfect school.  The two 
schools had produced the following ideas: 
 
See next page: 

Page 64



 

43 

 
 

 

St Brigid’s 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Buildings not mobiles 

Better Sports Facilities 

Better Arts Facilities 

Religious – Sr Liz 

3-19 School 

400 pupils Classes for each subject 

P
age 65



 

44 

 
 

 

Blessed Edward Jones 
 

Modernise Classrooms 

e.g. smart boards 

Better Sports Facilities 
Better Science Facilities 

Full time Nurse 

500-600 pupils 
After School Clubs 

Better Canteen / Food options 

More language courses 

More Space 

More GCSE courses 

Laptop scheme 

Relax rules on mobile phones 

Shelter outside for when it rains 

During the second session, where feedback on the first session was given, the students raised 

that they thought that a perfect school would have a Sixth Form – The reason for this being the 

fact that they have better relationships with teachers. They know them as students and 

understand their strengths and weaknesses, and act as a support network . Rhyl 6
th

 is a 

different environment 

P
age 66



 

45 

 
 

 

 
Pond and lily pads 
 

 The pupils were then asked to participate in an exercise designed to elicit their hopes and 
fears.  A large drawing of a pond was placed on the floor and the pupils were given pieces of 
paper in the shape of a lily pad.  They were asked to write their hopes and or fears (either 
relating to the faith review or more broadly) on one side of the ‘lily pad’ and to place them face 
down on the ‘pond’.  The pupils could therefore communicate openly in the knowledge that 
other pupils would not see what they had written.    

 
Questions from the pupils 
 
The pupils were invited to ask any questions they had. 
 
Close 
 
The meeting was brought to a close. 

 
5. Hopes and fears (Lily pads) 
 

The contents of the lily pads from each school were collected and the results were as follows: 
 

St Brigid’s 

Hopes Fears 

I hope that St Brigid’s can grow as a school 
independently 

I fear that the tradition of St Brigid’s will be 
lost forever 

I hope that the money to be spent will be 
spent evenly 

I fear that the faith provision of the school will 
be lost 

 I fear that if the school was to joining with BEJ 
there would be a division between the two 
schools and cause problems as I know that 
our school is very different to BEJ 

I hope that us leavers will still have St Brigid’s 
to come back to in years to come 

I fear that by trying to change us, it will ruin 
what we have at St Brigid’s 

I hope that St Brigid’s will stay the same and 
not merge 

I fear people won’t listen and merge St 
Brigid’s anyway 

Hope that all the changes we want actually 
happen 

 

Building not mobiles  

I hope that the school does not close down. I 
hope that I get good grades for GCSE 

 

For the school to still be on the current site 
because this is where St Brigid’s is and 
always has been. This is the heart of the 
school 

 

The successful St Brigid’s ethos is supported 
so that it can continue to provide a great 
educational experience for another 
generation 

That St Brigid’s will be closed / merged to 
satisfy new ideas etc. at the expense of a 
good school and opportunities for young 
people 

The St Brigid’s family will remain St Brigid’s ethos and close knot will get lost if 
we merge schools 

 There will not be a friendly St Brigid’s to 

Page 67



 

46 

 
 

 

return to – Our experience will almost 
become a void 

Get into Edinburgh Uni. St Brigid’s School will not be here for future 
generations 

St Brigid’s will change  

To be happy St Brigid’s being closed down 

Staying the same Moving in the middle of GCSEs 

All the changes if the school was to merge 
would be accomplished 

 

Better car park and facilities  

More playground equipment  

New building  

St Brigid’s will stay the same. Be able to send 
my children here in future. Take ethos with 
me everywhere I go 

Council have the power to go ahead with the 
merger, regardless of our opinions 

  

Blessed Edward Jones 

Hopes Fears 

I hope there is going to be a sixth form in the 
school 

 

Very advances with good facilities 

More variety of courses 

Some teachers may lose their job 

To have good GCSE’s Bad Education 

I hope that this school et a sixth form again  

 Teachers always off school – not learning as 
much off supply teacher 

 Starting options in yr. 9 it’s too early 

Have help choosing options Starting options in year 9  

A minimum of C in all  GCSE To do bad and fail in my GCSE’s 

Better classrooms Horrible teachers 

Better education better chances for jobs in 
the future 

With more tech. and improvements more 
bullying may occur 

The education gets better If two schools come together there is more 
pupils which likely leads to bullying 

To do well in Science and English 

Good facilities 

Fears in Welsh supply teachers 

Failing 

 Want better supply teachers 

Good facilities Welsh – our permanent teacher is never in 

 Too many supply teachers > not specified to 
the subject they cover > fail GCSE due to 
missed lessons 

 
  

Page 68



 

47 

 
 

 

6. Additional comments (St Brigid’s) 
 
At the end of the second meeting a pupil at SB presented Elin Davies with a bundle of papers upon 
which a group of year 8 pupils had written their views on 5 questions.  It is not known who devised the 
question.  The questions together with the responses are listed below: 
 

1.   Are you for or against [the merger]? Why? 

For/Don’t mind Against 

It would give us better facilities and new uniforms The primary school might go 

As long as we get an education it doesn’t matter 
where we are or who we’re with 

SB is one of a kind and I would like it to stay that 
way 

I like SB the way it is but I don’t really mind I love SB as it’s small and has control over the 
problems 

We will get much better facilities and gym stuff The people are rough 

 I like SB a lot 

 It could be very expensive 

 I don’t like going to a big school and I think the 
school is perfect right now and doesn’t need to 
change.  There is no point just have 2 catholic 
schools not 1 

 Came to SB to receive a good education and do 
not want to merge with a normal state school 

 There’s no need to change anything because 
everything is fine how it is.  Also there would be 
more fights with a big school 

 SB is a small family school and if it merges there 
will be loads of people and I might not be able to 
travel somewhere else near Rhyl 

 I don’t want it to change at all 

 I like the school the way it is 

 I like SB as it is & some of the BEJ lot are rough.  
SB has a family atmosphere 

 I’ve been here for years and I like it 

 SB is perfectly fine without the merger.  Also I 
was bullied by the people who go to BEJ 

 I don’t want to go to school with a bunch of chavs 

 SB is a wonderful school as it is 

 SB is a good school and like a family 

 I dislike a lot of people in BEJ.  Students at SB 
and students at BEJ are completely different 
people.  I think SB pupils would get bullied etc. as 
they are different 

 It is not fair having to share our school 

 It is not fair on us 

 The pupils in BEJ aren’t very nice and would 
probably bully us.  People in the future will not be 
able to go to our Primary.  Our school view is 
amazing and I wouldn’t change it for anything. 

2.  Would you go to a merged school or look to go somewhere else? 

Merged school Somewhere else/Don’t know 

It could mean better buildings and equipment No idea where I’d go 

I would go to a merged school for reasons above 
(as long as we get an education) 

Probably not go to the merged school 

I would go to a new school, you can make new 
friends 

Wouldn’t go to a merged school 

I would probably go to the merged school as all Wouldn’t go to a merged school 

Page 69



 

48 

 
 

 

my friends are there 

I would go and if I liked it I would stay: if I didn’t 
like it I would move to a better school 

Mold Alun 

I would look at somewhere else but would most 
likely stay 

A different school like Denbigh High, Prestatyn 
High.  The school wouldn’t feel the same like it is 
now 

 I’d definitely move school if it happens as soon as 
I hear about it (probably to Wirral Grammar) 

 I wouldn’t go to a merged school.  I would move 
somewhere else 

 I’d look to go somewhere else 

 I’m not sure; if I did I’m not sure I’d like it 

 I’d look to go to a different school 

 I’d look to go somewhere else 

 I would move school 

 I’d go somewhere else 

 I would go to a different school instead 

 I’d probably go to another school 

 I would go somewhere else 

 I would not go to a merged school and if SB got 
more merged then I think I would not be here for 
much longer 

 I don’t know because it depends on where it is 

 If the school was to merge I would have to go to 
the nearest catholic school for free transport 

3. If it had to merge, what would your priorities be? 

New sporting facilities 

Better technology, a better music studio and no mobiles [classrooms] – just a big building 

A not modern uniform as that can cause bullying.  Fancy new equipment and classrooms 

New uniform, sports facilities, music facilities and larger buildings instead of mobiles 

New uniform, the same ‘mobies’ no stairs, better technology 

I wouldn’t be here so I wouldn’t care 

Uniform, building structure, family – it won’t have a family feel and bullying 

New uniform, closer to Rhyl, have a gym, bigger dining room, gym equipment and sixth-form 

A much better art department: everything else is already brilliant 

Better uniform (trousers) and all the classrooms in a building not a mobile 

Better gym and music studio and have them in a proper building 

Better art class and art supply, gym hall canteen and I would like an actual building not mobiles 

Better gym facilities, better/nicer uniform, better music facilities and make it one big building not all 
little mobiles because they’re a little silly 

I would like it to be just like this school, no change except maybe more gym equipment but that is it! 

A big sports hall or gym or a bigger art gallery or a bigger art room 

Page 70



 

49 

 
 

 

A sports hall and proper classrooms 

One building no cabins, new music room, different uniform (trousers for girls) 

A new hall, a gym, bigger classrooms and the same uniform 

New, updated science block.  No new uniform as we have spent a lot of money on the current one 

Proper classrooms, bigger studios, change of uniform. Though I still want a tie, skirt and a blazer. 

Better art facilities and music studio 

To go to a good school 

I would like nothing really, if it was to merge I would move school 100%! 

I need this school to get the education I need because for me there is nowhere else. 

Bigger place and not mobiles 

Modern equipment and simple uniform 

4.  If it could be located anywhere in Denbighshire where would you like it to be? 

Near or in Rhuddlan 3 

Near or in Prestatyn 2 

Near or in Rhuthin 5 

Near or in Denbigh 13 

Near or in St Asaph 6 

Near or in Boddelwyddan 6 

Near or in Rhyl 2 

Not closer to or in Rhyl 2 

Not Boddelwyddan 1 

5.  Any other comments 

We won’t know everyone like we do now.  I don’t want to have to wait outside for the teacher to come 
(raining, snowing) 

Teds – rough school.  Don’t merge 

BEJ almost got closed down because it was so bad.  It would be a real shame to see SB go A REAL 
SHAME 

Everyone should know what’s happening instead of just a few letters not explaining what is happening 

I really don’t see why people are so against it 

I don’t know why we would have to maybe merge with teds.  I don’t think that we would get the family 
atmosphere with a bigger school, we would not get that anywhere else 

Page 71



 

50 

 
 

 

No mobiles because they are small, if you stamp on the floor it makes such a noise.  Big building and 
non-primary.  A six form college.  Lots more pupils 

I don’t want this school to merge at all, it feels like a second home full of friends.  I don’t want that to 
change � 

I am against it [the merger].  I don’t know what will happen to the A levels, the sixth formers, the 
Primary and us!   

Nobody wants it to happen from SB or from BEJ 

I don’t want it to happen.  I would like it to be where it is.  I don’t want it to happen 

Please don’t merge the school as our education is important and merging will not help this.  Also what 
about the boarders?  Where will they go, I mean they live here.  If we merge, you could ruin their 
education.  PLEASE DON’T MERGE 

Please don’t merge the school � 

I would like to know what would happen to the Primary School, will they get rid of them or will they 
build a new Primary School? 

I strongly disagree, I don’t think we should merge, it’s a very bad idea.  If I was in year 11 then I would 
stay here when it merged but I would enjoy school as much.  SB is great and has an amazing rep.  
Teds is bad and nearly go shut down 

If this school go any more merged would we have to share classes?  What would the Denbigh 
High/any other schools where? 

I hope it won’t close down and I don’t like mobiles 

28 million why not 14 million to each school? 

Spend the money on us 

Family ethos 

Killing a family 

Proud to be Brigid’s 

Travel (transport) 

Community 

Some wouldn’t go to the new school 

Close knit family 

3 – 19 years old (we will lose this) 

Uniform, teachers, boarding? 

 

Page 72



Redaction

Redaction

Appendix 2a

Page 73



Redaction

Redaction

Page 74



ReRedaction

Redaction
Reda

Redac
Redactio Redac Redaction Redactio

n

Redactio

Redaction Reda
Redaction

Redactio

nRedac

ti

Redac

Redaction
Re

d
Redactio

Redactio

n

Re

d
Redaction

Redaction
Redactio

n
Redacti

onRedac Red Red
Re

Redactio

n

Redaction

Redaction

REDACTION

REDACTIO

Page 75



Redaction

Page 76



Redaction

Redaction

Page 77



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 78



Redaction

Redaction Redacti
Redacti

Reda

ti

Redaction Reda

ti

Redaction

Redaction

Page 79



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction Reda

ction

Redaction

Redacti

on

Redaction

Redacti

Page 80



Redaction

Redaction

Redactio

n
RedactionRedaction

Redactio

n

Redaction
Redaction

Redactio

n

Redacti

on
Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redact

i

Redaction

Redact

i

Redaction

Redac

tion

Page 81



Redaction

Redact

ion

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 82



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redacti

on

Redacti

on

Page 83



Redaction Redacti

on

Redaction

Redaction

REDACTION

Page 84



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 85



Redaction

Redaction Reda

iRedaction Redactio

Re

dac
Red

ti
Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Re

d

Redactio

Re

Reda

ctionRe

d

Redaction

Redacti

Red

ti

Redac

ti

Reda

tiRed

ti

Reda

ction

Reda

ti

Redacti

REDACTION

Page 86



Redacti

on

Red

acti

Redaction

Page 87



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redacti

Redaction

Page 88



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 89



Redaction

Redaction

Page 90



Redaction

Redaction

Page 91



Page 92



Redaction

Redaction

Page 93



Redaction

Redaction

Page 94



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 95



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 96



Redaction

Redaction

Redactio

Page 97



Page 98



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 99



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 100



Redaction

Page 101



Redaction

Page 102



Redaction

Red

Re

edactionRe

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 103



REDACTION

Redaction

Page 104



REDACTION
Page 105



Redaction

Redaction

Page 106



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 107



Page 108



Redaction

Page 109



Page 110



Redaction

Page 111



Redaction

Page 112



Redaction

Page 113



Redaction

Page 114



REDACTION
REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Redaction R

Redaction

Redaction

Page 119



Redaction

REDACTION

Page 120



Redaction

Page 121



Redaction

Redaction

Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Redaction

Page 130



Redaction

Redaction

Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Redaction

Page 134



Redaction

Redaction

Redact

ion

Page 135



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Redaction

Page 154



Redaction

Page 155



Redaction

Page 156



Redaction

Page 157



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 158



56

From : 

18/11/2012 12:52 

Dear Sir / Madam 
  
Having seen your proposals I am stunned at the short sighted vision from Denbighshire. 
  
St Brigid's is a successful school loved and admired by parents, pupils, staff  and the wider 
community. 
  
Granted the buildings are in a poor state of repair due to a lack of funding by the local authority. 
However despite this the school produces pupils who achieve results above their target levels, are 
mature and will be of benefit to society and the wider community. Please note the level of teenage 
pregnancies, bullying and other anti social behaviour issues that arise from pupils past and present of 
the school. 
  
The school has extensive waiting lists from parents who share my hopes and aspirations for their 
children and a belief in the school.  
  
In England such schools are lauded and held up as a shining example. In Denbighshire the Local 
Authority chooses to propose to close the school to ensure that all children have a below standard 
education and that they have low aspirations for their future and will ultimately be a drain on the wider 
society. 
  
I am staggered that a school who takes a child from the travelling community into its Junior School 
and produces a young lady who has been accepted into Oxford University is considered for closure. 
By any measure this must surely be regarded as a success - The national press obviously considers it 
to be so. 
  
With regards to the alleged 'selection' of St Brigid's pupils half of which are not selected as they 
automatically pass from Junior into senior school including those who are statemented as special 
needs. The other half are expected to have achieved the average level for children age 11 - questions 
should be asked as to why so many of Denbighshires junior school pupils are failing to reach this 
standard set by the Welsh Government. 
  
I cannot understand why St Brigid's is not seen as a model of successful education practise - 3 to 19 
is an  innovative model and obviously works. Therefore my view is that the plan should be to extend 
the number of children who have such an option available, the new school should be a larger st 
Brigid's and retain the St Brigid's successful brand and ethos. 
  
It should also be noted that in my children's classes there have been a number of children admitted as 
a result of bullying and intimidation behaviours in other Denbighshire schools. 
  
I would ask that Denbighshire considers my views and that of other parents and makes the only 
sensible choice of retaining St Brigid's. 
  
I understand that the school is the lowest funded in Wales yet continues by your figures to balance its 
budget and still provide an excellent education. 
  
  
I will personally strongly resist any moves to close a school which has provided an excellent 
education for my children, as well as a caring environment which encourages the development of the 
individual. 
  
I would also state that the location is beautiful, away from pollution and provides food for the soul. It is 
inspiration for the holistic development of the individual. 
  

REDACTION

Page 159



On a wider agenda the maintenance of a boarding facility is also a great asset as it provides high 
quality childcare facilities, for parents who are in the armed forces, children from single parents and 
caring facilities when parents are sick. In an age where the Governments agenda is to encourage 
more territorial army members this provides a welcome safety net that if parents are called away on 
active service their children are cared for at home. 
  
I have copied other parents in in order that they can see my personal comments and can add their 
own comments. 
  
Parents - please send your views  to Jackie Walley(proposer of the plan) and modernising education 
@denbighshire.gov.uk (email addresses at the top of this email) - as they are very interested in your 
views. Please feel free to circulate to other St Brigid's parents who may also wish to share their views 
and opinions. 
  
Regards 
  

57 

From : 

12/12/2012 11:03 
To the local councillors, Local authority, community councils, MP's and AM's, Denbigh Free 
Press & the Daily Post 
  
I am writing to you as a concerned parent and teacher at St. Brigids School in Denbigh. 
  
I have read both the documents you have sent me as a parent and teacher and must state 
my huge opposition to any proposed changes. 
  
I have taken some parts of the doc you have sent me and have expressed next to it - my 
specific concern. 
  
I have also decided to write this email anomymously for fear of reprisals.  
  
Firstly i would like to take issue with the document sent to teachers: 
  
My first question is to ask - what is the definition of consultation? the dictionary states "to 
seek advice or information from; ask guidance from" as well as "to have regard for (a 
person's interest, convenience, etc.) in making plans". 
  
However, my concern is that this is not a consultation. I have heard from reliable sources 
and fear that DCC is simply paying lip service to the 'decision' in March and that the decision 
has already been made. 
  
If this is not the case, then DCC will have no issue making the decision meeting a public 
one, allowing the results of the consultation be published? (ie- how many are for/against the 
proposals) 
  
Next i would like to take issue with the document itself: 
  
  
With it comes the desire to offer the highest 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 160



standards of education and to ensure good outcomes for all young people in Wales. (page 2) 
  
This is simply not what will happen. the merger of a good school with excellent GCSE results 
with a poor school - will not as you hope bring up the lower end. All that will happen is that 
the lower end will pull the top down. That is not good outcomes for our pupils. My Children 
included. 
  
Also on page two you state:  
  
a real need for further educational provision in the north Denbighshire area 
  
Again you are incorrect.  This is nothing but biased propaganda. Where is the need for real 
change when the parents, teachers, community and most importantly the students love the 
existing school and site as it is. This document is far too one sided and i would suggest that 
the person who wrote it is clearly bias.  
  
Page 3 you state:  
  
we have to change 
  
the widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential. 
  
Why do you need to change a successful school? that simply makes no sense.  
  
The opportunities here a plentiful. The pupils have a vast amount of GCSE's available, many 
continue these with excellent opportunities in A Level. This has clearly helped pupils reach 
their potential as a huge number have gone to university, including Oxbridge. This is the 
education they receive in a caring community school. 
  
Where i agree on is the need to change the school buildings. Yes the mobiles here cannot 
last forever. However, I believe that the money it costs to hold a consultation, purchase the 
land and build the school could be dramatically reduced by improve our and Blessed Edward 
Jones existing sites. 
  
Your incorrect and inaccurate information continues on the lower side of page 3: 
  
 The Welsh Government have made it clear that local authorities will not be able to attract 
capital funding unless the issue of empty places is dealt with. 
  
This school is not empty. We infact are above the number we are said to be able to deal 
with. All that this consultation is doing is harming our numbers for September 2013. Parents 
will not bring their pupils here as they fear closure. This highlights an underlying issue that 
many parents will simply withdraw thier children from any future school taking them 
elsewhere. Perhaps thats what DCC wants. Brigids out of the way with other schools 
growing in capacity? 
  
Page 4 is simply the biggest pile of propaganda and lies i have ever read. 
  
The policy considers that “It is not feasible for a secondary school with fewer than 600 pupils 
(plus 150 in 6th Form where appropriate) to provide the facilities described in the 21 
Century Secondary Schools vision. Therefore the Council accepts that the minimum size for 
any new secondary school will be a four form entry school providing 600 11-16 places   
Concerningly this sounds like your minds are mind up. You say it is not feasible for less than 
600 pupils. Why? We are not broke. Why is there a need to fix us ? 

Page 161



You always mention that any new school will be for 11-16. What about the successful 
Primary School and Sixth form?  
  

Any review of secondary school provision will take into consideration the Learning Pathways 
available to pupils within the area. 
  
As previously discussed. There are huge amounts of pathways available. Moreover, school 
is not just about learning. Parents sent pupils here for the community spirit and caring 
enviroment, only a small 3 - 18 school can provide! 
  
Blessed Edward Jones - January 2012 served 480 pupils against an overall capacity of 659 
places 
  
You have to ask why? 169 extra spaces. We however, have capacity for 344 with 374 pupils 
here - over by 30. Again. Please hink and ask yourselves why that is. 
  
A further prolem arises from these numbers. If you add together Blessed Ed Jones numbers 
480, with our 11-16 numbers, 286, it equals 766 pupils. That would mean 766 pupils in total. 
This will not fit your 600 pupils number and therefore, before the school is even built, you are 
excluding 166 pupils - hardly 21st Cenury inclusion? Clearly a warm welcome to some of 
ous.  
  
Lastly on your most horrendous page of blatant lies and propaganda is: 
  
The Council considers that there are significant challenges which both schools would need 
to address to continue to maintain existing provision in the short to medium term should no 
change occur. In particular the challenges surrounding leadership and management of two 
small secondary schools, the adequacy of existing facilties to deliver both the existing 
curriculum and the requirements of the changing curriculum and the financial implications for 
both schools as a consequence of their current size should not be underestimated. 
  
Firstly, we have a new head. She should be given a chance to work her magic here and see 
what she can do..otherwise, what was the point of hiring her and paying her a salary, with 
the costs of advertisment? Harly making sound financial calcuations? 
  
Secodly, you say it all. "Fiancial Implications". So thats what this is all about...Money. Your 
claim its about provision, inclusion and pathways is a lie. Its just about money. Fnally, your 
choice of words..."consequence should not be underestimated"...sounds incredibly 
threatening. Once again, I asked. Is this a consultation or lip service? 
  
Page 5: 
  
You start by talking of Pupils, parents, governors and staff. The majority of these 
stakeholders, in BOTH schools are against this. Last time i checked we lived in a 
democracy. I sincerely hope you follow democratic law and follow the word of the people. 
Will all of our views really be listened to? Can we have your word on this? 
  
Page 6: 
  
You attempt to make some comparisons between the school to show common ground. 
However, here you contradict yourself:  
  

Page 162



 However the most recent inspection of both schools were undertaken using different 
inspection frameworks which impacts on the validity of the findings as a comparator of 
standards. 
  
Therefore the information you use is irrelevant? Whats more you discuss St Brigids as a 
school that out performs the Denbigh and Welsh averages in GCSE performance. We are 
well above that. Why on earth would you want to change this? Why on earth would you then 
try and mix us with a school that gains 39%? well below the naional ad welsh average? it 
makes no sense. 
  
Whats more our next Estyn inspection is not due until 2016. Why not see how that goes 
before making your minds up? 
  
Page 8: 
  
You discuss your inclusive agenda.  Your describe your ideas in bullet form. However, what 
you dont say is that all of those ideas CAN be done WITHOUT a merger. You can just 
improve each site - cant you? 
  
For the 2011/12 financial year the total delegated budget for Blessed Edward Jones was 
£2.107m against an net expenditure of £2.163m. This equated to an in year deficit of £55k. 
For St Brigid’s the total delegated budget was £1.512m against a net expenditure of 
£1.468m, which equated to an in year surplus of £44k. 
  
Based on the above i wanted to confirm. You wish to merge a school who makes a loss, with 
a school that is financially prudent? Why should we be punish for balancing the books? 
Moreover, assuming you push for this merger, can you tell me what the proposed budget 
would be? 3.575 million is the two together? Or..as i believe it would be - will it be less? 
Again sugesting this is a financial exercise not one focused on the education & prospects of 
pupils. 
  
Page 9: 
The findings for both Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigids found the schools as Category C 
– “Poor”.
  
We all accept the building is not perfect. But...the pupils are safe and happy here. Isnt that 
the point? Have you spoken to them? These are the people that really matter. I have a form 
in the school, of which 24 out of 28 suggested they would not go to any new school. Why 
build a school that pupils wont attend? 
  
My two final points focus on the map (page 11) and your final points. On page 11 you 
illustrate the home locations of our pupils. THis is written negatively. However, how can this 
be? It proves pupils come far and wide to join our family. We have an excellent reputation 
with great results. This is why my children come here! 
  
Lastly i would like to state what is the balance. The balance between what the council wants 
versus what the staff, pupils, Parents, governors, trustees & community wants. 
  
I hope you listen carefully to our opinions. We will not allow this to happen and will not go 
away quietly. 
  
Many thanks for your time. 
  
A VERY cocerned Parent and Teacher. 

Page 163



59 

From 

17/12/2012 10:19 

To whom it may concern 
  
Firstly let me thank the Daily Post & others of you for replying and for publishing some of my 
comments. I look forward to a response from DCC (i also look forward to them publishing all 
comments from involved parties regarding any merger!).   
  
I have also included Mr Leighton Andrews in these discussions - so he knows from the very 
beginning, the strength of feeling against any proposed merger. Indeed I would like to 
extend an invitation to him to come and visit the school and talk to the pupils - for whom 
DCC claims any merger is being sort for. 
  
I have also decided to contact you following a meeting with DCC, the staff of St Brigids and 
the staff of Blessed Edward Jones. 
  
The meeting was nothing by political propaganda with no 'real' 'straight' answers given. 
  
Let me give you an example: 
  
A colleague asked: 
  
"You mention lots about opportunity and views. Should the students of both schools, the 
parents of both schools, the governors of both schools and the staff of both schools, put their 
views forward and reject this opportunity, will DCC still continue with plans for a merger?" 
  
The colleague in question asked for a straight answer. What he got was "maybe".  
  
I have mentioned it before and will again - this is proof that any consultation is simply lip 
service - not a decision based on fair balanced viewpoints. 
  
I can emphasize the DCC's comments. They spoke a great deal about Views and 
opportunity. However,  why do we need an opportunity to improve an already good school? 
Again, I ask the people who will make these decisions to speak to those who matter - the 
pupils. 
  
Frankly, the entire discussion was nothing but superlatives - many that were contradictorary. 
"we know St Brigids is a good school with excellent results and a close knit family feel". 
"However, it is not fit for purpose". 
  
Pardon me? i thought a school's purpose was to educate - and allow children to feel safe, 
developing into the adults that Wales needs in the future? 
  
One comment that was interesting was the fact that DCC is bidding for £29 million in order to 
help faith provision. They state this money belongs to the Welsh Government , but that this 
funding cannot be split to help both schools (14.5million each). Is this actually correct? can 
someone check? if it is correct - why?  
  
Another word used a great deal was sustainability. We have a growing school  - surely we 
are that! One would also argue that spening £29 million on a new school that WILL BE half 

REDACTION

Page 164



empty - is not sustainable. Do the people of Denbigh believe that this is the best way to 
spend £29million? I would argue they did not! 
  
Another of DCC's buzz words were transformational. Well here is a different proposal. 
Tranform all schools in Wales to fit our already successful model. We exist as a 3-19 school 
- i beleive the only one of its kind in Wales. We have above average GCSE & A Level results 
- does this not tell the decision makers something? We are also a school where children feel 
genuinely cared for. One where they feel they can be themselves free from the pressures 
other teenagers have placed one them - whether that is smoking, alcohol, drugs or sex. Our 
pupils enjoy their childhoods.  
  
 We are unique. We are sustainable. We are successful. 
  
AND....we will not go away. 
  
We will fight for this school. We believe in this school. We know others do too. 
  
Thank you. 

60 

  

  
  

REDACTION

Page 165



61 

From : 

14/01/2013 21:26 

To whom it may concern 

I write once again regarding the proposed merger of St Brigids and Blessed Edward Jones. 

Today St. Brigids was visited by 

The pupils were told that they were to speak to their form to have a representation of the pupils 

views on the merger. 

However, the questions they were asked and the way they were asked, show this 'consultation' is as 

previously said, is nothing more than lip service - a decision already made - democracy indeed! 

Students were not asked what they thought on a merger. They were asked what they wanted (and I 

quote), the new school to look like and where the new school should be. 

This is not what parents and teachers were told the first stage of consultation should be about. We 
have been told no decisions have been made. Why are they propmpting students? This is bullying at 

the worst kind - bullying so that they can tick a box - disgusting. 

It is clear that DCC and telling parents one thing. Teachers another. Parents a whole different story 

and governors another. 

How can we trust you? 

I urge you to stay clear and open and honest. Only then can we really see what is happening.  

once again I have included the local MP's, AMs and press in the hope they can help stop a terrible 

decision to close a successful school. 

When will DCC learn? 

the truth will always out. 

Yours 

Against the Merger 

REDACTION

Redaction

Page 166



62 

From : 

16/01/2013 13:42 

Thank you James for your reply 
i will review the content in detail later as i am at work today. 
the link  
http://mgintranet/Data/County%20Council/20090120/Agenda/cl200109pt1E.pdf 
doesn't seem to work and i note the url refers to an intranet - would i be able to access an 
intranet? 
  
At the Parents meeting on 10th January i met with the Director of Education and Jackie 
Whalley for a short chat afterwards 
  
They both offered to meet with me F2F (and/or with a small group of parents) for further 
detailed discussion.My emphasis is on understanding facts and detials. I would be very 
grateful if you would put me in direct contact with them to arrange this. My mobile number is 
given below. 
  
Further the slides that were shown at the event last week would be very useful to have as I 
try to prepare my views for your consultation. i would also like to see a copy of the proposals 
(and the terms of it) that were put to the WA for the 28.8m faith school and the response and 
the terms of the "grant"., or whatever it might be called at this stage. 
  
It was stated at the meeting that there was no definition of "transformation" - i must admit i 
find it rather amazing to find that such a large amount of taxpayers money can be  riding on 
proposals that have to be transformational and yet those submitting the proposals and those 
judging on it have no terms of reference in writing to turn to to adjudicate on its merits. 
Please provide whatever detailed information and guidance you or the WA have in this area. 
There were similar comments on 21st century education made to me afterwards and your 
letter below on first read doesn't seem to answer the question i asked - what does 21st 
century education mean - What is the detailed list of its content and what do current schools 
need to do to comply. The statement made to me last week was that I would need to be 
taken to a school to comprehend this,why isnt it written down and why cant parents see this?  
  
Reference was made at the school meeting to a curriculum of 30 subjects that a 21st century 
school needs to provide - what are the subjects, how does a child achieve a grade (eg 
exams/coursework etc) which ones of these count toward the statistics of % of 5 GCSE 
passes? Please provide the information by return email. 
  
I appreciate that you do not want to commit to an extension now. you perhaps feel we may 
be using delaying tactics - this possibility was even referred to by the presenters last week. It 
seems to me that as new information was presented to us last Thursday - the slide content, 
the information on the 28.8m investment from the WA etc- we need to be able to assess this 
information in detail, seek clarification and then provide our considered views. This is not 
possible or fair in 15 days. Waiting until the last day of the consultation for DCC to sit in 
judgement on the merits of an extension suggest to me that DCC and the faith leadership 
are railroading through the consultation period without allowing parents to see detailed 
information, properly assess it, critique it, and use it in our response to the consultation.  
  

REDACTION

Page 167



I once again urge that you extend the period of the consultation in order to allow parents 
proper access to the same information that you and the Faith leadership have, so we can 
properly provide our views, having had time to consider the facts.  
  
best regards and looking forward to meeting Jackie et al 
  

63 

From : 

18/01/2013 16:40 

Re: Joint Faith Based Provision for North Denbighshire Consultation. 
  
I am writing to state serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 
  
The Issue: The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which 
parents and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of 
the 10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at 
St. Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013 an objection was raised about the leading nature of the 
questions on the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated consultation 
objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself to capturing a 
partial view which is biased towards what Denbighshire County Council would like to capture 
or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually think and feel. In 
response to this a Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and 
suggested that parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form 
prescribes as additional sheets. 
I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. For example some information 
suffered serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this 
was the assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official 
that this was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are 
relative measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather 
relative rates of improvement. Other rather dubious “facts” that were presented as objective 
truths rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined 
terms such as “sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left 
stakeholders with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate 
responses to this consultation.  
  
Objections: 
·         The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged in 
front of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of 
the 10th January have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact.  
·         While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the 
form, only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/12/13 were told about this option. It 
is unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them.   

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 168



·         The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of 
January, effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 
29/1/2013, at least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is 
not enough time to organise a proper response to this additional need, and it falls 
significantly short even when measured Denbighshire County Council’s normal consultation 
period. Coupled with the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make sense of the 
patchy information and claims made about “The Need for Change” and come up with an 
adequate response; the available time is simply not sufficient.      
The Solution: to ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge 
and does not prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data 
due to the potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice 
the ability of people to formulate adequate responses I request that: 
1.      The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 
extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 
2.      All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about 
this new option to submit additional information with their forms. 
3.      All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire 
County Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their 
forms. 
  
Regards 
  
  

Parent of child at St Brigid’s

64 

  

 

 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 169



  

  

  

87 

From: 

23/01/2013 12:35 

Dear Sir / Madam, 
I am writing to state serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 
  
The Issue: The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which 
parents and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of 
the 10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at 
St. Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013 an objection was raised about the leading nature of the 
questions on the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated consultation 
objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself to capturing a 
partial view which is biased towards what Denbighshire County Council would like to capture 
or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually think and feel. In 
response to this a Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and 
suggested that parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form 
prescribes as additional sheets. 
  
I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. For example some information 
suffered serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this 
was the assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official 
that this was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are 
relative measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather 
relative rates of improvement. Other rather dubious “facts” that were presented as objective 
truths rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined 
terms such as “sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 170



stakeholders with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate 
responses to this consultation.  
  
Objections: 
·The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged in front 
of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of the 
10thJanuary have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact.  
·While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the form, 
only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/1/13 were told about this option. It is 
unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them. 
·The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of January, 
effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 29/1/2013, at 
least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is not enough 
time to organise a proper response to this additional need, and it falls significantly short even 
when measured Denbighshire County Council’s normal consultation period. Coupled with 
the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make sense of the patchy information and 
claims made about “The Need for Change” and come up with an adequate response; the 
available time is simply not sufficient.  
  
The Solution:  
To ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge and does not 
prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data due to the 
potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice the ability 
of people to formulate adequate responses I request that: 
1.The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 
extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 
2.All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about this 
new option to submit additional information with their forms. 
3.All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire County 
Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their forms. 
  
Regards 
  

88 

From : 

23/01/2013 12:50 

To Whom it may concern, 
I am writing to state serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 
The Issue: The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which 
parents and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of 
the 10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 171



St. Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013 an objection was raised about the leading nature of the 
questions on the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated consultation 
objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself to capturing a 
partial view which is biased towards what Denbighshire County Council would like to capture 
or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually think and feel. In 
response to this a Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and 
suggested that parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form 
prescribes as additional sheets. 
I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. For example some information 
suffered serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this 
was the assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official 
that this was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are 
relative measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather 
relative rates of improvement. Other rather dubious “facts” that were presented as objective 
truths rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined 
terms such as “sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left 
stakeholders with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate 
responses to this consultation.  
Objections: 
·The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged in front 
of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of the 
10thJanuary have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact.  
·While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the form, 
only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/1/13 were told about this option. It is 
unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them. 
·The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of January, 
effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 29/1/2013, at 
least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is not enough 
time to organise a proper response to this additional need, and it falls significantly short even 
when measured Denbighshire County Council’s normal consultation period. Coupled with 
the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make sense of the patchy information and 
claims made about “The Need for Change” and come up with an adequate response; the 
available time is simply not sufficient.  
The Solution:  
To ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge and does not 
prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data due to the 
potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice the ability 
of people to formulate adequate responses I request that: 
1.The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 
extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 
2.All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about this 
new option to submit additional information with their forms. 
3.All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire County 
Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their forms. 
Please acknowledge receipt of my email.
  
Regards 

REDACTION

Page 172



94 

From : 

23/01/2013 20:36 

, 

23rd January 2013 

Dear Sir/Madame 
Re: Joint Faith Based Provision for North Denbighshire Consultation. 
I am writing to state serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 
The Issue: 
The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which parents 
and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of the 
10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at St. 
Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013, my husband raised an objection about the leading nature of 
the questions within the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated 
consultation objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself 
to capturing a partial view which is biased towards what I feel, Denbighshire County Council 
would like to capture or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually 
think and feel. In any consultation, it has to be viewed as meaningful by all its stakeholders 
and the opportunity to be heard, and indeed listened to, is a must.  In response to this a 
Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and suggested that 
parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form prescribes as 
additional sheets. 
I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. It is not fully clear as to what 
Denbighshire County Council is consulting on, is it purely about the need for change or a 
specific option, which would invoke that change? For example some information suffered 
serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this was the 
assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official that this 
was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are relative 
measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather relative 
rates of improvement. Other rather dubious “facts” that were presented as objective truths 
rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined terms 
such as “sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left stakeholders 
with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate responses to this 
consultation. 

Objections: 

• The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged 
in front of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of 
the 10thJanuary have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact. 

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 173



• While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the 
form, only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/1/13 were told about this option. It is 
unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them. 

• The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of 
January, effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 
29/1/2013, at least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is 
not enough time to organise an informed response to this additional need, and it falls 
significantly short even when measured against Denbighshire County Council’s normal 
consultation period. Coupled with the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make 
sense of the patchy information and claims made about “The Need for Change” and come 
up with an adequate response; the available time is simply not sufficient. 

The Solution: 
To ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge and does not 
prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data due to the 
potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice the ability 
of people to formulate adequate responses I request that: 

1. The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 
extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 

2. All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about 
this new option to submit additional information with their forms. 

3. All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire 
County Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their 
forms. 
In addition, I would ask that information is supplied on the actual process and timescales for 
consultation, I understand there are different stages but this has not been supplied. 
Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and a response to my questions. 
Yours Sincerely 

95 

From : 

23/01/2013 20:48 

Dear Sir/Madam, 
  
I am writing to state my serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 

The Issue: 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 174



The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which parents 
and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of the 
10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at St. 
Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013 an objection was raised about the leading nature of the 
questions on the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated consultation 
objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself to capturing a 
partial view which is biased towards what Denbighshire County Council would like to capture 
or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually think and feel. In 
response to this a Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and 
suggested that parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form 
prescribes as additional sheets. 

I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. For example some information 
suffered serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this 
was the assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official 
that this was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are 
relative measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather 
relative rates of improvement. Other rather dubious“facts” that were presented as objective 
truths rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined 
terms such as“sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left 
stakeholders with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate 
responses to this consultation.  

  
Objections: 
·The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged in front 
of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of the 
10thJanuary have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact.  

·While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the form, 
only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/1/13 were told about this option. It is 
unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them. 

·The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of January, 
effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 29/1/2013, at 
least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is not enough 
time to organise a proper response to this additional need, and it falls significantly short even 
when measured Denbighshire County Council’s normal consultation period. Coupled with 
the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make sense of the patchy information and 
claims made about “The Need for Change” and come up with an adequate response; the 
available time is simply not sufficient.  

The Solution:
To ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge and does not 
prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data due to the 
potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice the ability 
of people to formulate adequate responses I request that: 

1.The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 

Page 175



extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 

2.All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about this 
new option to submit additional information with their forms. 

3.All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire County 
Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their forms. 

 Regards, 

96 

From : 

23/01/2013 21:33 

We are writing to state serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 

The Issue:The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which 
parents and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of 
the 10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at 
St. Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013 an objection was raised about the leading nature of the 
questions on the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated consultation 
objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself to capturing a 
partial view which is biased towards what Denbighshire County Council would like to capture 
or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually think and feel. In 
response to this a Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and 
suggested that parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form 
prescribes as additional sheets. 

I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. For example some information 
suffered serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this 
was the assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official 
that this was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are 
relative measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather 
relative rates of improvement. Other rather dubious“facts” that were presented as objective 
truths rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined 
terms such as“sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left 
stakeholders with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate 
responses to this consultation.  

Objections: 

· The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged in front 
of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of the 
10thJanuary have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact.  

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 176



· While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the form, 
only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/1/13 were told about this option. It is 
unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them.  

· The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of January, 
effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 29/1/2013, at 
least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is not enough 
time to organise a proper response to this additional need, and it falls significantly short even 
when measured Denbighshire County Council’s normal consultation period. Coupled with 
the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make sense of the patchy information and 
claims made about “The Need for Change” and come up with an adequate response; the 
available time is simply not sufficient.  

The Solution:  
To ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge and does not 
prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data due to the 
potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice the ability 
of people to formulate adequate responses we request that: 

1. The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 
extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 

2. All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about this 
new option to submit additional information with their forms. 

3. All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire County 
Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their forms. 

Regards 

97 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 177



99 

From : 

26/01/2013 19:32 

To whom it may concern, 

As a past pupil of St. Brigid's School I was horrified to learn of plans to shut the school down. 
I left St. Brigid's last year to go to the University of Oxford with some excellent A level 
results. 

 my place in Oxford could not have been achieved without the superb 
teaching and family environment of St. Brigid's school.

  

The merging of St. Brigid's with another school would destroy everything that St. Brigid's has 
worked so hard to achieve. The small class sizes and nurturing ethos of the school is what 
makes it so effective as an academic institution. It would be detrimental to both schools to 
carry out the merge. I have seen the staff at St. Brigid's do some amazing things with the 
school, merging the schools would undo all their hard work. This school just isn't like any 
other teaching facility- theres no drugs, no bullying, all the students are so polite and well-
behaved, their reputation is fantastic, I do not see why somewhere so special should be 
allowed to have its identity dissolved in another institution. I am informed that there are 
ongoing enquiries to find benefactors for the school, and I am sure that with a little time 
these enquiries will be successful in finding some financial support for the school. 

St. Brigid's is one of the best things that this county has going for it at the minute. By 
merging the two schools you will not only fail to further faith education in the area, you will be
actively impeding it's progress. It is honestly felt by many supporters of the school that the 
consultation process has been rather rushed, and just by extending the time of the 
consultation period you will be aiding those involved to make a well-informed and sensible 
decision. 

Yours faithfully, 

   

100 

From : 

27/01/2013 20:52 

Dear Denbighshire County Council,  
You have welcomed comments about the proposed merger of St Bridget’s Denbigh and 
Blessed Edward Jones in Rhyl and the formation of a joint faith high school – please would 

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 178



you note my comments and if possible post them on your website along with others there. 
Many thanks
  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
As a teacher at St Joseph’s Catholic and Anglican High School in Wrexham I can whole 
heartedly recommend the success of a joint faith high school of up to 600 pupils as 
proposed.  
Our children are not saints but they all have a Christian attitude and everyone visiting our 
school comments on the wonderful atmosphere they find on entering. It is a real pleasure to 
work at St Joseph’s and belong to our community. Anyone who is unsure about the success 
of such an establishment should come and see for themselves! I wish everyone involved in 
the proposed merger of St Bridget’s Denbigh and Blessed Edward Jones Rhyl all the best 
and say to them “Be Brave! Be Bold! For the Lord your God is with you” as the hymn states!
  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 St Joseph’s Catholic and 
Anglican High School, Wrexham LL13 7EN (01978 360310) 

101 

 

 

         

REDACTION

Page 179



  

103 

From : 

28/01/2013 00:0 

Re: Joint Faith Based Provision for North Denbighshire Consultation.  
  
I am writing to state serious reservations around the above consultation with a view to 
seeking a meaningful extension of the initial consultation deadline of 29th January 2013. The 
grounds for this are below. 
  
The Issue: The Case for Change document clearly states that there are two means by which 
parents and stakeholders can submit their views to the consultation: the public meeting of 
the 10/1/2013 and the form contained within the said document. During the public meeting at 
St. Brigid’s school on 10/1/2013 an objection was raised about the leading nature of the 
questions on the consultation form and their limited scope in terms of the stated consultation 
objective of capturing stakeholder views. The point being, the form lends itself to capturing a 
partial view which is biased towards what Denbighshire County Council would like to capture 
or had thought of capturing, as opposed to what stakeholders actually think and feel. In 
response to this a Denbighshire County Council official said that it was a “fair criticism” and 
suggested that parents and stakeholders should submit their views beyond what the form 
prescribes as additional sheets. 
  
I also have concerns about the quality of the consultation with regard to the information 
provided as its basis; namely what is being consulted on. For example some information 
suffered serious omissions when presented during the public meeting. An instance of this 
was the assertion that two merging schools were banded as 2 and the claim by the official 
that this was proof of their equivalence. What was omitted was that these bandings are 
relative measures that do not quantify absolute benchmarks of quality/performance, rather 
relative rates of improvement. Other rather dubious “facts” that were presented as objective 
truths rather than justifications from a certain perspective were glossed over with ill-defined 
terms such as “sustainability” and “transformational”. These shortcomings have left 
stakeholders with a significant amount of additional work to do to formulate adequate 
responses to this consultation.   
  
  
Objections:  
·         The form for the consultation lends itself to bias, this much has been acknowledged in 
front of a room full of stakeholders. This means all forms submitted prior to the meeting of 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 180



the 10th January have not only not had the opportunity to submit supplementary 
views/information, but have been potentially biased by the leading/limiting nature of the form. 
A true reflection of stakeholder views could be prejudiced by this fact.  
  
·         While the remedy to this is the option to submit supplementary information with the 
form, only stakeholders who attended the meeting of 10/12/13 were told about this option. It 
is unclear whether this advice was repeated at other meetings and there has been no formal 
contact to stakeholders that this option is available to them.   
  
·         The fact that the supplementary option only emerged at the meeting of the 10th of 
January, effectively means that rather than the consultation running from 6/12/2012 – to 
29/1/2013, at least a part of it, this new part, is running from 10/1/2013 – 29/1/2013. This is 
not enough time to organise a proper response to this additional need, and it falls 
significantly short even when measured Denbighshire County Council’s normal consultation 
period. Coupled with the additional burden placed on stakeholders to make sense of the 
patchy information and claims made about “The Need for Change” and come up with an 
adequate response; the available time is simply not sufficient.      
  
The Solution: to ensure this part of the consultation is fair, is not subject to further challenge 
and does not prejudice either the chances of being heard, the quality of the submitted data 
due to the potential biases introduced by the consultation process itself or does not prejudice 
the ability of people to formulate adequate responses I request that: 
  
1.      The deadline of 29/1/2013 is extended to accommodate the new option of submitting 
supplementary information and formulate an adequate response to the information that has 
been put out in and around the consultation by Denbighshire County Council . This 
extension needs to be meaningful and in the order of weeks to accommodate the time 
already lost by the 10/1/2013. 
  
2.      All stakeholders are contacted by Denbighshire County Council and informed about 
this new option to submit additional information with their forms. 
  
3.      All stakeholders who have already submitted forms are contacted by Denbighshire 
County Council and informed that they can submit information which is additional to their 
forms. 
  
 Regards  

  
Parent of 3 St Brigid’s Pupils

104 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 181



105 

28/01/2013 23:16 

Dear sir, as a parent of a child that goes to st bridgets in Denbigh I was informed tonight of a 
questionnaire that was supposed to go out to all parents in the school. As I and maybe 
others who have not yet received this letter and wish to take part in the questionnaire, I hear 
the dead line is the 28th but hope you can delay it until we all have had a chance to speak 
up.  

Many thanks 

106 

         
  

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 182



  

  

  

108 

From : 

29/01/2013 09:19 

To whom it may concern, 
  
Attached is our completed questionnaire and in addition would like to raise the following 
issues and concerns relating to the proposal of the merge / new school. 
  
Firstly we are very disappointed that an extension for the consultation was rejected, we feel 
we have been rushed to raise our concerns and time to gather and digest the information 
provided and respond accordingly. Hence our response so late! 
  
We also feel the questionnaire is very leading with its questions and feel this especially on 
question 3 asking to rank statements that Denbighshire CC think influence parents on their 
choice of secondary education. Denbighshire CC need to ask parents an open question with 
regards to this and not direct them to the answer. One of the main reasons that we send our 
child to St Brigids is not on this questionnaire. We chose St Brigids due to its ethos, 
extremely high standards, values and educational outcomes based on both exam results 
and the complete, well mannered and rounded member of society it produces. The type of 
young adult we wish our child to become. 
  
The proposal does not mention anything about what will happen to the primary school if the 
new school goes ahead, I attended the meeting on the 10th January at the consultation 
meeting and when a parent questioned this, no answer was given, it was practically ignored! 
What will happen with the primary school?  This was a major factor why we decided to send 
our child to St Brigid's as it is a 3-19 school and the 3-19 model is a progressive model in 
education that has shown to have many benefits. Ceredigion County Council commissioned 
a report into the impact of 3 -19 school by Optima Learning in 2011 
(http://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/utilities/action/act_download.cfmmediaid=34251&langtoken=e
ng) the main conclusions of this report were the benefits 
and advantages of a 3-19 school 
• a common ethos and shared values across the school
• joined up curriculum planning to increase coherence and continuity in pupils’ learning
• progressive skill development and focus on building pupils’ bilingual competence
• greater consistency in learning and teaching styles
• opportunities for cross-age learning and shared enrichment and community-based 
activities 
• extended care and support for pupils with additional learning needs and in provision for 
other vulnerable groups 
• increased access for pupils to a range of specialist accommodation, facilities and learning 
resources 

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 183



• developing relationships and shared expertise and between primary and secondary phase 
staff 
• joint management and implementation of common systems for recording and tracking 
pupils’ progress
• unified governance and efficient use of financial and human resources
• strengthened links with parents and involvement of the local community 
  
These benefits are clear and tangible and if a similar report was commissioned into St 
Brigid’s, the same benefits would be seen.
  
Transition is seen as a stressful area for many children I think it is important that DCC is able 
to provide a school which provides a smooth, stress free transition and the 3-19 model is 
able to meet these needs. The evidence for finding this is found in “Negotiating the 
Transition from Primary to Secondary School Perceptions of Pupils, Parents and Teachers” 
by M. Suzanne Zeedyk, Kenny Lindsay et al, Feb 2003. This shows that,“The transition from 
primary to secondary school is regarded as one of the most difficult in pupils' educational 
careers.” The article describes the results of a survey undertaken in the UK, in which the 
views of primary pupils, secondary pupils, parents and teachers were ascertained in regard 
to the transition process. “Results showed that bullying was a major concern for all groups, 
followed by fears of getting lost, increased workload and peer relationships, among others. 
The views of primary pupils and their parents were highly similar, and if the experience of 
transition is to be improved, it may be necessary to focus efforts on both of these groups. 
Teachers rarely identified children's individual abilities as making a difference to the 
transition process, focusing instead on institutional initiatives, an emphasis that carries the 
risk of creating a degree of helplessness for individual pupils.” Another relevant study is also 
“Transition from Primary to Secondary School: Current Arrangements and Good Practice in 
Wales Final Report“Robat Powell, Robert Smith, Gareth Jones and Angharad Reakes, 
October 2006. This looked into the current practice in Wales and some of the potential 
effects of poor transition and how a dip in attainment can be avoided by closer links and 
smoother transition between Key Stage 2 and 3.  How can the process of amalgamating the 
2 schools meet the legal requirement that, “any new school has to be equal or better 
standard than the previous schools?” Ofsted commented when inspecting the Caroline 
Chisholm School (4-18) that the main feature of good practice was, “The school has been 
quick to build upon the opportunities arising from being an all-through school. Teaching and 
learning throughout the school have benefited from the sharing of expertise that is present in 
each key stage.“ (ref http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/inspection-reports/find-inspection-
report/provider/ELS/134177) At St Brigid’s the all-through approach eliminates many of 
these anxieties and concerns ensuring children are able to achieve their full potential. 
Reducing anxiety 
for children has to be a priority of any council. 
  
The proposals of the new school are a far cry from what we want as parents for our child.  
We want to send our child to a transitional, small school which produces excellent results in 
Denbigh, which is what St Brigid's is.  Moving the school out of Denbigh will create a great 
loss on the local economy in Denbigh, which is already suffering.  St Brigid's is an excellent 
school on a beautiful, inspiring site merging it with another school to a new site will most 
definately lose its strengths and unique points which is why we chose the school for our 
child: such as it's wonderful ethos, excellent results & values, small family friendly 
environment.  My child feels safe and secure at St Brigids the way it is currently, changing it 
to create a new large school in Rhyl will lose this very important factor. St Brigid's is unquie, 
merging it will lose this and its pupils, because it isn't what parents want for their children's 
education.   
  
We must stress that we will not be sending our child and any future children to the new 
proposed school due to the reasons highlighted above. 

Page 184



  
Please acknowledge upon receipt. 
  
Regards 
  

109 

 

      
      

       

      

  

  

110 

From : 

29/01/2013 17:16 

James 
I noticed a couple of points that i hadn't made, Ive been trying to pull together an 
implementation plan for an internal project at work, at the same time as writing all this up. 
can you add these to the process 
regards 

REDACTION

REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 185



  

  
Supplementary comments 
1                     The questionnaire does not allow the opportunity to state if you would send 
you children to the new school or not. I would like it to be known that I would not be confident 
to send our children to the new school and should be discounted from any pupil roll count 
you may be compiling. 
2                     The aspect of the impact on Denbigh should also be taken into account. It has 
already lost some important local facilities. The businesses in Denbigh will be hard hit by the 
removal of St Brigids and the consequent drop in revenues arising from the parents who 
shop there, after and before children collection, kids parties and because Denbigh becomes 
a centre of gravity. I have started to use Denbigh shops and services much more frequently 
since our children started attending St Brigids. 
3                     During the Parent consultation meeting on 10th January Ms Walley stated that 
along with the 28.8m request to WAG DCC had also requested “Ysgol Glan Clwyd had a 
huge issue they did not have enough capacity so we needed to put mobiles in”. It seems to 
me illogical that a) St Brigids can be condemned for the mobile classrooms it uses set 
against the 21st Century requirements, b) WAG can only fund 21st Century transformational 
requests c) Ysgol Glan Clwyd can be provided with Mobile classrooms from the same fund.  

The three statements do not hang together. 
 regards 
  

111 

 
  

  
  

  

  
  

 
  

  

  
  

  
  

REDACTIO

REDACTION

Page 186



Redaction Redaction Redaction

Redaction Redaction
Redaction Reda

ction

Redaction Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redacti

onRedaction

Redactio

n

Redactio

nReda

ction

Reda

ctionReda

ction
Re

dac

tion

Red

acti

on

Re

dac

tion

Redaction

Red

actio

n

Reda

ction Red

acti

on

Red

acti

on
Re

dac

tion Redaction

Red

acti

on

Reda

ction

Re

dac

tion

Re

da

ctio

Redaction

Redaction

Red

actio

n

Redaction

Appendix 2b

Page 187



Redaction

Redaction

Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 191



Redactio

n

Redactio

nRedactio

n

Redaction

Page 192



Page 193



Redaction

Page 194



Redaction

Page 195



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 196



Redaction

Redaction

Page 197



Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Redaction Redaction

Redact

ion

Redaction
Redaction

Redaction

Redaction

Page 198



Reda

ction

Redaction
Redaction

Redactio

nReda

ction

Reda

ctionRedaction

Redaction

Redac

tionRedaction

Page 199



Page 200



Redaction

Page 201



Q8 Please detail any other details you may wish to raise

ST Brigids School is an outstanding school with an excellent record of achievement. The school is 

small, has a friendly atmosphere, where every child is known by name. This is a place where 

children thrive and are taught more than the curriculum entails. The Catholic ethos of the school 

teachers children to be kind to one another, to have respect and behave appropriately. The children 

are able to learn about other countries and cultures via the children who board at the school, who 

are from all over the world. The school takes children from all faith backgrounds which makes it 

accessible to all faith domains. 

The curriculum has the option of dance and astronomy which in my opinion should be available in 

each and every school. The dance option keeps children motivated and fit and benefits those who 

have a passion/interest or who wish to pursue a career in performing arts. The majority of children 

are interested in space and planets and the option to study this can only satisfying their curiosity and 

imaginations. 

The school's location is beautiful, a real jewel in the crown of Denbigh.The pupils wear smart 

uniforms which can be bought large to last a number of years or second hand. The cost of this 

eventually works out as the same price of any other uniform, making it an affordable option for all 

parents despite their income. The uniforms are smart and reflect the outstanding  performance of the 

school. If children look smart surely they will thinks smart, the results speak for themselves. 

Therefore St. Brigids is a school that both staff, parents and pupils are proud of, and do not 

wish for this amazing school to change.

If this was a failing school then there would be a case for change. Why change what already 

works.

There is no need for a large faith school, no parent wants this. Why do we need it?
St.Brigids already takes children from all faith domains. 

St. Brigids does not need to be amalgamated with Blessed Edward Jones. Both schools seem to

work well  independently. So why change what already works.

I believe the money would be better spent modernising the existing buildings at both schools.

St. Brigids would benefit from a safe crossing outside the school before an accident actually 

happens and the modernisation of  buildings on its existing site, improving a school that already 

works. The rest should stay exactly the same, there is no reason to change it.

Nobody Wants A Large Faith School. It Is Insane to change A school That Is 

Outstanding In Every Way.

Please Do Not Close Or Amalgamate Our School.  

It Is Wonderful Just the Way It Is!

Redaction

Page 202



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



REDACTION REDACTION

Page 207



Joint Faith Based Provision for North Denbighshire – Consultation Response 

St Brigid’s School, Denbigh, has a very high reputation amongst parents, not only those from 

Denbighshire but also from neighbouring counties.  This is demonstrated by the widespread 

catchment area for pupils currently attending this school.  It is testament to the high regard that 

parents and pupils have for the school that they are prepared to travel so far and to pay for private 

travel provision in order to attend St Brigid’s school.  This is not only because of the excellent exam 

results achieved by the pupils but also because of the environment in which that education is 

delivered.  I do not refer to the state of the buildings, but more importantly the respect for each 

other and self-discipline amongst pupils and staff which allow that learning to take place. 

I can only report on my own considerations when choosing St Brigid’s for our daughters and what we 

have subsequently experienced.  During the three years I commuted to Wales from Cumbria, whilst 

our eldest daughter finished her education in England, we had the time to review Estyn reports and 

the educational attainment of various schools in North Wales.  These reports give the reader very 

little understanding of the ethos and culture of the various schools, which was evident when we 

visited some of these “Grade 1” schools.  Our decision was based upon less tangible qualities such 

as: 

Ethos and Religion 

The ethos at St Brigid’s is different to many other schools.  It is very welcoming and supportive.  Staff 

and pupils at the school made time for our enquiries about the school and listened to our concerns 

about moving in to the area and to a new school. 

As Catholics we wanted our daughters to go to a Catholic school and to be surrounded by references 

to the faith at school.  This connection is embodied in the physical presence of the chapel and in the 

person of Sr.  Liz.  It is difficult to know what to attribute the ethos to, whether it is the Catholic 

faith, the school’s long history, the size and age range of the school or the beautiful location.  

Whatever it is the pupils that attend are generally polite, confident and caring.  Our youngest 

daughter is not particularly academic but she gains much satisfaction from acting and performing in 

the school productions.  It will be impossible to replicate this nurturing environment on a different 

site and I worry that a generic “faith school” will dilute the religious references and teaching. 

3 – 19 Age Range 

Having moved our youngest daughter at the age of eight to a new country, home and school we did 

not want her education disrupted again by moving to a different secondary school.  The fact that she 

could go to the same school as her sister, in the 6
th

 form, along with the supportive atmosphere of 

the school made the transition less traumatic and she soon settled in and thrives at St Brigid’s.  I will 

leave the academic research into the advantages of 3 - 19 education for others to convey. 

School Size 

In my opinion this is very important not only for young children but also for older pupils.  It is so easy 

to be overlooked in the crowd and even able students can be lost in the exam grade sausage 

machine.  Our middle daughter is academic but was about to embark on a selection of ‘A’ levels 

which would not have enabled her to get into a top university.  Fortunately when she came to St 

Brigid’s she was noticed, guided onto other subjects, supported and encouraged by a number of 

teachers to apply to the University of Cambridge.  One of the Governors gave up her own time to 

coach and practice interview techniques with our daughter and another Governor even lent her the 

train fare to go to the open day at .  It is rare to find such personal interest and 

family like support from people connected with a school.  Our daughter is now happy in her second 

year studying  at  Cambridge. 

REDACTION

REDACTIONREDACTION

Page 208



The Future 

Despite what I have said about size I would like to see many more children benefit from St Brigid’s 

pastoral and education care.  As you are aware there is a considerable waiting list for the school, 

which is limited by the currently physical size of the buildings.  If the proposed capital funding could 

be used to increase the size of the school on its current site it could keep at its heart the old building.  

This could be similar to the design for Ysgol Glan Clwyd.  This would maintain investment in the 

Denbigh area rather than, as usually happens, pouring more money into the Rhyl area.  It could build 

on the faith provision which is already an integral part of St. Brigid’s, develop the already successful 

brand and to allow it to be available to far wider cohort of potential pupils. 

By moving the location it would break the historical connection and destroy the ethos which makes 

St Brigid’s so successful at developing rounded, mature, well-mannered and aspirational young 

people. 

 

 

28/01/2013 

 

REDACTION

Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



REDACTION

REDACTION

Page 214



 

Formal Consultation Document

Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based 

School for North Denbighshire

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Formal Consultation Document

 

Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based 

School for North Denbighshire 

 

  

APPENDIX 3 

 

Formal Consultation Document 

Proposal for a new Joint Faith Based  

 

Page 215



 

 

1 

 

Contents  

 

No Description Page No 

Introduction 2 

1.  Context 2 

2.  Summary of proposal 2 

3.  Consultation Process 4 

4.  Power to make a decision 6 

Background Information 7 

5.  Background to the proposal 7 

6.  Current Provision 7 

7.  Educational attainment 13 

8.  Alternative provision 18 

9.  Primary  provision 25 

10.  Special educational needs provision 28 

The Proposal 30 

11.  What we are proposing 30 

12.  The proposal in detail 32 

13.  Creating and maintaining the right ethos 34 

14.  Admission arrangements 35 

15.  How will the final site location be determined? 35 

16.  What are the transport implications of this proposal? 36 

17.  What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 37 

18.  What are the financial implications of this proposal? 37 

19.  How would any new school buildings be financed? 39 

20.  What are the disadvantages of this proposal? 40 

21.  Alternative options 41 

22.  Explanation of the statutory process 47 

23.  Community and equality assessment  48 

24.  Response proforma  

 

 

Page 216



 

 

2 

 

Introduction 
 

1. Context 

 

1.1 Denbighshire County Council, the Catholic Diocese of Wrexham, the Church in 

Wales Diocese of St Asaph and the Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust (together the 

Promoters) have undertaken and completed an informal consultation with regard 

to how future provision for secondary faith education in north Denbighshire could 

be provided.   
(Please note the inclusion of the Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust as a Promoter is dependent upon support 

from the Trustees to this proposal. If support is not forthcoming they will be deleted as a Promoter) 

 

1.2 As a consequence of the informal consultation exercise the Promoters wish 

formally to consult with all interested parties on a proposal which they consider 

would strengthen future provision. 

 

1.3 The proposal that: 

 

a. Denbighshire County Council would close Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High School and St Brigid’s School on 31
st

 August 2014; and 

 

b. The Catholic Diocese of Wrexham, the Church in Wales Diocese of St 

Asaph together with the Trustees of St Brigid’s would establish a new 

Anglican & Catholic Faith Voluntary Aided School serving the communities 

of Denbigh, Rhyl and surrounding areas on the existing sites from 1
st

 

September 2014. 

 

1.4 Throughout this document the new Anglican & Catholic Faith School referred to in 

paragraph 1.3 b above is called the New Dual-Site Faith School.  

 

1.5 The Promoters will, at a later date, make a separate proposal to construct a new 

building for the New Dual-Site Faith School on a new site in the 

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area.  The location of the new site will be determined at a 

future date and will be the subject of a separate formal consultation with all 

stakeholders. 

 

1.6 No decision will be made on location at this stage. 

 

1.7 This proposal should be considered separately to the consultation undertaken by St 

Brigid’s Trust to consider the closure of the Boarding element of the School as of 1
st

 

September 2013. 

 

2. Summary of proposal 

 

 First Phase 

 

Page 217



 

 

3 

 

2.1 This formal consultation relates to a proposal to create the New Dual-Site Faith 

School to serve both the North Denbighshire area and to accommodate pupils from 

neighbouring authorities who wish to be educated at a faith school.  Throughout 

this document, this proposal is called the Current Proposal. 

 

2.2 If the Current Proposal is agreed and implemented the First Phase would see the 

existing Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School close on 

31
st

 August 2014.  The Dual Site Faith School would open on 1
st

 September and 

would initially use the existing buildings in Denbigh and Rhyl.  The Rhyl site (the 

former Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School) would offer 11-16 provision 

whilst the Denbigh site (the former St Brigid’s School) would offer 3-18 provision.  

Throughout this document the creation of the New Dual-Site Faith School is called 

the First Phase. 

 

Second Phase 

 

2.3 The next phase would see the New Dual-Site Faith School consolidated on a new 

site in the Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area.  Throughout this document the movement 

of the New Dual-Site Faith School onto a new site is called the Second Phase and 

the school operating from the new site is called the Single-Site Faith School.  

 

2.4 As the change envisaged by the Second Phase would involve the location of the 

New Dual-Site Faith School moving by over a mile, a similar consultation process 

would be required.  The timescale for the publication of any such process is 

dependent on the progression of the Current Proposal but the required formal 

consultation is expected to commence by no later than the summer of 2015.  It is 

anticipated that the project to commence building a Single-Site Faith School would 

begin during the 2016/17 financial year.  These two dates are dependent upon the 

implementation date for the First Phase of the Current Proposal (as set out in 

paragraph 2.2 above). 

 

2.5 The age range of the Single-Site Faith School would be confirmed during the Second 

Phase consultation.  Within this the main options would be whether the school 

should serve a 3 – 16 age range or an 11-16 age range.  The size would also be 

determined during this Second Phase consultation and it is envisaged that this 

would be in the region of 600 – 750 pupils on the new site.  

 

2.6 The post 16 provision will be provided predominantly by the existing Rhyl and 

Prestatyn VI partnership.  A further consultation would confirm how such provision 

would be delivered.  It is envisaged that the majority of courses would be provided 

via the existing Rhyl and Prestatyn Sixth Partnership which delivers provision at 

Coleg Llandrillo in Rhyl and Prestatyn High School.  The Single-Site Faith School 

would host a small range of courses as part of the partnership to ensure that 

elements of post 16 can be delivered by the faith providers.   

 

 

  

Page 218



 

 

4 

 

3. Consultation Process 

 

3.1 This formal consultation process relates to the Current Proposal and the First Phase 

(the Second Phase will be the subject of a separate consultation process).   This 

formal consultation is being carried out to ensure that all relevant parties have an 

opportunity to contribute to this important subject.   

 

3.2 This formal consultation document has been sent to a wide range of potential 

consultees including: 

a. Conwy County Borough Council; 

b. Flintshire County Council; 

c. Catholic Diocese of Wrexham; 

d. Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph; 

e. Chair of The Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust; 

f. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following schools: 

  i) Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School; 

ii) St Brigid’s School; 

iii) Rhyl High School; 

  iv) Prestatyn High School; 

  v) Denbigh High School; and 

  vi) St Richard Gwyn Catholic High School, 

g. Parents, teachers and ancillary staff of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High 

School and St Brigid’s School; 

h. Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of all Denbighshire Schools; 

i. Coleg Llandrillo; 

j. Rhyl and Prestatyn VI and Dyffryn Clwyd Learning Partnership; 

k. Independent nursery providers in the Denbigh area; 

l. Parents of pupils attending the following Primary Schools in Denbighshire: 

  i) Ysgol Mair RC Primary School, Rhyl 

  ii) St Asaph VP and Ysgol Esgob Morgan, St Asaph 

  iii) Ysgol Trefnant VA, Trefnant 

m. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following Primary Schools in 

Conwy: 

  i) Ysgol St Joseph’s RC,  Colwyn Bay   

ii) Ysgol y Plas, Llanelian 

iii) Ysgol Betws yn Rhos 

iv) Ysgol Llanddulas 

v) Ysgol St George  

n. Chair of Governors and School Council of the following Primary Schools in 

Flintshire:- 

  i) St Winefrede’s in Holywell 

ii) Ysgol yr Esgob, Caerwys 

iii) Nannerch VC School 

iv) Ysgol y Llan, Whitford 

v) Ysgol Trelawnyd  

vi) St Mary’s, Nercwys. 

Page 219



 

 

5 

 

 

o. Denbighshire Children and Young People’s Partnership and the Early Years 

Development and Childcare Partnerships; 

p. All Denbighshire County Councillors; 

q. Assembly Members and Members of Parliament representing areas affected 

by the proposal; 

r. Rhyl Town Council; 

s. Denbigh Town Council; 

t. The Welsh Government; 

v. Estyn; 

w. The local Communities First Partnership (in relevant areas); 

x. Relevant teaching and staff trades unions; 

y. North Wales Consortium 

z. Taith 

aa. North Wales Police Commissioner 

 

3.3 This formal consultation document has also been published on the Denbighshire 

County Council website www.denbighshire.gov.uk
i
 

 

3.4 The formal consultation period in respect of the Current Proposal will take place 

between 3
rd

 June and 22
nd

 July 2013. 

 

3.5 A series of formal consultation events will take place during this period, details of 

which can be found in paragraph ** on page ** below.  These include open 

workshops for parents to be informed further of the Current Proposal which will 

provide the opportunity for an open question and answer session around the 

various elements of the Current Proposal.   

 

3.6 Events will also be held with children and young people at Blessed Edward Jones 

Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School.  Open evenings will also be arranged to 

gather the views of parents from primary schools which are expected to be 

impacted by the Current Proposal. 

 

3.7 A supplementary version
ii
 of this formal consultation document has been produced 

for and made available to children and young people who are likely to be affected 

by the Current Proposal.  The supplementary version has been written specifically 

to enable children and young people better to understand and engage with the 

formal consultation. 

 

3.8 You are welcome to ask questions and let us have your views on the Current 

Proposal at the events mentioned above or to put your views in writing.  Responses 

should be sent to Modernising Education Programme Team, Denbighshire County 

Council, County Hall, Wynnstay Road, Ruthin, LL15 1YN or by e-mail to 

modernisingeducation@denbighshire.gov.uk by no later than 22
nd

 July 2013. 

 

Page 220



 

 

6 

 

3.9 At the end of the formal consultation period all views received will be collated and 

considered before any recommendation is made to proceed to the next stage and 

publish formal proposals. 

 

3.10 It is anticipated that Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet will consider a report 

on the outcome of this formal consultation (including a recommendation from 

Council officers) on 24
th

 September 2013.  

 

3.11 Approval of any recommendation may allow the proposal to be published by way of 

a statutory notice in October 2013. 

 

4. Power to make a decision 

 

4.1 It is important to note that any decision to proceed with the Current Proposal will 

be a joint decision between the Proposers. 

 

4.2 Denbighshire County Council is permitted
iii
 to publish proposals to discontinue a 

voluntary aided or foundation school; as are the Governors
iv
.  Accordingly, the 

formal publication of the closure of the two existing schools may be carried out by 

the council following the correct statutory procedure. 

 

4.3 The proposal to establish a new voluntary aided school will be published by the 

Catholic Diocese of Wrexham, the Church in Wales Diocese of St Asaph and St 

Brigid’s Trust, in partnership with Denbighshire County Council
v
.  Under existing 

legislation whilst Denbighshire County Council could seek to establish a new 

voluntary aided school; it is expected that this will continue to be the case when 

new legislation comes in later this year; it is considered appropriate that such 

provision is planned in partnership with the Diocesan authorities who will be 

responsible for the operation of the school.  The Council’s role in the establishment 

of a new voluntary aided school would be advisory/supportive.  This means that the 

proposal relating to the formation of the New Dual-Site Faith School will be 

published by the Diocesan authorities and St Brigid’s Trust, in partnership with 

Denbighshire. 

  

Page 221



 

 

7 

 

Background Information  
 

5. Background to the proposal 

 

5.1 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the Modernising Education Policy 

Framework
vi
 in January 2009 to provide a platform upon which to review existing 

school provision. 

 

5.2 The council is committed to providing a first class education for all children and 

young people in the county. As part of this commitment, the Council has agreed 

that ‘modernising education provision’ is a priority because we recognise the 

importance of having school buildings, learning environments and resources that 

meet the needs of 21st century Wales. 

 

5.3 We know that we have to change and modernise education provision in the county, 

as improvements in education cannot be sustained without changes to the way 

education is provided.  Schools need to be able to provide the best possible 

learning experience so that children and young people in Denbighshire have the 

widest opportunities available to them and are able to reach their full potential. 

 

5.4 In November 2012 Denbighshire County Council’s Cabinet approved the 

commencement of an informal consultation on the future of faith based education 

in north Denbighshire.  The informal consultation document
vii

 highlighted a number 

of issues that needed to be addressed to achieve long term sustainability.  These 

included: 

a. the need to ensure that future provision could sustain and safeguard 

standards of education; 

b. improving the learning environment at both Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High School and St Brigid’s School;  

c. the removal of mobile accommodation at St Brigid’s School; and  

d. strengthening the leadership and management capacity at both schools. 

 

5.5 The informal consultation ended on 29
th

 January 2013 and the Promoters have 

carefully considered the issues raised during this period.  In total over 115 letters 

and emails
viii

 were received from stakeholders together with 178 questionnaires 

completed by parents.  The findings of the informal consultation exercise have 

been compiled by the council and have been published on its website as part of the 

decision making process. 

 

6. Current Provision 

 

6.1 This section details the current provision at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High 

School and St Brigid’s School.  The section will also provide comparable information 

on schools at both primary and secondary level which are likely to be affected by 

the Current Proposal. 

  

Page 222



 

 

8 

 

Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School 

 

6.2 The current Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School is situated on Cefndy Road, 

Rhyl and serves an age range of 11-16.  It is a Voluntary Aided School under the 

authority of the Catholic Diocese of Wrexham; predominately serving children 

wishing to receive a Catholic and/or Christian education in the town of Rhyl.   The 

school also serves the surrounding areas as illustrated in the diagram below which 

shows the postcode location of the home address for each pupil. 

6.3 As of January 2013 the Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School had 499 full time 

pupils.  The pupil numbers have fluctuated over recent years as illustrated below: 

 

Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

408 466 485 480 499 

 

6.4 As of January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows: 

 

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 

84 78 120 137 80 

 

6.5 The council’s forecast of future pupil rolls, based on current pupil primary pupils in 

schools who normally transfer, suggests that a drop in future pupil numbers will 

occur at the school as illustrated below: 

  

Page 223



 

 

9 

 

 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

486 433 395 410 394 

 

6.6 The capacity of the school building has been calculated at 659 pupils.  As of January 

2013 the school had 160 surplus (empty) places; equivalent to 24.3% of the total 

capacity.  The percentage of surplus places at the school has been impacted by the 

decision to close post 16 provision at the school in 2010. 

 

6.7 Educational Standards at the school have seen significant improvements in recent 

years.  The school’s last Estyn Inspection was in October 2012
ix
 and the inspection 

report in summary commented as follows: 

“Current performance 

Good features in the school’s current performance include:  

• a trend of improvement at both key stage 3 and key stage 4 that is being 

well maintained;  

• key stage 4 qualifications that include English and mathematics, which are 

significantly better than the average in similar schools, now places the school 

in the top quartile and significantly above modelled expectations;  

• the development of pupils’ literacy skills across the curriculum;  

• a strong community ethos;  

• lessons that well planned and teacher marking that provides pupils with a 

clear understanding of their progress; and  

• very good pupil behaviour in lessons and around the school.  

 

Prospects for improvement 

The school’s prospects for improvement are good because:  

• the headteacher has a clear vision, and high expectations for the school, 

which are is  well understood by all staff and pupils and are leading to higher 

standards;  

• more challenging targets are now being set for raising standards;  

• the restructuring of the senior leadership team ensures that there is strategic 

oversight of all key matters of the school’s work to improve standards;  

• governors support and challenge the school effectively;  

• the school works well with a wide range of partners and agencies to enhance 

the curriculum; and  

• the budget deficit is being effectively tackled and the school is on track to 

pay off the deficit.” 

 

Key Question  Blessed Edward Jones Inspection 

Judgement 

1. How good are the outcomes? Good 

2. How good is provision? Good 

3. How good are leadership and Good 

Page 224



 

 

10 

 

management? 

The school’s current performance Good 

The school’s prospects for improvement Good 

Key: 

Excellent  Many strengths, including significant examples of sector leading practice 

Good  Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement 

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement 

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths 

 

St Brigid’s School 

 

6.8 The current St Brigid’s School is situated just outside of the town of Denbigh on the 

A543 road.  The school is recognised as a middle school which serves an age range 

of 3-18.  The current sixth form provision is provided in conjunction with the 

Dyffryn Clwyd partnership, which also includes Denbigh High School, Ysgol 

Brynhyfryd, Ruthin, Ysgol Glan Clwyd, St Asaph, Deeside College and Coleg 

Llandrillo. The school serves predominately children wishing to receive a Catholic 

and/or Christian education and serves a wide catchment area.  The main towns 

from where pupils are drawn are Denbigh, Rhyl, Prestatyn, St Asaph, Holywell and 

Rhuddlan as illustrated in the diagram below.  It is worth noting that although the 

school is located in Denbigh the immediate Denbigh area accounts for less than a 

third of pupils with a similar proportion of pupils based in the 

Prestatyn/Rhuddlan/Rhyl area. 

 

Location of Primary Pupils 

 

 
 

 

Page 225



 

 

11 

 

 

Location of Secondary Pupils 

 

 
6.9 As of January 2013 the school had across all ranges 490 full time pupils with a 

further 10 part-time nursery pupils.  The pupil numbers have remained consistent 

over recent years as illustrated below: 

 

 Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Primary  

Reception 

to Year 6 

129 134 133 137 130 

Year 7 to 

Year 11 

284 283 281 286 282 

Years 

12/13 

70 58 72 88 78 

TOTAL  483 475 486 511 490 

TOTAL 

Secondary 

354 341 353 374 360 

 

6.10 As of January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows: 

 

Nursery Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 

10 12 14 12 21 19 27 25 

Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13  

55 58 55 57 57 46 32 

 

Page 226



 

 

12 

 

6.11 The Council’s forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that pupil numbers will remain 

consistent at the school as illustrated below: 

 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

366 362 357 353 350 

 

6.12 The capacity of the school building, following representations from the Governing 

Body, has now been calculated at 121 pupils for 4-11 provision and 367 pupils for 

11-18 provision leading to an overall capacity of 488 pupils.  At January 2013 the 

school had a deficit (over capacity) of 9 places or 7.4% of the total capacity at 

primary level and a surplus (empty) of 7 places or 1.9% of the total capacity at 

secondary level. 

 

6.13 The school’s last Estyn Inspection was undertaken in May 2010
x
 and was based on 

the previous inspection framework.  At present inspections are undertaken on a 6 

yearly basis and based on such arrangements the next inspection will take place no 

later than May 2016.  The inspection report in summary commented as follows: 

 

“While St Brigid’s School has several good features, it also has a number of 

important shortcomings which need attention.  

Among the school’s good features are the:  

• acting headteacher’s vision for school improvement;  

• progress made by learners in the primary department;  

• teaching and assessment in the primary department; and  

• support and guidance for learners in the primary department.  

 

However, there are shortcomings in the progress made by a significant minority of 

pupils in the secondary department. There are shortcomings, also, in teaching and 

assessment at KS3, KS4 and in the sixth form, and in leadership and management at 

all levels throughout the school.  

While the school has made good progress in several areas since the time the school 

was last inspected, there are important key issues which have not been addressed 

since that time. Particular shortcomings that remain are:  

• the variation in the processes of self-evaluation;  

• the inconsistency in sharing good teaching practices across the curriculum;  

• the constraints imposed by the school’s accommodation; and  

• standards of information and communication technology (ICT) across the 

curriculum.  

 

As a result of these important shortcomings, the school is not yet moving forward 

sufficiently so as to fulfil its true potential.”  

Page 227



 

 

13 

 

 

 

Key Question St Brigid’s Inspection grade - 

2010 

1. How well do learners achieve? 3 

2. How effective are teaching, training and 

assessment?  

3 

3. How well do the learning experiences meet the 

needs and interests of learners and the wider 

community?  

3 

4. How well are learners cared for, guided and 

supported? 

3 

5. How effective are leadership and strategic 

management? 

3 

6. How well do leaders and managers evaluate 

and improve quality and standards? 

3 

7. How efficient are leaders and managers in 

using resources? 

3 

Key: 

Grade 1  Good with outstanding features 

Grade 2  Good features and no important shortcomings 

Grade 3  Good features outweigh shortcomings 

Grade 4  Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas 

Grade 5  Many important shortcomings 

 

7. Educational attainment  

 

7.1 In making comparisons between the educational attainment between Blessed 

Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School, it is important to 

acknowledge the differences in the demographic backgrounds to the pupils who 

attend both schools. 

 

7.2 Nationally, the educational achievement of girls is usually higher than boys. Until 

recently St Brigid’s School did not admit boys into the school and at present there 

are a higher proportion of girls attending the school than boys.  This may impact on 

comparisons in performance.  Therefore for valid comparisons in the tables below 

the performance for girls is used as the main indicator. 

 

7.3 In addition, it is also acknowledged that there is a link between educational 

performance and free school meals take up within schools.  This link acknowledges 

the range of social backgrounds within schools and the impact that this may have 

on overall academic achievement. 

 

Page 228



 

 

14 

 

7.4 To assist local authorities in understanding academic performance schools are 

categorised in families which are set by the Welsh Government and take into 

account the percentage of pupils at each school: 

 

a. eligible for Free School Meals; 

b. living in areas classed in the most 20% deprived areas in Wales; 

c. with special educational needs; and 

d. whose first language is not English or Welsh. 

 

7.5 The following tables seek to give an understanding of the relative performance of 

the schools against their respective families, girls’ performance, local authority and 

national performance. 

 

St. Brigid's School & Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High KS3 GIRLS' 

attainment 
 

      Percentage of all (male and female) pupils who have reached the 

expected level, 2012 The level on the National Curriculum scale that the majority 

of pupils are expected to achieve by the end of the Key Stage. At the end of Key Stage 3 

this is level 5 
    Core Subject Indicator English Maths Science 

 SB 91.20% 91.20% 96.50% 96.50% 

 SB Family 86.80% 91.40% 91.90% 94.80% 

 BEJ 59.10% 65.20% 75.80% 83.30% 

 BEJ Family 61.80% 69.10% 73.70% 79.70% 

 Denbighshire 71.90% 77.60% 82.00% 85.30% 

 Wales 72.50% 79.30% 81.10% 83.60% 

  

 

     Percentage of female pupils who have reached the expected level - Core subject 

indicator achieving at least level 5 in English or Welsh (first language), mathematics and science in 

combination. 

  
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls * * * * 97.70% 

SB Family (Girls) 81.90% 85.80% 85.30% 87.70% 90.40% 

BEJ Girls 53.80% 43.50% 59.10% 58.70% 62.70% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 52.10% 56.00% 58.70% 67.10% 70.60% 

Denbighshire Girls 65.30% 62.40% 67.90% 70.10% 77.80% 

Wales Girls 64.50% 66.20% 69.00% 73.30% 78.20% 

* No data relating to this information was available on My Local School 

website   

      Percentage of female pupils who have reached the expected level 

(5) in English 
  

Page 229



 

 

15 

 

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 93.10% 98.20% 89.50% 87.90% 91.20% 

SB Family (Girls)  91.90% 94.70% 92.70% 94.90% 95.50% 

BEJ Girls  66.70% 52.20% 70.50% 73.90% 71.20% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 67.20% 67.80% 70.10% 78.60% 78.70% 

Denbighshire Girls 76.60% 74.80% 80.70% 81.20% 84.70% 

Wales Girls 77.30% 78.30% 80.10% 82.90% 86.40% 

      Percentage of  female pupils who have reached the expected level 

(5) in Maths 
  

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 87.90% 94.70% 98.20% 89.70% 96.50% 

SB Family (Girls) 87.60% 89.80% 90.60% 90.80% 93.20% 

BEJ Girls 71.80% 56.50% 63.60% 71.70% 74.60% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 63.60% 64.30% 70.60% 76.30% 78.00% 

Denbighshire Girls 76.60% 70.80% 76.90% 78.60% 83.90% 

Wales Girls 74.10% 74.90% 77.40% 80.10% 83.80% 

   

Female pupils who have reached the expected level (5) in Science 
  

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 91.40% 94.70% 93.00% 87.90% 96.50% 

SB Family (Girls) 89.90% 92.70% 92.50% 93.90% 95.90% 

BEJ Girls 66.70% 54.30% 63.60% 65.20% 83.10% 

BEJ Family (Girls)  65.40% 70.50% 72.60% 79.20% 84.80% 

Denbighshire Girls 77.50% 74.20% 77.80% 80.90% 87.80% 

Wales Girls  75.90% 77.50% 80.10% 83.40% 87.20% 

       

St Brigid's School & Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School KS4 

GIRLS' attainment 
 

      Percentage of female pupils achieving the level 2 threshold including 

English/Welsh and Maths 

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 67.30% 77.60% 75.00% 75.40% 71.90% 

SB Family (Girls) 70.00% 78.20% 76.80% 78.10% 76.70% 

BEJ Girls 48.50% 32.60% 23.10% 31.60% 35.00% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 30.70% 28.90% 37.80% 37.00% 36.10% 

Denbighshire Girls 45.70% 52.20% 49.40% 55.40% 59.70% 

Wales Girls 49.60% 51.30% 53.10% 54.00% 55.50% 

Page 230



 

 

16 

 

      Average capped points score 
    Approved for pre-16 use in Wales for each female 

pupil.  

     2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls * * 366 369 390 

SB Family (Girls) * * 369 373 382 

BEJ Girls * * 275 266 318 

BEJ Family (Girls) * * 286 291 311 

Denbighshire Girls * * 316 334 356 

Wales Girls * * 319 325 338 

*measure introduced 2010    

    

Percentage of pupils achieving the level 2 

threshold equivalent to the volume of 5 GCSEs at 

Grade A*-C. 
   

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 83.60% 81.60% 92.90% 94.70% 96.50% 

SB Family (Girls) 81.80% 85.50% 86.70% 88.50% 91.50% 

BEJ Girls 57.60% 37.00% 48.70% 47.40% 77.50% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 46.00% 47.90% 60.40% 62.60% 72.80% 

Denbighshire Girls 57.70% 63.90% 68.60% 77.20% 88.70% 

Wales Girls 63.50% 66.20% 68.90% 72.10% 77.60% 

      Percentage of pupils achieving the Core Subject 

Indicator Percentage of pupils achieving at least a GCSE at 

grade A*-C  (or equivalent qualification) in each of English or 

Welsh first language, Mathematics and Science. 
  

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 69.10% 77.60% 75.00% 75.40% 71.90% 

SB Family (Girls) 68.60% 76.90% 75.40% 75.00% 73.50% 

BEJ Girls 51.50% 34.80% 23.10% 31.60% 35.00% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 27.50% 27.00% 35.10% 34.50% 34.30% 

Denbighshire Girls 45.40% 50.20% 48.70% 53.40% 58.00% 

Wales Girls 47.90% 49.50% 51.10% 52.00% 52.80% 

    

Percentage of pupils achieving the level 1 

threshold equivalent to the volume of 5 GCSEs at 

Grade A*- G. 
   

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB Girls 94.50% 93.90% 100.00% 96.50% 98.20% 

SB Family (Girls) 97.00% 98.30% 98.70% 97.80% 98.70% 

Page 231



 

 

17 

 

BEJ Girls 84.80% 91.30% 92.30% 84.20% 90.00% 

BEJ Family (Girls) 80.40% 84.50% 86.80% 87.70% 91.20% 

Denbighshire Girls 86.90% 92.20% 91.30% 93.20% 94.80% 

Wales Girls 89.80% 91.00% 92.00% 92.20% 93.80% 

 

7.6 The following table summarises the above results.  This shows that both schools 

have performed well at certain times and that St Brigid’s School has performed 

better more of the time than Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School.  However, 

both schools could improve their performances in respect of their respective family 

average performances. 

 

Attainment Level Blessed Edward St Brigid’s 

2012 CSI, Eng, 

Maths & Science 

(KS3 L5) 

ALL PUPILS (BOYS 

AND GIRLS) 

Below the Family attainment in 

CSI and Eng but above the Family 

attainment in Maths and Science  

  

Above the Family attainment in 

CSI, Maths and Science and 

almost level in English 

Girls reaching 

level 5 in English 

KS3 from 2008 - 

2012 

Below the family average in all 

but 2010 

Below the family average in the 

last 3 years (but above in 2008 

and 2009) 

Girls reaching 

level 5 in Maths 

KS3 from 2008 - 

2012 

Below the family average in all 

but 2008 

Above the family average in all 

but 2011 

Girls reaching 

level 5 in Science 

KS3 from 2008 - 

2012 

Below the family average in all 

but 2008 

Above the family average in all 

but 2011 

Girls reaching 

level 2 KS4 

(including Eng 

and Maths) from 

2008 - 2012 

Below the family average in the 

last 3 years 

Below the Family attainment in 

all 5 years 

Average capped 

points score for 

girls from 2010 - 

2012 

Below the family average in all 

but 2012 

Below the family average in all 

but 2012 

Girls reaching 

level 2 threshold  

(equivalent to 5 

A*-C at GCSE) 

Below the family average for 3 

out of the 5 years 

Above the family average for 4 

out of the 5 years 

Page 232



 

 

18 

 

from 2008 - 2012 

Girls reaching the 

CSI (at least grade 

A*-C at GCSE in 

Eng, Maths & 

Science) from 

2008 - 2012 

Above the family average in 3 out 

of the 5 years 

Above the family average in 3 out 

of the 5 years 

Girls achieving 

level 1 (5 GCSE’s 

at A*-G) from 

2008 - 2012 

Below the family average in the 

last 2 years but above average in 

the previous 3 

Below the family average in 4 of 

the 5 years; and below in the last 

2 years 

 

7.7 Further data analysis on the respective performance of both schools can also be 

found on the Welsh Government website as follows:  

 

 http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/ 

 

8. Alternative provision  

 

8.1 Should the Current Proposal proceed, the Promoters would wish to see all pupils 

transfer to the New Dual-Site Faith School to ensure that they continue to receive 

their education at a faith school and to a consistently high standard. 

 

8.2 However, during the informal consultation a number of parents/guardians, 

particularly from the St Brigid’s School community, stated that they would not send 

their children to any successor school and would wish to choose alternative 

provision.  Accordingly, this section provides details of potential alternative, local 

authority maintained, provision in the catchment areas of the existing schools.  The 

nearest alternative Catholic school would be St. Richard Gwyn Catholic High School 

located in Flint. At present there is no Anglican Secondary School serving the 

current catchment area of the existing schools. Denbighshire County Council 

considers that alternatives for non-faith secondary provision would be as follows: 

 

Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School Pupils: 

o Rhyl High School, Rhyl; and 

o Prestatyn High School, Prestatyn, 

  

St Brigid’s School: 

o Denbigh High School; 

o Rhyl High School, Rhyl; and  

o Prestatyn High School, Prestatyn. 

 

Options for Secondary Alternative provision: 

 

Page 233



 

 

19 

 

8.3 The pupil numbers for Rhyl High School and Denbigh High School have decreased 

over the past 5 years.  The pupil numbers for Prestatyn High School and St Richard 

Gwyn High School have been consistent over the same period. 

 

 Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Rhyl High School 1017* 916* 809 781 766 
Prestatyn High 

School 
1788 1813 1775 1748 1731 

Denbigh High 

School 
855 822 774 727 694 

St Richard Gwyn 

Catholic High 

School 

938 939 939 950 946 

* Figures include 11-18 provision. Rhyl High School VI form closed in September 2010 

 

8.4 At January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows: 

 

 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 
Rhyl High 

School 

159 153 155 166 133 n/a n/a 

Prestatyn High 

School 

261 275 293 282 275 208 137 

Denbigh High 

School 

107 93 110 124 138 59 63 

St Richard 

Gwyn Catholic 

High School 

163 174 174 165 168 54 48 

 

8.5 The forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that pupil numbers will reduce over the 

next five years in line with demographic trends as the overall numbers reduce in 

secondary education.  It is anticipated that this trend will change by 2019 with a 

gradual increase in secondary pupils to reflect the current increases in the lower 

end of primary schools in Denbighshire.  

 

 Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Rhyl High 

School 

754 727 723 735 731 

Prestatyn 

High School 

1721 1668 1622 1576 1547 

Denbigh High 

School 

648 623 584 610 610 

St Richard 

Gwyn Catholic 

High School 

tbc tbc tbc tbc tbc 

 

 

 

 

Page 234



 

 

20 

 

Surplus Places 

 Current Pupil 

Numbers 

Current 

Capacity 
Surplus Places % of surplus places 

Rhyl High 

School 
766 1315 549 41.7 

 
Prestatyn 

High School 
1731 1774 43 2.4 

Denbigh High 

School 
694 1002 308 30.7 

St Richard 

Gwyn Catholic 

High School 

946 1000 54 5.4 

 

Comparisons of Educational Performance between alternative schools 

8.6 The following tables provide analysis of performance of the percentage of pupils 

achieving Grade A*-C by subject in 2012.  In the below tables the following 

reference is used for the 6 schools: 

Key: 
BEJ Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School  

 SB St Brigid’s School 

 RH Rhyl High School 

 DH Denbigh High School 

 PH Prestatyn High School 

 SRG St Richard Gwyn 

KS4 GCSE: A-C 
     

      Percentage of pupils achieving Grade A*-C by subject, 2012 
   

  

Core Subject 

Indicator English Maths Science 

 BEJ 39.50% 60.50% 40.80% 78.90% 

 BEJ Family 31.30% 48.80% 38.70% 71.80% 

 SB 71.90% 93.00% 73.70% 94.70% 

 SB Family 70.50% 82.40% 80.10% 81.60% 

 RH 44.10% 47.80% 62.10% 90.70% 

 RH Family 36.30% 51.50% 46.60% 66.30% 

 DH 43.10% 65.00% 61.80% 58.50% 

 DH Family 53.60% 67.80% 61.90% 73.70% 

 PH 50.00% 62.60% 61.90% 75.90% 

 PH Family 53.60% 67.80% 61.90% 73.70% 

 SRG 59.20% 68.40% 71.70% 84.90% 

 SRG Family 57.80% 70.80% 66.80% 76.10% 

 Local Authority 53.10% 64.20% 63.70% 79.70% 

 Wales 48.90% 62.20% 58.40% 70.60% 

 

      Percentage of pupils who have reached the expected 

level  in English The percentage of pupils achieving at least a 

GCSE at Grade A*-C in English (including boys only and girls 

   

Page 235



 

 

21 

 

only) 

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

BEJ - Total 64.60% 58.30% 42.30% 51.80% 60.50% 

BEJ Family - Total 43.90% 44.30% 46.80% 45.40% 48.80% 

SB - Total 89.10% 87.80% 96.40% 94.70% 93.00% 

SB Family - Total 83.10% 83.20% 84.00% 83.00% 82.40% 

RH- Total 32.80% 39.90% 42.20% 42.20% 47.80% 

RH Family - Total 53.70% 51.90% 52.20% 51.00% 51.50% 

DH - Total 48.50% 46.50% 33.80% 45.40% 65.00% 

DH Family - Total 63.90% 62.10% 63.60% 64.60% 67.80% 

PH - Total 51.10% 51.00% 60.40% 61.40% 62.60% 

PH Family - Total 63.90% 62.10% 63.60% 64.60% 67.80% 

SRG - Total 65.70% 67.70% 71.30% 67.80% 68.40% 

SRG Family - Total 67.80% 70.10% 72.20% 72.10% 70.80% 

DCC - Total 57.00% 56.30% 56.00% 61.20% 64.20% 

Wales - Total 61.00% 61.00% 62.70% 62.80% 62.20% 

BEJ - Boys 58.70% 52.60% 28.20% 51.10% 50.00% 

BEJ Family - Boys 36.30% 36.70% 37.20% 35.80% 41.30% 

SB - Boys * * * * * 

SB Family - Boys 76.90% 75.00% 76.40% 76.70% 76.10% 

RH - Boys 23.80% 35.00% 33.00% 36.00% 37.40% 

RH Family - Boys 44.40% 44.60% 44.60% 39.70% 41.20% 

DH - Boys 41.30% 43.00% 26.70% 48.10% 63.20% 

DH Family - Boys 56.10% 54.30% 55.50% 57.80% 60.60% 

PH - Boys 47.60% 42.20% 50.00% 52.60% 60.20% 

PH Family - Boys 56.10% 54.30% 55.50% 57.80% 60.60% 

SRG - Boys 57.80% 64.60% 66.30% 61.70% 61.00% 

SRG Family - Boys 61.30% 61.60% 65.20% 63.80% 63.60% 

DCC - Boys 48.00% 47.30% 45.10% 53.90% 54.80% 

Wales - Boys 52.80% 52.40% 54.00% 54.10% 53.90% 

BEJ - Girls 72.70% 63.00% 56.40% 52.60% 70.00% 

BEJ Family - Girls 51.90% 52.40% 57.00% 55.00% 56.90% 

SB - Girls * * * * * 

SB Family - Girls 89.20% 91.50% 91.10% 89.50% 88.80% 

RH- Girls 43.40% 44.30% 52.00% 47.90% 61.40% 

RH Family - Girls 63.70% 59.90% 60.30% 62.00% 62.10% 

DH - Girls 57.50% 52.40% 42.30% 41.20% 68.10% 

DH Family - Girls 72.00% 70.80% 71.60% 71.50% 75.00% 

PH- Girls 54.40% 60.10% 71.60% 71.60% 65.00% 

PH Family - Girls 72.00% 70.80% 71.60% 71.50% 75.00% 

SRG - Girls 74.10% 70.60% 77.50% 71.90% 77.10% 

SRG Family - Girls 74.00% 78.00% 79.20% 80.50% 78.50% 

DCC - Girls 65.80% 65.00% 66.70% 68.50% 74.00% 

Page 236



 

 

22 

 

Wales - Girls 69.60% 70.00% 71.60% 71.80% 71.00% 

       

Percentage of pupils who have reached the expected 

level  in Maths The percentage of pupils achieving at least a 

GCSE at Grade 
   A*-C in Maths (including boys only and girls only) 

 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

BEJ - Total 43.00% 36.90% 20.50% 44.60% 40.80% 

BEJ Family - Total 34.30% 32.90% 38.40% 39.40% 38.70% 

SB - Total 69.10% 77.60% 75.00% 75.40% 73.70% 

SB Family - Total 72.40% 79.70% 77.90% 80.20% 80.10% 

RH- Total 29.30% 44.00% 43.10% 46.70% 62.10% 

RH Family - Total 41.80% 44.70% 47.50% 46.30% 46.60% 

DH - Total 44.80% 48.20% 36.30% 53.80% 61.80% 

DH Family - Total 52.90% 55.20% 56.90% 57.50% 61.90% 

PH - Total 51.10% 51.00% 60.40% 61.40% 62.60% 

PH Family - Total 63.90% 62.10% 63.60% 64.60% 67.80% 

SRG - Total 57.70% 67.70% 71.30% 59.10% 71.70% 

SRG Family - Total 55.90% 59.90% 61.70% 65.00% 66.80% 

DCC - Total 45.50% 55.80% 51.60% 60.20% 63.70% 

Wales - Total 50.90% 53.30% 55.70% 56.50% 58.40% 

BEJ - Boys 37.00% 39.50% 15.40% 53.30% 47.20% 

BEJ Family - Boys 34.50% 34.20% 36.80% 37.70% 38.70% 

SB - Boys * * * * * 

SB Family - Boys 72.60% 78.30% 77.40% 79.80% 80.50% 

RH - Boys 28.60% 40.80% 37.60% 45.30% 60.40% 

RH Family - Boys 41.00% 43.80% 47.20% 47.20% 46.00% 

DH - Boys 43.50% 54.20% 37.20% 59.50% 65.80% 

DH Family - Boys 52.50% 56.00% 58.10% 58.90% 62.90% 

PH - Boys 47.60% 42.20% 50.00% 52.60% 60.20% 

PH Family - Boys 56.10% 54.30% 55.50% 57.80% 60.60% 

SRG - Boys 60.00% 72.20% 70.90% 60.00% 72.00% 

SRG Family - Boys 56.10% 58.10% 61.80% 65.20% 66.60% 

DCC - Boys 42.80% 54.90% 49.60% 61.00% 63.40% 

Wales - Boys 49.40% 52.60% 55.70% 56.30% 57.90% 

BEJ - Girls 51.50% 34.80% 25.60% 34.20% 35.00% 

BEJ Family - Girls 34.20% 31.50% 40.00% 41.00% 38.60% 

SB - Girls * * * * * 

SB Family - Girls 72.30% 81.10% 78.50% 80.60% 79.60% 

RH- Girls 30.20% 47.00% 49.00% 47.90% 64.30% 

RH Family - Girls 42.60% 45.80% 47.90% 45.40% 47.10% 

DH - Girls 46.60% 38.10% 35.20% 45.10% 55.30% 

DH Family - Girls 53.20% 54.20% 55.80% 56.20% 60.90% 

Page 237



 

 

23 

 

PH- Girls 54.40% 60.10% 71.60% 71.60% 65.00% 

PH Family - Girls 72.00% 70.80% 71.60% 71.50% 75.00% 

SRG - Girls 55.30% 63.50% 71.80% 58.40% 71.40% 

SRG Family - Girls 55.60% 61.60% 61.70% 64.70% 67.10% 

DCC - Girls 48.00% 56.80% 53.70% 59.40% 63.90% 

Wales - Girls 52.50% 54.10% 55.80% 56.70% 58.80% 

      

      

Percentage of pupils who have reached the expected 

level in Science The percentage of pupils achieving at 

least a GCSE at 

   Grade A*-C in Science (including boys only and girls only) 

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

BEJ - Total 50.60% 47.60% 48.70% 56.60% 78.90% 

BEJ Family - Total 35.90% 44.30% 53.90% 61.80% 71.80% 

SB - Total 90.90% 85.70% 92.90% 94.70% 94.70% 

SB Family - Total 78.00% 81.50% 81.00% 81.40% 81.60% 

RH- Total 29.30% 44.00% 43.10% 46.70% 62.10% 

RH Family - Total 41.80% 44.70% 47.50% 46.30% 46.60% 

DH - Total 53.30% 57.10% 55.40% 66.20% 58.50% 

DH Family - Total 66.30% 65.80% 66.30% 67.80% 73.70% 

PH - Total 55.10% 55.30% 65.50% 66.60% 75.90% 

PH Family - Total 66.30% 65.80% 66.30% 67.80% 73.70% 

SRG - Total 57.70% 67.70% 71.30% 59.10% 71.70% 

SRG Family - Total 55.90% 59.90% 61.70% 65.00% 66.80% 

DCC - Total 55.90% 61.60% 64.60% 70.20% 79.70% 

Wales - Total 59.50% 61.80% 63.60% 65.90% 70.60% 

BEJ - Boys 43.50% 52.60% 41.00% 60.00% 75.00% 

BEJ Family - Boys 36.30% 45.70% 49.00% 61.30% 67.40% 

SB - Boys * * * * * 

SB Family - Boys 77.50% 79.10% 78.50% 80.70% 81.20% 

RH - Boys 28.60% 40.80% 37.60% 45.30% 60.40% 

RH Family - Boys 41.00% 43.80% 47.20% 47.20% 46.00% 

DH - Boys 51.10% 57.00% 51.20% 67.10% 59.20% 

DH Family - Boys 66.30% 64.10% 65.00% 67.10% 74.00% 

PH - Boys 57.20% 55.20% 61.80% 64.10% 75.90% 

PH Family - Boys 66.30% 64.10% 65.00% 67.10% 74.00% 

SRG - Boys 60.00% 72.20% 70.90% 60.00% 72.00% 

SRG Family - Boys 56.10% 58.10% 61.80% 65.20% 66.60% 

DCC - Boys 52.60% 61.50% 61.00% 68.10% 75.70% 

Wales - Boys 58.50% 60.20% 62.10% 64.50% 68.40% 

BEJ - Girls 60.60% 43.50% 56.40% 52.60% 82.50% 

BEJ Family - Girls 35.40% 42.70% 59.20% 62.30% 76.70% 

SB - Girls * * * * * 

Page 238



 

 

24 

 

SB Family - Girls 78.60% 84.00% 83.30% 82.20% 82.10% 

RH- Girls 30.20% 47.00% 49.00% 47.90% 64.30% 

RH Family - Girls 42.60% 45.80% 47.90% 45.40% 47.10% 

DH - Girls 56.20% 57.10% 60.60% 64.70% 57.40% 

DH Family - Girls 66.20% 67.70% 67.50% 68.40% 73.50% 

PH- Girls 53.10% 55.40% 69.40% 69.40% 75.90% 

PH Family - Girls 66.20% 67.70% 67.50% 68.40% 73.50% 

SRG - Girls 55.30% 63.50% 71.80% 58.40% 71.40% 

SRG Family - Girls 55.60% 61.60% 61.70% 64.70% 67.10% 

DCC - Girls 59.10% 61.70% 68.00% 72.30% 84.00% 

Wales - Girls 60.60% 63.60% 65.20% 67.40% 72.80% 

 

Comparison of Estyn Reports 

 

8.7 The four schools which may be used as alternative provision have been inspected 

under the different inspection frameworks. 

 

Previous Framework 

 

Key Question Rhyl High School - 2008 St Richard Gwyn High 

Catholic School - 2008 

1. How well do learners 

achieve? 

4 2 

2. How effective are 

teaching, training and 

assessment?  

4 2 

3. How well do the learning 

experiences meet the needs 

and interests of learners 

and the wider community?  

3 2 

4. How well are learners 

cared for, guided and 

supported? 

3 1 

5. How effective are 

leadership and strategic 

management? 

4 2 

6. How well do leaders and 

managers evaluate and 

improve quality and 

standards? 

4 2 

7. How efficient are leaders 

and managers in using 

resources? 

4 2 

 

Page 239



 

 

25 

 

 

Key (to Previous Framework): 

Grade 1 Good with outstanding features 

Grade 2 Good features and no important shortcomings 

Grade 3 Good features outweigh shortcomings 

Grade 4 Some good features, but shortcomings in important areas 

Grade 5 Many important shortcomings 

 

Current Framework 

 

Key Question  Prestatyn High School 

Inspection Judgement 

Denbigh High School 

Inspection Judgement 

1. How good are the 

outcomes? 

Good Unsatisfactory 

2. How good is provision? Good Adequate 

3. How good are 

leadership and 

management? 

Good Adequate 

The school’s current 

performance 

Good Unsatisfactory 

The school’s prospects for 

improvement 

Good Adequate 

Key (to current Framework): 

Excellent  Many strengths, including significant examples of sector leading practice 

Good  Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant improvement 

Adequate Strengths outweigh areas for improvement 

Unsatisfactory Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths 

 

9. Primary Provision 
 

9.1 If the Current Proposal is accepted the primary provision for the New Dual-Site 

Faith School would remain on the Denbigh site. The long term future for the 

Primary provision from the Denbigh site would be determined during the Second 

Phase (the opening of a Single-Site Faith School).   

 

9.2 However parents may not wish to have their children attend the new Dual Site 

Faith School. Accordingly the potential alternative provision is set out below. The 

Catholic Diocese alternative provision within Denbighshire would be at Ysgol Mair 

in Rhyl.  The Church in Wales alternative provision within Denbighshire would be 

around the St Asaph/Denbigh area at St Asaph Infants VP School, Ysgol Trefnant VA 

and in the Ruthin area at Ysgol Borthyn, Ruthin; Ysgol Llanbedr and Ysgol Llanfair 

DC.  It would be expected that should pupils wish to remain within faith education 

that alternative provision in Rhyl, St Asaph and Trefnant would be sought in the 

first instance. 

 

Page 240



 

 

26 

 

 

 

Options for Primary Alternative provision: 

9.3 The pupil numbers for the four schools listed below have fluctuated over the last 4 

years.   

 Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
Ysgol Mair (VA) 285 277 252 257 249 

Ysgol Trefnant (VC) 53 63 62 64 56 

St Asaph Infants 

(VC) 

76 82 85 85 86 

Ysgol Esgob 

Morgan (Juniors 

CP) 

123 111 103 96 99 

 

9.4 At January 2013 the number of pupils in each year group was as follows: 

 

 Reception Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 
Ysgol Mair (VA) 49 42 29 37 28 33 31 

Ysgol Trefnant 

(VC) 

6 10 13 8 3 7 9 

St Asaph 

Infants (VC) 

29 28 29 - - - - 

Ysgol Esgob 

Morgan 

- - - 31 25 22 21 

 

9.5 The forecast of future pupil rolls suggests that pupil numbers will increase over the 

next five years in line with demographic trends as the overall numbers entering 

education increase.   

 

 Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 
Ysgol Mair 

(VA) 

256 266 281 285 298 

Ysgol 

Trefnant (VC) 

59 61 67 69 65 

St Asaph 

Infants (VC) 

87 88 88 87 87 

Ysgol Esgob 

Morgan 

107 113 117 116 116 

 

Surplus Places 

 Current Pupil 

Numbers 

Current 

Capacity 
Surplus Places % of surplus places 

Ysgol Mair 

(VA) 
249 378 129 34.1% 

Ysgol Trefnant 

(VC) 
56 59 3 5.1% 

St Asaph 

Infants (VC) 
86 89 -3 -3.4% 

Page 241



 

 

27 

 

Ysgol Esgob 

Morgan 
99 108 9 8.3% 

Comparisons of Educational Performance between alternative schools 

 

KS2 

% Pupils who have reached the expected level, 2012 
  

       Core Subject Indicator English Maths Science 

SB 96.40% 96.40% 96.40% 100.00% 

SB Family 89.90% 92.90% 92.90% 96.60% 

YM 76.10% 82.60% 84.80% 91.30% 

YM Family 81.30% 83.50% 86.80% 88.20% 

YEM 88.90% 91.70% 91.70% 94.40% 

YEM Family 91.10% 91.90% 93.20% 94.90% 

YT 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

YT Family 86.80% 90.90% 90.10% 91.70% 

Local Authority 83.50% 85.60% 87.70% 90.40% 

Wales 82.60% 85.20% 86.80% 88.50% 

 

% Pupils who have reached the expected level - English 

 The percentage of pupils achieving at least level 4 in English 

 

        2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB - Total 92.60% 96.40% 89.30% 89.70% 96.40% 

SB Family - Total 87.10% 87.60% 88.80% 89.90% 92.90% 

YM- Total 92.60% 96.40% 89.30% 89.70% 96.40% 

YM Family - Total 87.10% 87.60% 88.80% 89.90% 92.90% 

YEM - Total 90.90% 79.30% 96.30% 88.50% 91.70% 

YEM Family - Total 88.30% 88.10% 89.80% 88.90% 91.90% 

YT- Total 81.80% 100.00% 80.00% 77.80% 100.00% 

YT Family - Total 81.00% 88.10% 85.10% 82.60% 90.90% 

DCC - Total 81.80% 80.90% 82.00% 85.10% 85.60% 

Wales - Total 79.80% 81.00% 81.90% 83.40% 85.20% 

 

% Pupils who have reached the expected level - Maths 
 The percentage of pupils achieving at least level 4  in Maths 

 

     

  

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB - Total 96.30% 100.00% 78.60% 93.10% 96.40% 

SB Family - Total 89.90% 89.10% 86.80% 93.00% 92.90% 

YM Total 96.30% 100.00% 78.60% 93.10% 96.40% 

YM Family - Total 89.90% 89.10% 86.80% 93.00% 92.90% 

YEM - Total 81.80% 86.20% 92.60% 88.50% 91.70% 

YEM Family - Total 90.50% 92.50% 87.40% 89.80% 93.20% 

YT- Total 81.80% 88.90% 80.00% 88.90% 100.00% 

Page 242



 

 

28 

 

YT Family - Total 83.30% 88.90% 85.10% 89.00% 90.10% 

DCC - Total 81.70% 82.30% 82.70% 86.90% 87.70% 

Wales - Total 81.30% 82.50% 83.30% 84.90% 86.80% 

 

% Pupils who have reached the expected level - Science 
 The percentage of pupils achieving at least level 4 in Science 

 

     

  

  2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

SB - Total 92.60% 100.00% 82.10% 93.10% 100.00% 

SB Family - Total 89.90% 92.00% 90.50% 93.40% 96.60% 

YM Total 92.60% 100.00% 82.10% 93.10% 100.00% 

YM Family - Total 89.90% 92.00% 90.50% 93.40% 96.60% 

YEM - Total 90.90% 89.70% 88.90% 96.20% 94.40% 

YEM Family - Total 91.30% 91.70% 89.00% 93.80% 94.90% 

YT- Total 90.90% 100.00% 80.00% 88.90% 100.00% 

YT Family - Total 88.10% 94.10% 93.40% 89.90% 91.70% 

DCC - Total 85.60% 86.80% 86.10% 90.50% 90.40% 

Wales - Total 85.60% 86.40% 86.40% 87.10% 88.50% 

 

Alternative Provision – Flintshire and Conwy 

 

9.6 In the eastern area of Conwy, the Catholic Diocese provision would be via Ysgol St 

Joseph’s in Colwyn Bay.  Similarly, for the Church in Wales in eastern Conwy 

alternative provision could be provided at Ysgol y Plas, Llanelian, Ysgol Betws yn 

Rhos, Ysgol Llanddulas and Ysgol St George. 

 

9.7 In the western area of Flintshire the Catholic Diocese provision would be via St 

Winefrede’s in Holywell.  For the Church in Wales in western Flintshire alternative 

provision could be provided at Ysgol yr Esgob, Caerwys; Nannerch VC School; Ysgol 

y Llan, Whitford; Ysgol Trelawnyd and St Mary’s, Nercwys. 

 

9.8 Determining fully the alternative provision that parents may wish to choose is 

difficult because the catchment area of primary age pupils attending St Brigid’s 

School is spread over such a wide area.  Approximately a quarter of St Brigid’s 

School pupils live outside of Denbighshire in either Flintshire or Conwy.   In the 

region of a quarter of the pupils who come from Denbighshire live in either 

Denbigh or Rhyl and their surrounding areas and around 15% are from the St Asaph 

area. 

 

10. Special educational needs provision 

 

10.1 If the Current Proposal is approved and the work of the First Phase is carried out, 

very little will change.  The two existing schools will become one new school but 

the pupils will continue to be taught by the same teachers, in the same buildings 

and on the same site as they do now.  Accordingly, any pupils with special 

Page 243



 

 

29 

 

educational needs (SEN) who currently attend the schools will continue to receive 

the same education and support in precisely the same environment.  The council 

will help pupils with SEN who experience difficulties because of the change from 

two schools to one. 

 

10.2 The Council appreciates that the move to a Single-Site Faith School will result in 

greater change that operating one school on two sites.  This will affect all pupils but 

it is likely to prove even more challenging to pupils with SEN.  The council will take 

all practicable steps to minimise disruption and to assist such pupils with the 

transition.   

 

10.3 The facilities available at a Single-Site Faith School will be designed in consultation 

with Denbighshire County Council’s SEN Education Officers, and the staff and pupils 

concerned.  It is anticipated that this approach will produce improved conditions 

and so learning experience for pupils with SEN. 

 

  

Page 244



 

 

30 

 

The Proposal 

 

11. What we are proposing 

 

11.1 This formal consultation relates to the Current Proposal, namely: to close Blessed 

Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School and to establish a new 

Anglican & Catholic Faith Voluntary Aided School serving the communities of 

Denbigh, Rhyl and surrounding areas on the existing sites.  In summary, the Current 

Proposal relates to the First Phase which entails the creation of the New Dual-Site 

Faith School. 

 

11.2 A second consultation would occur to consider moving to a new location to be 

determined in the Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area to allow for the construction of a 

new school building.  This second consultation would be held to consider the 

Second Phase which would result in a Single-Site Faith School. 

 

What would this mean? 

 

11.3 If the Current Proposal was approved: 

 

a. Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School would 

both close on 31
st

 August 2014; and 

b. The New Dual-Site Faith Voluntary Aided School would open on 1
st

 

September 2014 (initially on the existing sites in Rhyl and Denbigh and 

utilising the existing buildings). 

 

11.4 All children attending Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s 

School would transfer to the New Dual-Site Faith School; subject to parental 

preference.  Whilst the New Dual-Site Faith School remains on two sites pupils 

would continue to be taught on their original school site. The facilities provided at 

the New Dual-Site Faith School would be identical to the current facilities at both 

Blessed Edward Jones and St Brigid’s; the medium of instruction would remain as 

English. 

 

11.5 The New Dual-Site Faith School would have two distinct age ranges which would be 

linked to the particular sites.  Initially as part of the First Phase, the existing 

buildings at the Rhyl site would provide 11-16 provision and the existing buildings 

at the Denbigh site 3-18 provision.  The table below shows the capacity across the 

two sites: 

  

Page 245



 

 

31 

 

First Phase: New Dual-Site Faith School 

 Nursery 

(part time) 

Primary 

(full time) 

Secondary 

(full time) 

Denbigh site 
17  121 367 

Rhyl site 
0 0 659 

Total 
17 121 1026 

 

This would provide an overall capacity across all the age ranges of 1147 full time 

places and 17 part time places.  As can be seen in the table below showing the 

projected pupil numbers should the Current Proposal be implemented, the New 

Dual Site Faith School would comfortably be able to accommodate the projected 

number of pupils over the next five years. 

 

Projected Full Time pupil numbers – January PLASC 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

852 795 752 763 744 

 

11.6 In terms of the leadership and management of the New Dual-Site Faith School, as of 

1
st

 September 2014 there would be one Governing Body, one Headteacher and one 

group of staff.  The Governing Body would include Parent, Denbighshire County 

Council, Teacher and Staff representation together with a number of Foundation 

Governors appointed by the Promoters.  Prior to the opening of the New Dual-Site 

Faith School, on 1
st

 September, a Temporary Governing Body would be established 

and this would take key decisions regarding the appointment of the Headteacher 

and the supportive leadership team, the staffing structure for and name of the New 

Dual-Site Faith School, uniform policies etc.  

 

11.7 As stated above in paragraph 2.3 the intention of the Council and its partners 

would be to consolidate provision on to a single site, probably in the 

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area.  Any proposed move would be subject to further 

formal consultation.  It is expected that the post 16 provision will be delivered 

predominately by the existing Rhyl and Prestatyn VI provision.  The anticipated size 

of the Single-Sited School would also be reviewed when a clearer understanding of 

its demand emerges.   

 

11.8 It is anticipated that the design ethos of the Single-Site Faith School building would 

seek to develop home bases for year groups as a potential model.  This may 

address some of the concerns regarding a transition for existing pupils to a larger 

school model by the pupils remaining in their “home environment” for the majority 

of their lessons.  The figure of 600 / 750 has been chosen based on the initial 

feedback received during the informal consultation that a number of parents may 

choose to remove their children from any revised provision if it were too large.  This 

Page 246



 

 

32 

 

position will be reviewed at the start of the Second Phase of consultation regarding 

a new site. 

 

11.9 Following the completion of the new school building the Catholic Diocese of 

Wrexham and the St Brigid’s Trust would need to consider declaring the existing 

sites as surplus to requirements.  It is anticipated that any proceeds from the 

disposal of surplus sites would be used to contribute to the overall costs of the new 

school building.  

 

12. The proposal in detail - description and rationale 

 

12.1 Denbighshire County Council has a responsibility to provide the best possible 

educational provision for children and young people. This proposal has been 

developed in line with: 

a. the Council’s commitment to ‘Modernising Education’; 

b. the School Effectiveness Framework’s aim of enabling all children and young 

people to develop their full potential; and  

c. the Welsh Assembly’s 21
st

 Century Schools Programme to improve school 

buildings and facilities. 

 

12.2 There are a number of issues facing both schools that could impact on their ability 

to sustain educational standards and experiences into the future. 

 

Educational case for change 

 

12.3 Financial constraints limit the capacity of small secondary schools to implement 

senior and middle leadership structures that meet the requirements of teachers 

pay and conditions.  The Current Proposal would see the development of 

leadership and management structures, across both schools, to provide increased 

opportunities for staff development and progression. 

 

12.4 The Current Proposal will offer greater opportunities for the two schools to work 

together to improve staff expertise that will lead to raising standards.  For example: 

a. Teachers can work together to plan and prepare high quality lessons and 

standardise assessment; and 

b. Peer observation of the best teachers lessons to develop consistently high 

teaching practice. 

 

12.5 A larger school will provide the opportunity for targeted support and capacity for 

smaller groups of pupils who are in need of extra support; including greater 

capacity for more able and talented pupils. 

 

12.6 The Current Proposal will offer pupils a wider range of high quality courses at key 

stage 4 more effectively to address the statutory requirements of the 14-19 

Learning and Skills Measure
xi
.  It is extremely difficult for small secondary schools to 

meet the statutory requirement of over 30 academic and vocational courses at 

GCSE/Level 2. 

Page 247



 

 

33 

 

 

12.7 The two schools find it difficult to offer pupils a broad range of experiences in 

physical education; neither school has adequate indoor or outdoor sports facilities 

for pupils and the local community.  

 

12.8 Facilities for Design Technology are unsatisfactory; they are housed in either mobile 

accommodation or old and ill-equipped workshops that don’t meet the needs of 

the national curriculum or examination requirements.  

 

12.9 The quality of teaching and learning is compromised in both schools by classrooms 

that are too small, have insufficient natural light and are poorly ventilated.  There 

are areas in both schools with corridors and stairs that are too narrow to allow 

pupils to move around easily and there are too few spaces for breakout sessions, 

mentoring, social spaces as well as ICT teaching and storage. 

 

12.10 All of the matters referred to in paragraphs 12.3 – 12.9 above can be improved 

upon significantly by a combination of the First and Second Phases. 

 

Adequacy of existing school buildings and sites 

 

12.11 The condition of both schools was considered poor when the all Wales survey was 

undertaken in 2009 as part of the preparation for the 21
st

 Century Schools 

Programme.  The Council has clear proposals to improve the other 2 schools in 

Denbighshire classed as poor: Rhyl High School and Ysgol Glan Clwyd.  The planned 

investment for the faith sector would complete this initial stage of investment in 

secondary provision. 

 

12.12 The St Brigid’s School site relies very heavily on mobile accommodation to deliver 

the curriculum. At present there are 2 mobile classrooms in use for the Primary age 

group and 9 units for the Secondary age group.  In context these 11 units represent 

almost a quarter of all mobiles in use across Denbighshire.  A number of these 

units, which should be considered as a temporary provision to overcome short term 

difficulties whilst planned investment occurs, have been in use for over 10 years.   

 

12.13 Access to Physical Education provision has significant barriers at both existing 

schools.  The playing fields for Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School are 

located approximately a mile away on Ffordd Derwen; which has an impact on 

delivering this element of the curriculum.  The main playing fields area for St 

Brigid’s School is across the A543 Mold to Denbigh road which poses issues for 

accessibility and safety; particularly for younger pupils.  There is also no dedicated 

main sports hall facility at either school as in both cases the main hall is used for all 

elements of school life. 

 

Page 248



 

 

34 

 

12.14 Clearly both sites, and in particular the St Brigid’s School site,  as a consequence of 

the heavy reliance on mobile accommodation, are in need of significant investment 

to enable both schools to provide a learning environment fit for purpose to meet 

the requirements of the Welsh Government’s 21
st

 Century Schools Programme.  

Against the competing needs of all other 55 Denbighshire schools, the council is 

firmly of the view that investing significant sums in two small schools (in the 

context of secondary provision) would not represent an effective use of resources.  

Without expansion in the size of either school such a proposal would not address 

concerns over sustainability.  

 

13. Creating and maintaining the right ethos  

 

13.1 During the informal consultation, parents from both schools expressed reservations 

over the potential increase in the size of any new school which may emerge from 

this Current Proposal. 

 

13.2 The main concerns expressed, particularly by the parents of pupils from St Brigid’s 

School pupils, were the loss of the ethos of the school, the loss of an all-through 

school, the loss of a small school environment and the loss of a semi-rural inspiring 

teaching environment
xii

. 

 

13.3 During the First Phase, as the provision will be on the two existing sites, it will be 

possible for the ethos of both former schools to be retained.  However, as the two 

sites will be connected by being part of the same school, each will have the 

opportunity to learn from the other; the best parts of the ethos of each former 

school may be shared and benefited from. 

 

13.4 Denbighshire County Council is of the view that the Second Phase would, through 

the design of the school, maintain the environment of a small school in a semi rural 

setting whilst the ethos of the school is drawn from the Governors, Teaching Staff, 

Pupils and the learning environment. The opportunity for both schools to 

contribute and develop a similar caring environment, whilst ensuring that the 

strengths of both schools can be developed within modern teaching facilities is an 

opportunity to be explored with all parties during this formal consultation period. 

 

  

Page 249



 

 

35 

 

14. Admission arrangements for the New Dual-Site Faith School 

 

14.1 At present there are differences in the admission arrangements for Blessed Edward 

Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School; particularly around the use of 

entry examinations at St Brigid’s School for an element of the intake to Year 7.  The 

New Dual-Site Faith School would have a unified approach to admission 

arrangements and intake arrangements.  There would be no element of selection 

via the use of examinations as part of these arrangements. 

 

14.2 The suggested admission arrangements for the New Dual-Site Faith School will be 

based upon a new policy to be developed in a partnership between Denbighshire 

County Council, the Church in Wales and Catholic Diocesan authorities and St 

Brigid’s Trust. The entry of children and young people into the New Dual-Site Faith 

School and the application for places will be controlled and administered initially by 

the Temporary Governing Body and subsequently by the Governing Body. 

 

15. How will the final site location be determined? 

 

15.1 The final site location for the Single-Site Faith School, which will emerge from the 

Second Phase, will be carefully considered by Promoters. 

 

15.2 In the first instance, the difficulties in expanding both current school sites within 

the existing boundaries to accommodate all pupils attending both schools have 

been acknowledged; particularly during the informal consultation exercise
xiii

. 

 

15.3 In view of the distance between both existing schools it is acknowledged that a 

combined site would provide problematic and may cause difficulties for some 

parents.  On balance the Council is of the view that a faith secondary presence is an 

important option for parents to maintain diversity of choice: however, as stated in 

paragraph 12.13 above, retaining two sites is not an acceptable long term option. 

 

15.4 The first priority, in considering a new single location, has been to ensure, where 

appropriate, it can be accessible to a large percentage of current and future pupils.  

The search area has initially focussed on the area to the north of the A55 as 

approximately 65% of the current joint school population live in this area. 

 

15.5 A number of potential locations have been identified on the outskirts of 

Bodelwyddan, Rhuddlan, Rhyl, and St Asaph and initial desktop feasibility work has 

been undertaken to assess the viability of such sites.  This initial work has 

highlighted a preferred site in the Rhuddlan area. 

 

15.6 More detailed feasibility work will be progressed at a later date to determine a 

preferred location which will enable the Promoters to enter into any negotiations 

which may be required with any third parties regarding land purchases etc. 

 

Page 250



 

 

36 

 

15.7 As stated above in paragraph 1.3 above, there will be a separate formal 

consultation on any proposal as the location of a Single-Site Faith School will 

require formal statutory proposals to be published. 

 

16. What are the transport implications of this proposal? 

 

Dual site 

 

16.1 There will be no initial implications in terms of transport for pupils arising from the 

Current Proposal.  All pupils currently transported to Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High School and St Brigid’s School who qualify for ‘Home to School Transport’ 

would continue to be transported free of charge to the Rhyl and Denbigh sites of 

the New Dual-Site Faith School; subject to parental preference.  

 

16.2 At present the current costs for ‘Home to School Transport’ for the two schools are:  

£49,400 per annum for Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and £79,657 per 

annum for St Brigid’s School.  

 

Following move to a single site 

 

16.3 Denbighshire County Council anticipates that, following completion of the First 

Phase, the majority of pupils attending the Denbigh and Rhyl sites of the New Dual-

Site Faith School would transfer to the Single-Site Faith School; possibly in the 

Bodelwyddan/Rhuddlan area.  

  

16.4 Transport would be provided in the first instance in accordance with Denbighshire 

County Council’s Transport Policy which states that free transport is provided for 

pupils who live more than 3 miles from their nearest suitable school
xiv

.  

 

16.5   The Council has recognised that the majority of pupils currently attending Blessed 

Edward Jones Catholic High School would not be eligible for free transport should 

the Single-Site Faith School be located in the Rhuddlan area.  If the Rhuddlan area is 

chosen for Single-Site Faith School, the council will examine the scope for 

discretionary free transportation for pupils of the New Dual-Site Faith School who 

remain on the roll when the change of site takes place for a period of 5 years.   

 

16.6 Should the new school be sited in the Bodelwyddan area it is anticipated that the 

majority of current pupils for Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St 

Brigid’s School would be eligible for free ‘Home to School Transport’.  Accordingly 

there would be no consideration of discretionary free transport. 

 

16.7 In view of what is likely to be a long timescale between the Current Proposal being 

approved and a new site becoming operational, it is difficult to estimate likely costs 

implications in respect of transport budgets.  During the possible 6 years (for which 

the New Dual-Site Faith School may operate until the Second Phase is completed), 

there will be a range of variables which will impact on any modelling, including 

Page 251



 

 

37 

 

changes in pupil numbers, transport costs etc.  This work will be progressed as part 

of the process to determine a preferred site for the new Single-Site Faith School. 

 

17. What are the staffing implications of this proposal? 

 

17.1 Should the Current Proposal be implemented, the New Dual-Site Faith School 

would have only one Headteacher. The Temporary Governing Body of the New 

Dual-Site Faith School would need to appoint the Headteacher and this could 

involve national advertisements or an internal appointment.   

 

17.2 The Promoters, with agreement from the Temporary Governing Body, would apply 

appropriate HR policies to reassure and clarify the position of staff. 

  

17.3 A staffing structure would need to be developed for the New Dual-Site Faith School 

taking into account a number of factors including operating initially on two sites, 

delivering the curriculum, class sizes and budget implications. 

 

17.4 While the New Dual-Site Faith School operates on two sites the council does not 

anticipate any major changes to the existing staffing structures other than the 

Headteacher and other leadership positions. However, final decisions regarding the 

new staffing structure would be taken by the Temporary Governing Body and the 

new Headteacher. 

 

17.5 The council will recommend to the Temporary Governing Body that all teaching and 

associate staff posts for the New Dual-Site Faith School should be “ring-fenced” to 

the staff within the existing two schools.  

 

17.6 As part of this formal consultation process there will be full consultation with all 

members of staff and the appropriate teaching unions. 

 

18. What are the financial implications of this proposal? 

 
18.1 The funding for individual schools within Denbighshire is apportioned by the School 

Budget Formula which was revised and implemented for the 2013/14 financial year.  

The formula provides funding based on seven strategic elements; namely 

curriculum, social deprivation and inclusion, additional learning needs, welsh 

language, premises, sustainability and business support.  At present all schools 

budgets are derived from the formula which provides funding predominately 

through lump sums or payments which are varied in relation to individual school 

factors.  These include number of pupils, floor sizes, free school meal entitlement, 

number of statemented or additional learning needs pupils etc.  In a number of 

instances these may vary on an annual basis so any predictions can only be 

provided on known factors and within agreed formulas. 

 

Dual Site 

Page 252



 

 

38 

 

 

18.2 It is estimated that the initial annual revenue savings from the closure of the two 

schools and opening of the New Dual-Site Faith School may be approximately  

£379k each year.  These savings would occur primarily as the school would be 

funded as a single school. The School Budget Formula provides a range of lump 

sums per school and by the nature of amalgamation and the creation of a single 

school these payments would no longer be applicable.  This estimate is also based 

on the current proposals for a further revision to the Schools Budget Formula to 

create a formula for a Middle School which will reflect the official position of St 

Brigid’s as a single 3-18 school.  It is important to note that historically St Brigid’s 

has been recognised as a Primary and a Secondary School for the purposes of 

school funding.  As the school is now officially recognised by the Welsh 

Government as a middle school (3-18) proposals are to be consulted on with the 

School’s Budget Forum which may change how St Brigid’s is currently funded. This 

will take place outside of the review of Faith Education.  Therefore at this stage the 

figure of £379k is the maximum saving that may occur. 

 

18.3 Despite losing some lump sums there would be an entitlement to an additional 

lump sum which is provided to all schools who are amalgamated and operating on 

dual sites as per the current funding formula.   

 

18.4 The savings would be retained within the education budget.  The savings will be 

recommended for use predominately to support the school as transitional funding 

outside of the Funding Formula whilst the school is operating on 2 sites and also as 

part of the investment in the Council’s 21
st

 Schools Programme.  

 

Following move to a single site 

 

18.5 In view of the range of variables associated with the production of school budgets 

and the move to a single site, at this stage it is very difficult to predict what the 

overall impact would be for the finances of the Single-Site Faith School.  Therefore, 

until a range of issues have been determined, including pupil numbers, likely floor 

areas etc. it is difficult to predict accurately any cost implications. 

 

19. How would any new school buildings work be financed? 

 

19.1 The council, following discussions with representatives of the Diocesan Authorities 

and the Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust, included proposals for a potential new 

school as part of its overall 21
st

 Century Schools Programme to the Welsh 

Government in December 2010. 

 

19.2 All local authorities throughout Wales were invited to review their Band A 
xv

submissions in November 2011 and the council provided the following text to 

indicate its wish for the project to remain as a priority: 

 

Page 253



 

 

39 

 

‘Faith Based Secondary Provision – Blessed Edward Jones RC and St Brigid’s 

Estimated Cost £28.8m 

 

The Council is committed to working with Diocesan authorities and local faith 

schools to develop options for a new faith based secondary school to replace the 

two existing schools.  This project is seen as important to ensure community 

cohesion following the completion of the Rhyl VI project and the commencement of 

the Rhyl High project. Both schools fall below the minimum size for Secondary 

Schools within the Policy Framework and the authority considers that both schools 

would not be viable in the long term and that the present situation needs to be 

reviewed to ensure the long term sustainability of faith based provision within 

Denbighshire. As part of the discussions the option of a multi denomination school 

serving both Catholic and Anglican communities on a regional basis has been 

agreed.  This vision is based on the joint facility serving an age range of 11-16 with 

the capability of offering and hosting post 16 provision as part of a wider 

partnership with other schools and educational institutions within Denbighshire.  As 

neither of the existing sites of Blessed Edward Jones in Rhyl and St Brigid’s in 

Denbigh would be considered suitable for the new school for issues in relation to 

location, alternative sites have been considered by the local authority and discussed 

with denominational stakeholders.  Discussions have also taken place over the 

reinvestment of surplus sites to aid the funding position. 

 

The authority has discussed with stakeholders provisional timescales for the project 

moving forward, including timescales for progressing the relevant statutory notices 

to close both schools and establish a new school, pending clarification of funding 

and is minded to develop a phased approach to the development of the new facility.  

An estimate of £28m is suggested at this stage and the costs would be reviewed 

during submission of the Outline Business Case should authority to proceed be 

approved.’ 

 

19.3 In considering this information it is important to note that this text was provided as 

an outline concept in the knowledge that it would be subject to significant 

consultation to deliver options which could be implemented.  In reaffirming this 

project Denbighshire County Council was of the view that not including the project 

as a Band A proposal would have effectively precluded significant investment in 

faith secondary investment for a considerable time period (until 2021) as it would 

not have been part of the approved proposals. 

 

19.4 The funding proposal prepared by the Council and submitted to the Welsh 

Government was, therefore, based on what could be achieved in developing 

options for the future; what could be possible. Without that proposal and the 

discussions between the Council and the Diocesan Authorities which followed it, 

there would have been no outline vision for what could be achieved for secondary 

faith education.  It follows that without this, the Council would not have been able 

to secure an outline commitment that the project may be funded. 

 

Page 254



 

 

40 

 

19.5 Should the proposal which is the subject matter of this formal consultation be 

approved, the council would then commence the process of developing a Strategic 

Outline Case for the new school being located on one site in parallel with future 

school organisation proposals.  Following this, the council would need to provide an 

Outline Business Case and a Full Business Case to secure the funding which has 

previously been approved in principle.  The funding for the project will be provided 

in partnership between the Welsh Government, Denbighshire County Council and 

the other Promoters of the new school. 

 

20. What are the disadvantages of the proposal? 

 

20.1 If the Current Proposal is approved the New Dual-Site Faith School will be located 

on the existing school sites in Denbigh and Rhyl.  Accordingly, the number and 

impact of any initial disadvantages will be minimised.  The process would be 

managed to ensure that any disruption is kept to a minimum and should not impact 

on the children’s education. 

 

20.2 There would be a greater amount of disruption once the New Dual-Site Faith School 

moves to a single site.  The new Governing Body, Headteacher and the Promoters 

would seek to minimise any disruption and where possible provide continuity for 

pupils and parents. 

 

20.3 Upon the opening of the new Single-Site Faith School it is anticipated that more 

children will be required to travel further to school; subject to parental preference.  

Transport would be provided in accordance with Denbighshire’s transport policy
xvi

 

to meet the needs of pupils and to ensure travelling times are not excessive. 

 

20.4 There would also be implications for staff at the current Blessed Edward Jones 

Catholic High School and St Brigid’s School should the proposals be progressed for 

the development of a New Dual-Site Faith School.  The role of the Headteacher 

would need to be carefully considered by the Temporary Governing Body.  The 

approach to appointments to the role of Headteacher and Senior Leadership Team 

would be an issue for determination by the Temporary Governing Body which 

would need to consider whether the positions should be advertised nationally or 

appointed internally.   

 

20.5 The new Headteacher and the Temporary Governing Body would be required to 

consider the staffing structure for the New Dual-Site Faith School. The Council 

would work initially with the Temporary Governing Body (and then with the 

Governing Body) of the New Dual-Site Faith School during these times and should 

the need arise would work with the current members of staff to seek redeployment 

opportunities. 

 

21. Alternative Options 

 

21.1 The Promoters have given careful consideration to a range of alternative options as 

part of the development of the Current Proposal.  In considering these options 

Page 255



 

 

41 

 

reference has been made to the main investment objectives of the council’s 21
st

 

Century Schools Programme which are as follows: 

 

a. Learning environments for children and young people aged from 3 to 19 that 

will enable successful implementation of strategies for school improvement 

and better educational outcomes; 

b. Greater economy through better use of resources to improve efficiency and 

cost-effectiveness of the education estate and public provision; and 

c. A sustainable education system with all schools meeting a 21
st

 Century 

Schools Standard, and reducing recurrent costs and carbon footprint. 

 

21.2 The Promoters have also referred to the Critical Success Factors for this project.  

The main options to have been considered are as follows: 

 

Option 1.1 Maintain the status quo; 

 

Option 1.2 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High School and St Brigid’s School; 

 

Option 1.3 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic 

High School and St Brigid’s School, and replace all mobile units at St 

Brigid’s School; 

 

Option 1.4 Undertake rebuild of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and 

St Brigid’s School; or 

 

Option 1.5 Build new joint faith school. 

 

21.3 The main advantages and disadvantages of each option are as follows. 

 

Option 1.1 Maintain Status Quo (Do nothing ) 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

This is the ‘cheap’ option as no additional 

investment expenditure is required. 

The poor condition of the buildings and 

learning environment would not be 

significantly improved. 

 Would not address existing deficiencies 

with regard to existing gaps in provision, 

particular regarding access to sports 

facilities.  

 The two schools could face real issues 

Page 256



 

 

42 

 

regarding long term sustainability in 

regard to delivering the changing 

curriculum. 

 There would be no progress for Faith 

Secondary Education towards the 

strategic aims for Modernising Education 

in Denbighshire. 

 May not provide the opportunity for 

widening access to education for Church 

in Wales’ primary pupils. 

 Would not address issues regarding a 

deficit of provision at St Brigid’s and the 

surplus of places at Blessed Edward Jones 

Catholic High School. 

 

 

 

 

Option 1.2 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School 

and St Brigid’s (Minimum) 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

The reduced capital costs in respect of 

addressing existing building maintenance 

backlogs and addressing minor issues. 

The poor condition of the buildings and 

learning environment would not be 

improved. 

It would be straightforward to progress 

with no changes required within school 

organisation. 

 

Would not address existing deficiencies 

with regard to existing gaps in provision, 

particular regarding access to sports 

facilities.  

 The two schools could face real issues 

regarding long term sustainability in 

regard to delivering the changing 

curriculum. 

 There would be no progress for Faith 

Secondary Education towards the 

strategic aims for Modernising Education 

in Denbighshire. 

 May not provide the opportunity for 

widening access to education for Church 

in Wales’ primary pupils. 

 Would not address issues regarding a 

Page 257



 

 

43 

 

deficit of provision at St Brigid’s and the 

surplus of places at Blessed Edward Jones 

Catholic High School. 

 

Option 1.3 Undertake refurbishment works at Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School 

and St Brigid’s, and replace all mobile units at St Brigid’s (Minimum+) 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

The reduced capital costs in respect of 

addressing existing building maintenance 

backlogs and addressing minor issues. 

 

The poor condition of the buildings and 

learning environment would not be 

improved. 

The removal of all mobile 

accommodation at the St Brigid’s site at 

Denbigh. 

 

Would not address existing deficiencies 

with regard to existing gaps in provision, 

particular regarding access to sports 

facilities.  

It would be straightforward to progress 

with no changes required within school 

organisation. 

 

The two schools could face real issues 

regarding long term sustainability in 

regard to delivering the changing 

curriculum. 

 There would be no progress for Faith 

Secondary Education towards the 

strategic aims for Modernising Education 

in Denbighshire. 

 May not provide the opportunity for 

widening access to education for Church 

in Wales’ primary pupils. 

 Would not address issues regarding a 

deficit of provision at St Brigid’s and the 

surplus of places at Blessed Edward Jones 

Catholic High School. 

 

Option 1.4 Undertake rebuild of Blessed Edward Jones Catholic High School and St Brigid’s 

School (Intermediate) 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing new fit for 

purpose facilities would significantly 

improve the learning environment for all 

pupils. 

The two schools could face real issues 

regarding long term sustainability in 

regard to delivering the changing 

curriculum. 

Would enable the schools capacity to be There would only be partial progress for 

Page 258



 

 

44 

 

amended to reflect the respective current 

demand for Blessed Edward Jones 

Catholic High School and St Brigid’s 

School. 

Faith Secondary Education towards the 

strategic aims for Modernising Education 

in Denbighshire. 

Would not lead to any significant changes 

in regard to school organisation 

proposals with potential alterations 

required to the capacity of St Brigid’s 

School. 

May not provide the opportunity for 

widening access to education for Church 

in Wales’ primary pupils. 

 

Would not require amendments to pupil 

travel arrangements. 

The requirement to access further land 

on both sites to address existing 

deficiencies particular with regard to 

access to sports. 

 

 

 

 

Option 1.5 Build new joint faith school (Maximum) 

 

Advantages Disadvantages 

Designing and constructing new fit for 

purpose facilities would significantly 

improve the learning environment for all 

pupils, including: 

• Improved ICT and Design 

Technology teaching areas 

• Improved access to better sports 

facilities 

• Flexible work spaces 

• More natural light 

• Improved circulation around the 

school and better accessibility for 

the purposes of the Equality Act 

2010 

Potential risk that parents choose an 

alternative provision for non-faith 

reasons which leads to a reduction in 

pupil numbers. 

Bringing together the delivery of both 

schools to a single campus could yield 

significant economies of scale. 

 

This would allow for a joint faith 

provision to be developed. 
 

Remove the need to rely on mobile 

accommodation. 
 

Page 259



 

 

45 

 

Allow the issue of surplus and deficit to 

be addressed. 
 

A more central location for the majority 

of current pupils. 
 

 

21.4 The analysis of these options suggest to meet the investment objectives and critical 

success factors that the option of building a new joint faith school should be 

considered as the preferred option upon which an outline business case should be 

developed in due course. 

 

  

Page 260



 

 

46 

 

Analysis of Options against Investment Objectives and Critical Success Factors 

 

 

21.5 In considering the options both 1.4 and 1.5 could be seen to deliver an improved 

learning environment and address many of the shortfalls identified regarding 

 

 

Option 1.1 

Do nothing 

Option 1.2 

Minimum 

Option 1.3 

Minimum + 

Option 1.4 

Intermediate 

Option 1.5 

Maximum 

Investment 

objectives 
     

1 Improved 

Learning 

Environment 

x x ? � � 

2 Greater 

Economy – 

Revenue 

Implications 

x x x x � 

2  Greater 

Economy – 

Capital 

? ? ? ? ? 

3 Sustainable 

Education 

system 

x x x � � 

Critical success 

factors 
     

CSF1 Improved 

attainment and 

performance 

? ? ? ? ? 

CSF2 Improved 

school 

condition and 

suitability 

x x ? � � 

CSF3 Reduction 

in surplus 

places 

x x x ? � 

CSF4 Improved 

access to 

education for 

faith education 

x x x x � 

Summary Discounted Discounted Discounted Possible Preferred 

Page 261



 

 

47 

 

building provision.  However, maintaining the status quo, albeit in an improved 

provision will not improve the overall sustainability of faith provision. 

 

21.6 The Promoters are of the view that there are advantages in moving the Current 

Proposal forward on a phased approach i.e. amalgamation on both sites prior to 

the building of the Single-Site Faith School.  The interim advantages around 

improved leadership and management will be gained in a shorter timescale whilst 

the phased approach will also provide an opportunity for the New Dual-Site Faith 

School to take full ownership of the project to build the new facility and to ensure a 

smooth transition between the status quo and the Single-Site Faith School. 

 

21.7 In considering the options for a new school careful consideration was given to the 

age range of the school. In particular during the informal consultation period many 

St Brigid’s School parents spoke of their support for retaining a 3-18 provision. 

  

21.8 Denbighshire County Council officers have undertaken research into the 3-18 

model which has been implemented in other areas within Wales.  Whilst strong 

arguments exist, ultimately it has been agreed not to pursue this model as the 

council would be unable to support full post-16 provision from a new joint faith 

school in the north of Denbighshire because this should be delivered in partnership 

with existing providers.  The collective view is to explore  the age range for the 

Single-Site Faith School during the Second Phase.  

 

22. Explanation of the statutory process 

 

22.1 In order for the Current Proposal to be implemented, Denbighshire County Council 

is required to follow a procedure laid out by a combination of an Act of the Welsh 

Government and a statutory Code. 

22.2 The requirements are as follows: 

 a. Consultation held with people likely to be affected by the Proposal; 

b. Consultation report setting out details of the Consultation to be published 

on the council’s website; 

c. Publication of the Current Proposal (also known as the ‘statutory notice’) 

with details such as the planned implementation date, how to obtain a copy 

of the consultation report and how to object: 

i) on the council’s website; 

ii) posted on or near the main entrance of the two schools; and 

ii) by providing affected schools with copies to distribute to parents. 

d. An objection period of 28 days from the date of publication allowing anyone 

who wishes to object to the Current Proposal to do so; 

e. Determination by the council (when, subject to the above process, the 

decision to implement the Current Proposal may be approved); 

f. Publication by the council of any objections and its response to them (within 

7 days of the date of determination of the Current Proposal. 

Page 262



 

 

48 

 

 

22.3 Please note that any response provided to the formal consultation will not be 

regarded as an objection to the Current Proposal.  This is because the Current 

Proposal may change in response to the formal consultation.  If you would like to 

object to the Current Proposal, please wait until it has been published (as described 

in paragraph 22.2(c) above) then follow the procedure set out on the statutory 

notice. 

 

22.4 Should the council implement the Current Proposal having received objections, it is 

possible for certain people to request that the matter be referred to the Welsh 

Ministers for determination.  Only, the Diocesan authorities, the governing bodies 

of either school, the local authority of neighbouring counties with schools which are 

likely to be affected by the Proposal, the Trustees of the St Brigid’s Trust and a 

further education institution which is likely to be affected by the Proposal may 

request such a referral. 

 

23. Community and equality impact 

 

23.1 The council has carried out assessments on the impact of the Current Proposal on 

the local communities and people with protected characteristics under the Equality 

Act 2010.  As the Current Proposal, if implemented, will result in the Dual-Site Faith 

School, there will be no change with regards to accessibility and equality or 

community usage and benefit.   

 

23.2 Further Equality and Community impact assessments will be carried out in respect 

of the Second Phase. 

 

24. Response Form 

 

A response form for comments, including an opportunity for consultees to register 

their wish to be notified of publication of the formal consultation report, is 

attached to this consultation document. 

 

                                                           
i
 The consultation document can be found in the School Organisation & Modernising section or you can 

follow this link [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] 
ii
 Formal Consultation Document for Children & Young People.  This is available upon request from DCC 

[and/or from the DCC website in the School Organisation & Modernising section by following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] 
iii
 Section 43(1)  [School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013]: Royal Assent has been received but 

the act has not yet been published. 
iv
 Section 43(2)  [School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013]:] 

v
 [Set out the section and name of Act or SI giving this power] 

Page 263



 

 

49 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                  
vi
 Modernising Education Framework -  available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting 

the website [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] in the School Organisation & 

Modernising section 
vii

 Informal Consultation Report  - available to read on request at DCC’s offices in Ruthin or by visiting the 

website [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] in the School Organisation & 

Modernising section 
viii

 Copies of these letters and emails from people who gave relevant consents are available to view on the 

DCC website by following this link [www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] in the School 

Organisation & Modernising section.  All personal details have been removed from the letters and emails. 
ix
 The Estyn report relating to Blessed Edward Jones may be accessed by following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] or visiting the DCC website in the School 

Organisation & Modernising section 
x
 The Estyn report relating to St Brigid’s  may be accessed by following this link 

[www.denbighshire.gov.uk/modernisingeducation] or visiting the DCC website in the School 

Organisation & Modernising section 
xi
 Denbighshire County Council’s 14 – 19 Learning Skills Measure [details and link] 

xii
 Reference to the Informal Consultation Report section which shows this. 

xiii
 Reference to the Information Consultation Report section which shows this. 

xiv
 Refer to the section of the policy and to where it can be found if we put it on the website 

xv
 Explain what Band A means in the context of 21

st
 Century Schools. 

xvi
 Reference the Transport Policy and relevant section 

Page 264



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Review of Joint Faith Secondary Provision 

in the north of Denbighshire  
1 May 2013 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 265



 

1 

 
 

Review of Joint Faith Secondary Provision in the 
north of Denbighshire 
 

Contact: 
 

Paul Greatbatch (Customers & Education 
Suport) 

Updated: 01.05.13 
 
  

 
1. What type of proposal is being assessed? 
 

A project proposal 

 

2. Please describe the purpose of this proposal 
 

The creation of a new joint faith school following the closure of Blessed Edward 
Jones Catholic High School (BEJ) and St Brigid's School (SB).  The new school, 
initially, will operate from the 2 existing sites of BEJ and SB. 
 

 

3. Does this proposal require a full equality impact assessment? 
 (Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit above for guidance) 
 

No No - the impact will be neutral as very little will change.  The 
only changes will be: 
1.  The existing Catholic schools will close; 
2.  A new school will open but operate from the existing sites; 
3.  The new school will educate pupils from the Catholic and 
Anglican traditions as well of pupils of other religious beliefs; 
and 
4.  The school will need only one headteacher and that post 
may be filled by one of the existing head teachers or an 
external candidate.  Accordingly the post of the existing 
headteachers will be redundant and a single new position will 
be created.  DCC's human resources team will consider this 
and advise the governing body of the new school to ensure 
that the process is not discriminatory. 

 

4. Please provide a summary of the steps taken, and the 
information used, to carry out this assessment, including any 
engagement undertaken 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for guidance) 

 

1.  DCC background documents on Equalities Issues.  
2. North Wales Public Sector Equality Network Top Ten Tips – EqIA and Due 
Regard. 

Page 266



 

2 

3.  Denbighshire Corporate Plan: Equality Impact Assessment Research (3) 
Equality and Education in Denbighshire CIT Research DCC. 
4.  DCC's Strategic Equality Plan identifies as one of its aims, Reducing unequal 
outcomes in education to maximise individual potential.  This document refers to 
national research which suggests there is a gap in educational attainment 
between boys and girls.  St Brigid's was formerly an all girls' school.  Although it 
now welcomes boys, there is still a large imbalance in favour of girls; something 
which is most notable in the secondary years, but which nonetheless exists in the 
primary years.  This Proposal would see an end to the selective practice which 
used by St Brigid's for around half of its intake into year 7.  This should have the 
positive impact of allowing a greater proportion of boys to enter the new school 
compared with that entering the two schools at the moment. 
5.  An informal consultation conducted between 6 December 2012 and 29 
January 2013 during which DCC received over 100 letters and emails and over 
170 questionnaire responses.  The consultation asked questions concerning the 
provision of faith education in North Denbighshire and invited interested parties to 
give their views on this.  Parents of children with health issues, who relied on their 
ability to travel quickly and inexpensively to and from school during the day, 
expressed concern about the possibility of the schools location being changed.  
However, this is not an issue for this Proposal as it will not result in the location 
changing. 
    A further issued identied during the informal consultation was that of faith.  The 
two existing schools are both deemed Catholic.  One or two of the responses 
suggested that they objected to any change of faith provision and that the schools 
should remain Catholic.  However, both schools currently welcome pupils of other 
faiths.  The Project will see a formalising of this situation with a heavy weighting 
given in the Admissions Policy to applicants of the two main faiths (and the new 
school will be a church school under the guidance of the two Diocesan 
Authorities) but other faiths will continue to be welcomed.  Accordingly, although 
the issue of faith is high on the agenda for this project, there is no negative impact 
on anyone who holds religious beliefs. 
6.  A member of DCC's School improvement team who specialises in Special 
Educational Needs (SEN ) has confirmed that the correct approach is to continue 
to offer support to any pupils who have an SEN who are concerned by the change 
to a dual sited joint faith school.  However, this Project is not considered to have a 
negative impact on anyone with a disability. 

 

5. Will this proposal have a positive impact on any of the 
protected characteristics? 
(Please refer to section 1 in the toolkit for a description of the protected 
characteristics) 

 

The impact will be neutral as very little will change as noted in section 3 above.  
However, the two separate Catholic schools will become one school with an 
emphasis on pupils from the Catholic and Anglican traditions but which will also 
accpet pupils from other faiths.  This will promote greater inclusion and 
acceptance.   

 

6. Will this proposal have a disproportionate negative impact on 
any of the protected characteristics? 

 

Page 267



 

3 

No 

 

7. Has the proposal been amended to eliminate or reduce any 
potential negative impact? 

 

No <If yes, please provide detail> 

 

8. Have you identified any further actions to address and / or 
monitor any potential negative impact(s)? 

 
Yes DCC' Schools Effectiveness and Performance Officers have 

been asked to consider and comment on the impact of the 
project on current and future pupils with Special Educational 
Needs. 

 

Action(s) Owner Date 

Continue to monitor respsonses from 
parents of children with disablities and/or 
SEN.  Discuss any issues with Officers from 
DCC's SEP Team to consider impact on 
such pupils. 

PG 01.05.2013 

                  

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
9. Declaration 
 
Every reasonable effort has been made to eliminate or reduce any potential 
disproportionate impact on people sharing protected characteristics. The actual impact 
of the proposal will be reviewed at the appropriate stage. 
 

Review Date:  01.05.2013 
 

Name of Lead Officer for Equality Impact Assessment Date 

Paul Greatbatch 01.05.2013 
 
 

Please note you will be required to publish the outcome of the equality impact 
assessment if you identify a substantial likely impact. 

Page 268



  

Report To:   Cabinet 
 
Date of Meeting:  14th May 2013 

 
Lead Member / Officer:  Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill /Paul McGrady 
 
Report Author: Richard Weigh, Chief Accountant  
 
Title:    Finance Report  
 

 
1. What is the report about?  
 

The report gives details of the council’s revenue budget and savings as 
agreed for 2013/14. The report also provides a summary update of the Capital 
Plan as well as the Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Plan. 

 
2. What is the reason for making this report?  
 

To provide an update to members on the council’s current financial position 
and confirm service budgets for 2013/14. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 
 

  Members note the progress against the agreed budget strategy. 
 

4. Report details 
 

The report provides a summary of the council’s revenue budget for 2013/14 
(Appendix 1). As the 2012/13 position has not yet been finalised, there are no 
service variations to report at this stage.  
 
Appendix 2 to the report shows the progress to date against the savings 
highlighted in the Medium Term Financial Plan for 2013/14. At this early point 
in the financial year, 17% (£517K) of the savings are classed as achieved.  

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 

Effective management of the council’s revenue and capital budgets and 
delivery of the agreed budget strategy underpins activity in all areas, including 
corporate priorities. 
 

6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
Service Budgets 
 
At this stage there are no significant variances to report. The 2012/13 position is 
being finalised and will inform the May outturn report presented to Cabinet in 
June. The total net service and corporate budget is £127.7m.  
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 269



  

The budget for schools is included within Appendix 1. The total net budget for 
schools is £63.8m. Within the non-delegated element of school budgets, 
responsibility for breakfast club provision transferred from a specific grant to the 
council’s Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and has resulted in additional funding of 
approximately £150k. It has been assumed that this additional funding will be 
used to contribute to providing protection for schools adversely affected by the 
recent funding formula review.    
 
The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget is also included within Appendix 
1 for reference but HRA resources are separate funds from the council’s main 
resources and can only be used in the provision of council housing services. The 
HRA budget for 2013/14 is set assuming that capital expenditure of £890k is 
funded from revenue resources, meaning there is a budgeted reduction in HRA 
balances of £103k. The Housing Capital Plan is forecast to spend £9.1m and the 
Welsh Housing Quality Standard should be achieved by the end of 2013/14. 
 
Significant changes to council housing finance in Wales  are to be introduced 
either during 2013/14 or in 2014/15. The HRA is likely to move to a self-financing 
model and the national subsidy system will be abolished. There are many 
possible implications to consider but the key issue will be that the council will 
have to buy out of the subsidy system and incur additional borrowing to do so. 
The borrowing would be fully funded by existing HRA resources.  
 
A summary of the Capital Plan is enclosed as Appendix 3. This includes the 
planned expenditure against the Corporate Plan. The Corporate Plan aims to 
deliver investment of over £110m in schools, social care facilities and roads over 
the coming five years. External funding will contribute to the overall cost of 
investment in schools and roads but the Plan relies upon internal resources to 
fund borrowing and to provide cash. The cash requirement over the period is 
over £22m. Some of this should come from capital receipts but the majority will 
come from existing cash reserves or from budget resources identified to produce 
cash to fund capital investment activity. The 2013/14 budget specifically 
earmarked resources of £600k to be allocated to the Corporate Plan Reserve to 
contribute to funding the Corporate Plan.  A more detailed explanation of the 
Corporate Plan and a review of the funding underpinning it will be presented to 
the Corporate Governance Committee in May.  
 
The scale of the Corporate Plan means that it will span a 5-7 year horizon and 
will undoubtedly mean that as it develops, there will be timing differences 
between planned and actual assumptions around the use of cash. This may 
mean that earmarked reserves may increase until commitments are made.  It is 
crucial however to appreciate that if resources are diverted through the life of the 
Plan, the Council will have to decide which of the projects previously identified it 
would want to cancel.   

 

7. What are the main conclusions of the Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 
undertaken on the decision?  The completed EqIA template should be 
attached as an appendix to the report. 
 

Page 270



  

Individual services are responsible for carrying out impact assessments on 
their saving proposals contained within the budget. A summary EqIA was 
submitted to Council in February 2013 as part of the budget approval process.  

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

Service challenges were held with each head of service and each challenge 
included representatives from scrutiny committee and Cabinet. Corporate Plan 
and Budget workshops were held with members in September, November and 
December. The capital plan was approved by council following scrutiny by the 
Strategic Investment Group and recommendation by cabinet.  
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

This report highlights the revenue and capital budgets as agreed for 2013/14 
and demonstrates how the council’s finances will be reported to Cabinet 
throughout the year. Services are expected to deliver the savings agreed 
through the Service Challenges and budget setting process.  It is important 
that services continue to manage budgets prudently and that any in-year 
surpluses are considered in the context of the medium-term financial position. 
 
The Council has approved an ambitious Corporate Plan. Underpinning the 
affordability of the Plan are key assumptions around revenue budgets and 
cash. Diversion of any resources identified to fund the Corporate Plan will 
mean that projects would have to be cancelled.  

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 
 This is the most challenging financial period the council has faced and failure 

to deliver the agreed budget strategy will put further pressure on services in 
the current and future financial years. Effective budget monitoring and control 
will help ensure that the financial strategy is achieved. 

  
 Specific risks are apparent when dealing with capital projects and can include 

expenditure or time overruns, funding issues and other non-financial 
considerations. A robust approval mechanism and close financial monitoring 
and reporting, along with effective project management procedures, help to 
minimise these risks. 

  
 The HRA is undertaking a considerable capital investment to improve the 

housing stock and using borrowing and grants to fund the works. Any 
borrowing must be affordable and the regular monitoring and annual approval 
and viability assessment of the Housing Stock Business Plan ensures that this 
is so.  

 
11. Power to make the Decision 
 
.  Local authorities are required under Section 151 of the Local Government Act 

1972 to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial 
affairs. 

Page 271



  

 

Page 272



Appendix 1

Net Budget Variance

Forecast as at 30/04/2013 2012/13 Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net Net Previous 

Report

 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

Business Planning & Performance 1,370 1,667 -237 1,430 1,667 -237 1,430 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Legal & Democratic Services 1,513 2,066 -553 1,513 2,066 -553 1,513 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Finance & Assets 7,058 14,042 -7,024 7,018 14,042 -7,024 7,018 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Highways & Environmental Services 20,893 37,294 -17,156 20,138 37,294 -17,156 20,138 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Planning & Regulatory Services 2,621 4,230 -1,699 2,531 4,230 -1,699 2,531 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Adult & Business Services 31,865 47,549 -14,250 33,299 47,549 -14,250 33,299 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Children & Family Services 8,913 9,503 -705 8,798 9,503 -705 8,798 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Housing & Community Development 2,103 3,666 -1,576 2,090 3,666 -1,576 2,090 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Communication, Marketing & Leisure 5,224 10,496 -5,413 5,083 10,496 -5,413 5,083 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Strategic HR 901 1,277 -376 901 1,277 -376 901 0 0 0 0.00% 0

ICT/Business Transformation 1,935 2,695 -760 1,935 2,695 -760 1,935 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Customers & Education Support 1,983 2,465 -505 1,960 2,465 -505 1,960 0 0 0 0.00% 0

School Improvement & Inclusion 4,444 11,760 -6,902 4,858 11,760 -6,902 4,858 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Total Services 90,823 148,710 -57,156 91,554 148,710 -57,156 91,554 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Corporate 5,997 46,441 -28,685 17,756 46,441 -28,685 17,756 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Transfers to Corporate Plan Reserve 1,700 600 0 600 600 0 600 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Precepts & Levies 4,569 4,593 0 4,593 4,593 0 4,593 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Capital Financing 12,656 13,230 0 13,230 13,230 0 13,230 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Total Corporate 24,922 64,864 -28,685 36,179 64,864 -28,685 36,179 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Council Services & Corporate Budget 115,745 213,574 -85,841 127,733 213,574 -85,841 127,733 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Schools & Non-delegated School Budgets 61,643 70,995 -7,156 63,839 70,995 -7,156 63,839 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Total Council Budget 177,388 284,569 -92,997 191,572 284,569 -92,997 191,572 0 0 0 0.00% 0

Housing Revenue Account -71 12,772 -12,670 102 12,772 -12,670 102 0 0 0 0

VarianceBudget 2013/14 Projected Outturn

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2013/14

P
age 273



P
age 274

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Update to 30/04/2013

Ref Action

General Status Saving Total

£'000 £'000
A2 Reduce Contingency for balances and impact of Recession Achieved 300

A3 Convert Essential Car Users to Casual In progress 200

A10 Modernising the Council In progress 200

A7 Costs of Democracy Achieved 17

717

Support Services
C6 ICT Printer Rationalisation Project In progress 25

C7 Finance & Assets Achieved 100

Energy - Reduced Consumption In progress 100

Capital Financing Budget Achieved 100

325

Service Challenges

Leisure, Libraries & Community Development
Da5 Remove leisure subsidy by increasing income In progress 70

Dk1 Modernise Library Service Provision In progress 77

147

Environmental Services

Db1 Increase certain bulk waste charges In progress 5

Db2 Renegotiate recyclate and disposal contracts In progress 225

Db5 Regional Waste Procurement budget In progress 81

Db6 Succession Planning In progress 15

Db10 Service Redesign (Street Cleansing) In progress 138

Db13 Cemetaries - increase charging & reduce improvement In progress 10

Db15 Free School Meals - increase take-up In progress 5

Db15a Reduced Subsidy of School Meal Service In progress 50

Db16 Countryside - AONB In progress -20

Db17 Stores In progress -45

Db18 Recycling Parks In progress 100

Highways & Infrastructure
EC17 Traffic & Road Safety In progress 50

EC18 Highway Maintenance DLO In progress 150

764

 Planning and Public Protection

EC21 Review Pest Control In progress 10

EC23 Review of Building Control In progress 20

EC26 Review of Pollution Control In progress 20

EC29 Review of Management In progress 40

90

Adult Social Services
Df1 Cefndy Healthcare - reduced subsidy In progress 46

Older People
Df5 Externalise elements of Home Care In progress 15

Df8 Impact of investment in reablement In progress 75

Df9 Residential Care - Impact of Extra Care In progress 155

Mental Health
Df11 Management Changes In progress 19

Df12 Partnership Efficiency Savings In progress 26

Appendix 2 Medium Term Financial Plan Update 2013/14

Page 275



Status Saving Total

£,000 £'000

Adult Social Services (con'd)

Physical Disability & Impairment
Df13 ISIL Scheme In progress 12

Df14 Reablement Intervention In progress 26

Df15 Telecare In progress 20

Other Adult Services
Df17 Systems Thinking and Vacancy Control In progress 80

474

Children & Family Services

Staffing
Dj4 Social Workers - reduction in caseload In progress 108

Dj7 Review of Bryn Y Wal Residential Service In progress 109

Dj8 Reduction in Independent (external) Placement Provision In progress 63

Pressures
Dj18 In-house Fostering In progress -35

Dj20 Legislative changes In progress -28

217

Housing & Community Development

Various Small savings in Housing In progress 1

Dc1 Review of Regeneration In progress 10

Db18 Regeneration Service Redesign In progress 23

34

REGIONAL WORKING/COLLABORATION

ENW1 Education Regional Board In progress 55

ENW2 Social Care Regional Board In progress 35

ENW2 Social Care Regional Board Deferred 65

155

OUTSOURCING

G2 Bodelwyddan Castle In progress 28

G3 Clwyd Leisure In progress 50

G4 ECTARC In progress 5

83

Other Cultural/Heritage activities

H2 Ruthin Craft Centre In progress 20

H3 Llangollen Pavilion In progress 25

H4 Heritage facilities In progress 10

55

Total Savings 2012/13 3,061

Summary: £'000 %
Savings Achieved/Replaced or Pressures Confirmed 517 17
Savings In Progress/Being Reviewed 2,479 81
Savings Not Achieved or Deferred and not replaced 65 2
Total 3,061

Page 276



P
age 277



P
age 278

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

 
 
 

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

25 June 1 Outsourcing ICT Services to 
Schools 

To give an overview of the 
tendering process, evaluation 
and scoring and request the 
final decision from Cabinet. 
 

Yes Cllr Eryl Williams / 
Jackie Walley / 
Stephanie O’Donnell 

 2 Finance Update Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

 Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 3 Mental Health Partnership to ask Cabinet to consider 
and agree to a new 
partnership between the 
Council and BCU to deliver 
Adult Mental Health services 
to the citizens of 
Denbighshire. 

 Phil Gilroy/Cllr Bobby 
Feeley 

 4 Cefndy Healthcare: Future 
Direction & Impact of Potential 
loss of DWP funding 

To consider options in light of 
risks from loss of DWP 
funding & need to maintain 
employment for vulnerable & 
disabled people 

 Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Phil Gilroy / Deborah 
Holmes-Langstone 

 5 Ruthin Area Primary Schools 
Review 

To seek approval for starting 
a formal consultation period 

Yes Cllr Eryl Williams / 
Jackie Walley 

A
genda Item

 7

P
age 279



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

with Ruthin Primary schools 

 6 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 4 
2012/13 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 7 Final Budget Position  and 
Revenue Outturn 2012/13 

To update Cabinet on the 
final Budget Position  and 
Revenue Outturn 2012/13 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 8 Review of LDP Steering Group To seek approval for the 
proposed revised 
membership and terms of 
reference for the LDP 
Steering Group 

Yes Cllr Eryl Williams / 
Angela Loftus 

 9 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 10 Day Services To update Cabinet on 
changes to day services 
provided for older people 

Yes Phil Gilroy/ Cllr Bobby 
Feeley 

30 July 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 3 Local Housing Strategy To  consider a report by Tbc Cllr Hugh Irving / Sue 

P
age 280



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

(Glyndwr University) Glyndwr University Lewis 

 4 Local Housing Strategy To consider the Local 
Housing Strategy 

tbc Cllr Hugh Irving / Sue 
Lewis 

 5 North Wales Hospital – CPO   Graham Boase 

 6 Adult Safeguarding To consider future options for 
the arrangements for  Adult 
Safeguarding 

Yes Cllr Bobby Feeley / 
Phil Gilroy 

      

3 September 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Annual Performance Review 
2012/13 

To review the draft Annual 
Performance Review for 
2012-13 and to recommend 
the report for adoption by full 
Council 

 Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 1 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

24 
September 

1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

P
age 281



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

the Council 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

29 October 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 3 Supplementary Planning 
Guidance Masterplan for the 
North Wales Hospital 

  Graham Boase 

      

26 November 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention. 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

17 December 1 Finance Report Update To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Cllr Julian Thompson-
Hill / Paul McGrady 

P
age 282



 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead 
member and contact 

officer 

 2 Corporate Plan QPR: Quarter 2 
2013/14 

To monitor the Council’s 
progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan 2012 -17 

Tbc Cllr Barbara Smith / 
Tony Ward 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

May 29 April  June 11 June July 16 July 
 
Updated 30/4/2013 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 
 

P
age 283



P
age 284

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

Page 285

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 290

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 291

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of P

art 4 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 292

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 293

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 346

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5 FAITH BASED PROVISION
	FAITH BASED PROVISION - APP 1
	FAITH BASED PROVISION - APP 2A
	FAITH BASED PROVISION - APP 2B
	FAITH BASED PROVISION - APP 3
	FAITH BASED PROVISION EQL APP

	6 FINANCE REPORT
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 1
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 2
	FINANCE REPORT - APP 3

	7 CABINET FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
	8 TRANSFORMING TRANSPORT - REGIONAL PASSENGER TRANSPORT COLLABORATION PROJECT
	PART 2 - TRANSFORMING TRANSPORT APP 1
	PART 2 - TRANSFORMING TRANSPORT APP 2


